
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING  
MEETING IN PUBLIC 

 
DATE:   Thursday 24 November 2022 
TIME:   10am – 1pm  
METHOD: Meeting via Microsoft Teams (Trust Governors and members of staff and the 

public are invited to observe) 
*** 
 
VOTING BOARD MEMBERS: 

• Professor Sir Keith Willett CBE, Chair  
• Sumit Biswas, Non-Executive Director/Deputy Chair 
• Les Broude, Non-Executive Director / Senior Independent Director 
• Nigel Chapman, Non-Executive Director 
• Ian Green, Non-Executive Director 
• Mike Hawker, Non-Executive Director 
• Anne Stebbing, Non-Executive Director 
• Will Hancock, Chief Executive 
• Paul Kempster, Chief Operating Officer 
• John Black, Medical Director 
• Mike Murphy, Director of Strategy and Business Development 
• Aneel Pattni, Chief Finance Officer 
• Melanie Saunders, Chief People Officer 
• Professor Helen Young, Director of Patient Care and Service 

Transformation  
 
IN ATTENDANCE: 

• Syma Dawson, Interim Company Secretary  
• Jill Lanham, Director of Digital 
• Gillian Hodgetts, Director of Communications, Marketing and Engagement 
 

 
 

APOLOGIES RECEIVED  
• None 

 
 
 
  



 

  
 
Item BAF 

ref 
 

Outcome 
 

Method Priority 

OPENING BUSINESS 
40 Chair’s Welcome and Apologies for 

Absence 
Keith Willett 
 

- Note Verbal  

41 Declarations – Directors’ Interests and 
Fit and Proper Persons Test 
 Keith Willett  
 

- Note Verbal  

42 Minutes from Meeting on 29 September 
2022 
Keith Willett  
 

- Approve 
 

Paper 
 

 

43 Board Actions Log 
Syma Dawson 
 

- Note Paper 
 

 

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW AND CONTEXT 
44 Chair’s Report  

Keith Willett  
 

All Note Paper 
 

 

45 Chief Executive’s Report  
Will Hancock  
 

All Note Paper 
  

46 CQC Improvement Programme Update 
Mike Murphy 
 

All Note Paper  

47 Staff Story  
Melanie Saunders 
 

- Note Paper  

PERFORMANCE, RISKS, GOVERNANCE AND ASSURANCE 
48 Quality and Patient Safety Report 

Professor Helen Young  
1, 5b Note 

 
Paper 

  

49 Integrated Performance Report (M5) 
Aneel Pattni and Director Leads 

1, 2a, 4 Note Paper 
 
 

 

BREAK 
PERFORMANCE, RISKS, GOVERNANCE AND ASSURANCE CONT’D  

50 Corporate Governance  
Mike Murphy / Syma Dawson  
 
• Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
 
• Amendments to the Trust Constitution 
 
• Corporate Governance Strategic Plan 

2022-24 
 

-l Approve 
 
 

Paper  

51 Finance and Estates Report 
Aneel Pattni  
 

4, 6 Note Paper  



Item BAF 
ref 

 

Outcome 
 

Method Priority 

52 2021/22 South Central Ambulance 
Charity Annual Accounts 
Mike Murphy, Nigel Chapman 
 

 Approve Paper  

53 Board Committee Upward Reports 
• Ian Green (People & Culture) 
• Anne Stebbing (Q&S) 
• Mike Hawker (Audit) 
• Nigel Chapman (Charity) 

 

1, 4, 5  Note  
Paper 
Paper 
Paper 
Paper 

 

54 National COVID Response Service 
Update 
Professor Helen Young 
 

3, 5c, 7 Note Paper  

PEOPLE, WELL-BEING AND LEADERSHIP 
55 HR & OD Update 

Melanie Saunders 
 

5 Note Paper  
 

56 Freedom to Speak Up Report 
Melanie Saunders, Simon Holbrook 
 

5 Note Paper  

BUSINESS UPDATES – KEY ISSUES ONLY 
57 Medical Director’s Report  

John Black 
 

1 Note Paper  

58 Operations Report – 999, 111 and Other  
Paul Kempster 
 

2a, 
2b 

Note Paper  

CLOSING BUSINESS 

59 Any Other Business 
Keith Willett  
 

- Note Verbal  

60 Questions from observers (items on the 
agenda) 
Keith Willett  
 

- Note Verbal  

61 Review of Meeting 
Keith Willett; All  
 

- Note Verbal  

 Date, Time and Venue of Next Meeting in 
Public 
26th January 2023 
 

- Note Verbal 
 

 

 
The Board resolves that in the interests of public order, the meeting adjourn to enable the Board to complete 

business without the presence of the public. 
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ITEM 3 - DRAFT MINUTES FROM THE 29 September 2022 BOARD MEETING IN PUBLIC 
 
Unconfirmed minutes of the meeting ‘in public’ of the South Central Ambulance Service (SCAS) NHS 
Foundation Trust Board of Directors (‘the Board’) held on Thursday 29 September 2022 via Microsoft 
Teams  
 
Board members present (15/15) 
Professor Sir Keith Willett CBE (Chair); Sumit Biswas (NED); Les Broude (NED); Nigel Chapman 
(NED); Ian Green (NED): Mike Hawker (NED); Henrietta Hughes (NED); Anne Stebbing (NED); Will 
Hancock (Chief Executive); John Black (Medical Director); Paul Kempster (Chief Operating Officer); 
Kish Sidhu (Interim Chief Financial Officer); Mike Murphy (Director of Strategy and Business 
Development) - part; Melanie Saunders (Chief People Officer); Professor Helen Young (Director of 
Patient Care and Service Transformation). 
 
Board members apologies 
None 
 
In attendance 
Syma Dawson (Interim Director of Corporate Governance and Company Secretary); Jill Lanham 
(Director of Digital), Gillian Hodgetts (Director of Communications and Marketing).  
Dipen Rajyaguru – Equality and Diversity Lead 
Claire Walters - Integrated Urgent Care (IUC) Compliance Quality Lead 
Caroline Whitworth - Head of Patient Experience  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
OPENING BUSINESS 
 
22/46 – Chair’s Welcome and Apologies for Absence 
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting, including Board members, Governors and members of the 
public.  
 
22/47 - Declaration – Directors’ Interests & Fit and Proper Persons Test 
No declarations were made 
 
22/48 – Minutes from the 21 July 2022 Meeting in Public 
The minutes of the previous meeting were APPROVED as an accurate record. 
 
22/49 – Board Actions Log 
 
Action 22/028  
Syma Dawson reported that Board members had completed the online NHS Leadership Academy 
unconscious bias training module. Action closed. 
 
The Board confirmed that they were content with the updates provided on six of the actions. Actions 
closed. 
 
STRATEGIC OVERVIEW AND CONTEXT 
 
22/50 – Chair’s Report  
The Chair reported on the pressures being experienced within the Trust and the system, the increase 
in the number of COVID 19 cases, changes in political leadership including the appointment of the 
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new Secretary of Health, the merger of the NHSE/I, HEE and NHS Digital, the Trust’s response to 
the CQC report as well as anticipated increase in activity during the winter period. 
 
The Chair also reported on the Non-Executive and Executive level changes and reported that this 
was a period of considerable change. He thanked Henrietta Hughes for her contribution as this was 
her last meeting. The recruitment of two NEDs replacing Mike Hawker and Henrietta Hughes was 
underway as well as the recruitment of a new CEO. On behalf of the Board, the Chair thanked staff 
for their enormous effort to continue working hard during this challenging period.  
 
The Board noted the Chair’s Report.  
 
22/51 – Chief Executive’s Report 
The Chief Executive reported on the visits to the various stations, induction with new members of 
staff, long service awards for NHS staff and Queens awards, visits to Education Centres, the 
engagement and feedback from staff across the organisation, and the increased external 
engagement including the overview an scrutiny meetings for Oxfordshire since the last CQC. 
 
The Chair asked about the relationship between the Trust and the emerging Integrated Care Boards 
(ICBs). The Chief Executive reported that Trust had been working collaboratively with ICBs before 
the legislative changes which led to their setup. There were still a lot of changes within the ICS and 
the relationships were still being developed, to represent the new systems and ways of working. The 
Trust had strong links with main the Hampshire and Isle of Wight ICB (HIOW), Buckinghamshire, 
Oxfordshire and Berkshire West (BOB) ICB and also with the Frimley ICB. Some of the workstreams 
were cut across the system, for example Workforce and the development of the UEC pathway. 
 
Mike Hawker asked for more information on the Adastra incident which had a major impact on the 
Trust’s ability to deliver services and asked for assurance that the incident would not recur, and if it 
did there were measures in place to mitigate its impact. 
 
The Chief Executive acknowledged the Trust’s vulnerability to technology and reported that work 
had been carried out to review and strengthen the resilience across the core and critical systems, 
as part of the Digital Strategy. Adastra was a national system, working across NHS organisations, 
and had a big outage which took some time to rectify. The contract held by NHS Digital and they had 
led on the incident. There was a lot of learning for the Trust which could be shared with the Board. 
 
Ian Green asked if there were any indications from the Department of Health regarding its focus on 
ambulatory care and resilience. The Chief Executive reported that this was yet to come, and he had 
been invited to a roundtable meeting with the new Minister and would report back on the discussions. 
 
Sumit Biswas thanked the Chief Executive for the update on Adastra incident and requested that 
feedback be made to the Board on the implementation of the learning from the incident.  
 
New Action 22/51 
The Chief Executive to update the Board on learning from the Adastra incident and measures 
taken to mitigate such an incident occurring again.  
 

 
Anne Stebbing asked for the number of staff and volunteers who had been involved in the funeral 
arrangements of Her Majesty the Queen and asked the Board to acknowledge the hard work of 
colleagues involved. The Chief Executive reported that this was a huge operation in which hundreds 
of staff and volunteers were involved across a 10-day period. He was pleased to receive mutual aid 
support from other ambulance services particularly South West Ambulance Service. The Chief 
Executive paid particular credit to the Head of Resilience and Specialist Operations for leading on 
the preparedness of the Trust and ensuring the event was adequately resourced. 
 
The Board noted the Chief Executive’s Report.  
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22/52 – CQC Improvement Programme Update  
 
The Chair introduced the item and thanked the Director of Strategy and Business Development, his 
team and all the Executive Directors, for the enormous amount of work being done in response to 
the CQC inspection.  
 
Mike Murphy acknowledged the activity that has gone on and outlined the process that has led to 
the CQC inspections and the CQC rating. He reported that the Trust had submitted a strong response 
to CQC to ensure that it was accurate and reader friendly. An improvement programme had been 
developed and this was broader than the issues raised by CQC. The improvement plan covered four 
workstreams, namely the culture and staff wellbeing, performance and recovery, patient safety and 
Governance and Well Led. The Trust had worked hard in collaboration with system partners, NHSE 
at regional and national level to respond to the CQC report, and also to ensure partners were 
engaged on the improvement plan and assist in the preparation of the exit criteria .The Trust was 
yet to enter the recovery support programme but was expected to do so imminently which would 
change the SOF rating from a ‘2’ to ‘4’.   
 
Ian Green sought to establish the confidence in delivery of the plan given that some of the ‘should 
do’ and ‘must do’ actions had a deadline of 31 October 2022 and asked how progress was being 
communicated to all stakeholders particularly Governors. 
 
Mike Murphy reported that the improvement plan trajectories had a deadline of 31 October, and is 
the date referenced in the warning notice issued by the CQC. The Trust has already submitted plans 
to the CQC outlining how the must-do’s were being addressed. The CQC are seeking assurance 
that there is a programme of activity supported by evidence that the report is being taken seriously 
and progressing. In the recent tripartite meeting which involves the CQC, NHSE Region and system 
ICB partners, there was confidence and assurance in the work being done by the Trust, however, 
the biggest issue is the capacity and resilience to deliver CQC work as well as business as usual 
(BAU).  
 
In terms of communications, Mike Murphy outlined the range of internal and external 
communications that were being used to engage with system partners including the tripartite 
meetings which were now moving from quarterly to monthly, as well as the Trust’s Delivery Group 
meetings which ICS Partners will be invited to attend. Internally, communication was through 
webinars, reporting mechanisms via Executive and Non-Executive attendance at Council of 
Governor meetings.  
 
Sumit Biswas acknowledged that there is a good governance structure in place regarding the 
Improvement Programme, and there is a lot of detail at individual task level. However, some delivery 
dates for some of the workstreams needed to be reviewed. He explained that while reviewing the 
governance workstream, he had noted the amount of work to be done on the trajectory and it is 
important to have clear delivery timelines in place. It was also equally important to have a holistic 
view of the big organisational programmes like the cultural change and organisational effectiveness 
and the connection points between the workstreams and how they are working together. 
 
Mike Hawker commented that it was important to link the CQC programme with the Trust’s own 
strategic development and make improvements for patients and a better working environment for 
staff. This would ensure continuous improvement post 31 October.  
 
Anne Stebbing observed that lot of the work is dependent on having the right resource and 
manpower available. As the CQC visit in November had recognised the need to increase staff in 
safeguarding, she sought an update on progress in filling those roles identified.  
 
Professor Young reported on the recent successful appointment of the Associate Director of 
Safeguarding Mental Health and Complex Care who had already started supporting the team. A 
work plan had been submitted to address some of the issues going forward. The next recruitment 
line was of the Band 8a Safeguarding professionals leads under the Associate Director. Under this, 
Band 7 and support roles would follow. Interim cover was in place at the moment. She added that 
the whole programme was part of the strategic journey to drive improvements. 
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Nigel Chapman asked about the Exec teams’ capacity in engaging with the ICB and other system 
partner and also whether a second inspection was required for the Trust to move out of the 
inadequate rating. 
 
Mike Murphy reported that a further inspection was required to move from ‘Inadequate’ to ‘Requires 
Improvement’. However, the CQC reserves the right to undertake an inspection with regards to the 
warning notice but the Trust may still have inadequate areas. The alternative is to wait until all 
elements of the plan had been embedded and then inform the CQC the Trust is prepared for another 
inspection.  
 
He added that the improvement programme is part of the strategic journey to drive improvements 
and that the CQC had accelerated some aspects, as well as identified other areas which the Trust 
was not aware of. The CQC improvement programme would be aligned with the transformation 
programme to create one workstream. Recruitment and capacity are the main challenges. 
 
Mike Murphy also reported that with regards to system engagement, work was underway to review 
and to streamline all meetings in the system and NHSE/I and that he was confident in terms of 
capacity to engage with system partners.  
 
The Board noted the CQC Improvement Programme Update.  
 
22/53 - Patient Story 
 
Claire Walters and Caroline Whitworth joined the meeting 
 
Professor Young introduced the item by explaining that patient stories are an important way for the 
Board to hear and see the patient experiences and identify the learning. Professor Young invited 
Claire Walters and Caroline Whitworth to read the words from the mother of the patient.  
 
Claire Walters and Caroline Whitworth presented the experience of a patient and mother. The patient 
and mother’s name had been anonymised however, consent had been obtained to share the story. 
A summary of events was noted, and the changes that had been put in place to avoid this happening 
again. A plan was now in place to review and audit these changes.  
 
The Chair commented that this case was indicative of the complexity of our service and the different 
systems and partners the Trust has to work with to deliver the service.  
 
Mike Hawker noted that this was not the first time the out of hours (OOH) service had received 
feedback that was not positive and wondered whether the system could be improved to ensure a 
positive experience. It was important for them to report that that they have done what was asked or 
will they let us know when it’s failed. 
 
In response Professor Young outlined the steps taken when handing over cases to OOH providers 
and reported that when care is handed over to the OOH provider, and they confirm they have 
received it, the Trust is no longer responsible for the care received from that point onwards.  
 
Henrietta Hughes commented that as a GP, referring patients meant responsibility until they are 
receiving the care in the chain. She pointed out the difficulties and complexity of the system and 
reflected that it would be better if patients received a call back at some point and to contact the Trust 
should that not happen. 
 
Nigel Chapman thanked the team for raising the case, noting the sense the stress the family must 
have been under in this case, particularly as it involved a child and wondered whether there was a 
duty for GP in OOH to do their best in this situation even if it was not in the right area.  
 
Les Broude commented that the case was consistent with what had been seen before and as 
discussed in November, some of the safeguarding issues were meant to have been transferred to 
another organisation but had not be been accepted. He suggested that if it’s taking someone a long 
time to go to 111, it’s not fair to ring back and ask them to wait again, but rather work with the other 
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organisation. Les also asked whether the list of actions taken by the team leader were documented 
and auditable. Claire Walters confirmed this was the case.  
 
The Medical Director asked whether the mother was instructed to call back if ongoing concern / 
deterioration and what the outcome was. Clare Walters reported as part of the pathways, interim 
advice was offered, and the call received 100% compliance, but the missed opportunity was not 
being able to re-triage. The patient had made a full recovery and a review was undertaken by the 
clinical governance to ensure there was no patient harm.  
 
The Board noted the Patient Story and thanked Claire Walters and Caroline Whitworth for 
presenting.  
 
PERFORMANCE. RISKS, GOVERNANCE AND ASSURANCE 
 
22/54 - Quality and Patient Safety Report  
Professor Young presented the report and highlighted the work underway in recruiting to the 
safeguarding team and the drive to meet the Level 3 safeguarding training requirement which was a 
significant challenge. This would be reported through IPR from next month. The Quality and Safety 
Committee and the Executive had oversight of the work. 
 
Professor Young also highlighted the risk around medical devices management which had come to 
light as a result of the work around the Zoll defibrillators. This had highlighted significant weaknesses 
in the management of medical devices. The risk on risk had been increased on the CRR and BAF. 
Mitigations were underway and including an ongoing stock take for every device due to be completed 
by end of November and an external review by Collinson’s and Grant. The Executive had accepted 
the recommendations to strengthen the management of medical devices and team function as well 
as how assets are being managed.  
 
Professor Young also added that the incidents and serious incident harm and were all emanating 
from delays in response, and patient care where procedure had not been carried according to 
guidance or where guidance was not clear. 
 
Nigel Chapman thanked the Director of Patient Care and Service Transformation for the report and 
asked about the assurance on learning from experience, especially with the increased scrutiny on 
SI’s particularly around treatment. 
 
Professor Young reported that the learning from experience was shared with the Patient Safety 
Group and Quality and Safety Committee. Also, as part of the review following CQC feedback, every 
SI was being reviewed and case declared as major incident of concern alongside ICB partners. That 
report is being drawn as speak, that will be shared with Board. There is a BAU report and then a 
separate report from learning over the last 12 months.  
 
Sumit Biswas noted the low uptake of Body Worn Camera and also wondered why there seemed to 
be a downward trend in clinical incidents. The Director of Patient Care and Service Transformation 
undertook to find out and report back. Professor Young added that the Health and Safety Committee 
are looking into the reasons for the low uptake of Body Worn Cameras. Les Broude suggested that 
the issue of Body Worn Cameras would be a good question for NEDs to ask staff when they do the 
walkabouts. He also asked about the process regarding feedback from NEDs; the Director of Patient 
Care and Service Transformation reported that this was handled by the Compliance Team and then 
fed into the learning from experience report. 
 
New Action 22 / 54 / 01 
Professor Young to investigate the downward trend in clinical incidents reporting and report back 
to the Board.  
 

 
Ian Green commented that he was pleased to see focus on patient safety mental health and 
requested a deep dive into the approach for people with mental health in conjunction with other 
health service partners., with a report coming to a future Board meeting. The Director of Patient Care 
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and Service Transformation agreed to report back to the Board on Patient Safety Mental Health 
alongside the Chief People Officer who will discuss mental health support for SCAS staff. 
 
The Board noted the Quality and Patient Safety Report 
 
22/55 – Quality Report Position Statement  
 
Professor Young presented the report and reminded the Board on its decision to not produce an 
Annual Quality Account for the past year due to the pandemic. However, the Board agreed to 
produce a Position Statement confirming quality priorities for this year which is enclosed for approval. 
These priorities would then be shared with the Council of Governors.  
 
Anne Stebbing welcomed clarity on the achievement of partially completed priorities from the year. 
Nigel Chapman asked for more information and the course of action with regards to partially 
completed priorities. The Director of Patient Care and Service Transformation reported that these 
would be where work was ongoing from previous year against the priority. It was agreed that this 
could be made clearer in the report.  
 
The Board approved the Quality Report Position Statement.  
 
22/56 – Integrated Performance Report (IPR) 
Kish Sidhu presented the Integrated Performance Report and reported that the Single Oversight 
Framework (SOF) segment in the report was showing as a ‘2’ as the Trust had not been formally 
notified of any changes.  
 
Clinical 
John Black summarised performance with asthma and reported that peep flow devices were on back 
ambulances. Regarding, Stem, Limb Fractures he reported that recording pain scores software had 
been updated and it was anticipated that would be embedded as a mandatory field but need 
confirmation that changes to software were working as intended.  The Medical Director also advised 
that analgesia was available on front line vehicles.  
 
Sumit Biswas asked about the compliance with relation to patient pain scores the Medical Director 
confirmed that this was a recording issue and the EPR software was expected to go live soon, 
alongside.  
 
Anne Stebbing noted that the issue of software has been ongoing for a long time and acknowledged 
the importance of having proper timescales for when this would be completed. Mike Hawker pointed 
out that some of the trajectories were showing as red, with a forecast of green. It was important to 
ensure that timescales are included.  
 
New Action 22/56 
John Black to provide timelines for when the EPR software is expected to go live. 
 

 
Performance  
Paul Kempster presented the report on performance and highlighted the improvement in Cat 1 by 1 
min, in Cat 2 by 12 minutes and Cat 3 by 12 hours. This is mainly due to reduction in demand, 
improvement in capacity and some improvements from recovery work taking place under the 
leadership of the Director of Operations. The Trust is close to anticipated trajectories in terms of task 
time although still away from national standards. The Trust is also doing well when benchmarked 
against other Trusts particularly in Cat 2, the largest area of demand.  
 
There was an improvement in Hear and Treat (4%) and See and Treat (by 2% points) and the move 
made to have a GP clinical assessment was stopping Cat 3’s coming into 999 each week cutting 
down on ambulance despatches. 
 
The main pressure was handover delays and September had seen a worrying deterioration, 
particularly and mainly at Portsmouth. However, assurances had been from Portsmouth on what 
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they are doing to rectify this. Meal breaks and overruns saw an improvement in August relative to 
other areas. 
 
Sumit Biswas referred to the graphs on 999 activities and pointed out that the actual activity seemed 
to be lower than last year and the plan. Summit also asked about the homeworking pilot and when 
that would draw to a conclusion. 
 
Paul Kempster reported that it would be difficult to compare activity with last year as the Trust was 
in lockdown which made it difficult to plan for this year. The challenges in activity levels is not from 
demand as a lot of time was spent trying not to convey patients because of handover delays. There 
is slow progress with the homeworking pilot and this had been made worse by the Adastra outage. 
Initial assessments were positive but there is a need to recruit more people on to the programme 
and therefore, more time is needed. 
 
Les Broude reported that in conversations with GPs, they alluded to an increase COVID 19 cases 
and sought assurance that the Trust would manage the increase especially as we approached 
Winter.  
 
Paul Kempster reported that there is an increase in COVID 19 cases, however, hospitals are 
managing the capacity in a different, more flexible way with less impact than experienced during 
pandemic. With regards to the Winter Plan there is a big dependency on PHU and the Portsmouth 
system delivering their plan to reduce handover delays in October. However, he expressed concern 
on the level of assurance thus far, although there was some comfort in that the ambulance protocols 
had not been invoked as has happened previously. The rise in COVID carried the risk of ability to 
respond to patients and if internal capacity was impacted by higher levels of absence, that would 
affect the number of ambulances out on the road.  
 
Nigel Chapman asked for more information on the impact of GP validation exercise as there seemed 
to be a tension between getting the right treatment which may add to the time of dealing with cases. 
He also sought clarity on whether the revised handover plan for winter was deliverable. 
 
In response, the Chief Operating Officer (COO) reported that it was good for the system to spend 
time on scene with the GP. However, it was more Important to make it an efficient and effective 
system with minimal delays. Oxford had developed a very good system and was a good example of 
how to create single point of access and not wait for an hour on scene waiting for a GP to phone the 
crew back. This plan is being shared with the system to consider wider roll-out.  
 
Regarding the handover plan, the issue is reliance on hospitals and their ability to cohort patients, 
their capacity in Emergency Departments and flow in the hospital. The report would go to the systems 
that had capacity so they were aware of the winter plans. 
 
Henrietta Hughes considered whether SCAS could carry on sharing good examples of GP practises 
and through PCN clinical directors and ICS’, the COO reported that he would report back to the BOB 
forum. 
 
Finance  
Kish Sidhu reported that the debtors were rated as red as Month 5 bills had been raised. The bill for 
the Havant area had been paid and to get it to green would require resolving invoices with HIOW 
and some outstanding issues with national service  
 
HR  
Melanie Saunders presented the HR report and reported that compliance with appraisal was still red 
rated. The Trust is working hard to improve compliance but didn’t want to compromise on quality. 
999 service were doing well and were on trajectory to hit 85% by Christmas and then 95% end of 
financial year. PTS were also improving, and work was underway to support the contact centres to 
improve their compliance level. 
 
The Board noted the IPR. 
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22/57 – Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 
Professor Young presented the BAF and highlighted the changes made to the risks in relation to 
concerns around safeguarding and medical devices and equipment and discussions in the ability to 
deliver the demand which led to an increase in clinical governance risk.  
 
Recommendations on the Executive ownership of corporate risk is expected imminently and 
currently the Director of Strategy and Company Secretary had oversight of this area.  
 
Mike Hawker observed that huge improvements had been made although there is quite a bit still to 
do. He noted this is at the heart of the governance workstream, with emphasis on looking at how risk 
registers identify and measure risks, and how these are translated into the BAF. There is a 
requirement for the Board to review the BAF and satisfy itself that the strategic risks are captured 
accurately and mitigation was sufficient. The Chair confirmed that a Board session on risk is in the 
Board plan.  
 
Nigel Chapman noted that the risk related to IT resilience was rated 12 and had not changed 
particularly in light of the Adastra incident.  
 
Professor Young reported that these risks would be reviewed. The Director of Strategy and Business 
Development reported issues with Cleric system that used PTS and this also needed a review. The 
Director of Digital added that there were two combined risks one related, system failure which was 
13 and cyber risk rated at 24.  
 
Anne Stebbing reported that this had been discussed at Quality and Safety Committee as the 
business continuity plans took effect, and noted that she didn’t think the risk level would change in 
light of business continuity plan and mitigation.  
 
The Chair noted cyber risk is high on the national agenda and commented that the response from 
organisations varied and it was important to respond quickly to the national steers.  
 
The Director of Digital informed the Board that infrastructure was being impacted by global chip 
shortage which has delayed hardware coming in, hence the high level on risk.  
 
New Action 22/57 
Mike Murphy to review IT risk on BAF. 
 

 
The Board noted the Board Assurance Framework. 
 
22/58 – Financial Performance Report 
Kish Sidhu presented the Finance report and informed the Board that the financial position for the 
month of August was surplus of £5k, mainly due to non-recurring VAT being released and this had 
offset pressures in 999 for overtime and agency costs. The forecast was outturn was for a break-
even position, though there was a lot of non-recurring support which could increase spend next year. 
There was an increase in agency spend and this was expected to increase due to need to deliver 
CQC workstream. He suggested that there would be a need to engage with the system for support 
for CQC costs particularly in last quarter. Capital was forecasting a break-even position, there was 
a likely slippage of about 6K. The Trust’s cash balance at the end of August stood at £59, 092k.CIP 
was slightly ahead of plan but was expected to achieve the expected result. 
 
The Chair asked about the financial position in context of the global financial issues and the 
recession. The interim Chief Finance Officer reported that the Trust was in a relatively healthy 
position compared to other partners who were forecasting bigger deficits. M6 guidance would be 
released on how to make those forecasts and this would provide guidance in the system on how to 
tackle deficits.  
 
Mike Hawker noted the present financial position and also noted that the Board is required to review 
the financial strategy.  
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22/59 - Board Committee Upward Reports  

• People and Culture 
 
Ian Green reported that there have been two meetings since the last Board meeting. The meeting in 
in September, focused on red areas in IPR and CQC report and would continue to monitor progress 
against trajectories. The Committee had met three times since inception, at the fourth meeting, the 
Committee would self-assess to see how it was performing against the Terms of Reference. Any 
recommendations would come back to the Board and the Committee was keen to engage with 
Governor colleagues as observers.  
 

• Quality and Safety  
 
Anne Stebbing reported that at the most recent meeting in September, the Committee focused on a 
more in-depth discussion around the CQC improvement plan and to assure Governors. The 
Committee was working alongside the Improvement Board and Delivery Group and that is  allowing 
the Committee to seek assurance. The Committee agreed to look more closely at SI learning and 
would note in future upward reports.  
 

• Audit Committee  
 
Mike Hawker provided a verbal report from the meeting on 23 September. The Committee had 
discussed internal audit plan, and progress was going broadly in line with plan. The plan was 
dynamic and had been adjusted to accommodate emerging issues like safeguarding systems 
referral. The implementation of the 54 recommendations from the Collinson Grant review had also 
been reviewed as well as staff overtime. There was a requirement from the NHSE/I to carry out a 
financial stability audit a self-assessment and that would be reviewed by the internal auditors before 
the end of the year. 
 
One issue to had been raised by the internal audit and that was the high number recommendations 
that had not been implemented and it was agreed that if there is a lack of response to those then the 
Committee would invite the Executive’s to attend the next meeting and explain why.  
 
The Committee also reviewed the BAF and CRR and received an update from Fraud prevention 
team RSM. It was noted that the fraud risk was small level of activity e.g. staff working when they 
were sick. The Committee noted that the risks relating to stock losses was not on risk registers and 
this come out of work with Collinson Grant.  
 
The Board noted the Upward Reports.  
 
22/57 – National COVID Response Services (CRS) Update 
 
Professor Young presented the report and highlighted the increase of Autumn COVID booster work. 
Emerging issues included the negotiations to close off national pandemic flu services which were 
going back to UCSR by year end and the need to understand from Commissioners where COVID 
pass and booking vaccine would. The Trust had submitted a bid and due to hear the end of October 
if the Trust is the service provider they wish to work with.  
 
Professor Young added that the report into NHS England’s 111 pandemic would be publicly 
available. Members of COVID response Board had been sighted on issues of it. For the SCAS Board, 
recommendations aimed at NHSE and UCSR but had taken the learning for future pandemic 
responses.  
 
The Board noted the update.  
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PEOPLE, WELL-BEING AND LEADERSHIP 
 
22/58 – People Voice  
Melanie Saunders presented the report and reported that this work commenced in 2021. She drew 
the Board’s attention to all elements that captured feedback from staff and the need to develop a 
response back to staff. The Trust had moved forward from its annual staff survey and other work 
e.g. People Pulse. Work was underway to develop a dashboard to track all the information in a more 
coherent way. The annual staff survey was due to commence and was expecting emails to go to all 
staff, including bank staff for the first time. Melanie Saunders acknowledged that the Leadership 
Team were aware of the stress staff are under as a result of the improvement work underway and 
was pushing out wellbeing support to staff.  
 
Ian Green commented that this had been discussed in detail at the People and Culture Committee 
and welcomed the approach which would take the organisation further forward. The Committee had 
discussed financial wellbeing and financial resilience, the results of a questionnaire and wondered 
how the organisation could support in this aspect. In response to the questions, Melanie Saunders 
reported that there was a 15% response to the financial survey so the Trust was reviewing what was 
available under T&C’s and benefits in the NHS to help staff on a financial wellbeing to promote 
wellbeing. A paper would be presented to an Executive meeting. 
 
Nigel noted the inability for staff to talk to managers about general strategic and operational issues 
and asked what could done to include staff. Mike Hawker asked what had become of the ideas 
scheme as staff, had lots of good ideas but frustrated at them not being implemented. 
 
Melanie Saunders reported that time has been allocated for meeting with staff, however, each of the 
meetings were dependant on pressure. The Trust is also running staff webinars to speak to staff 
directly and keep them informed.  With regards to the bright ideas, Melanie Saunders undertook to 
discuss integrating this into the People Voice work.  
 
Henrietta Hughes comment this is a good step forward and it would be important to see how this 
would fit in with ‘Speak up, listen up, follow up’.  
 
The Board noted the People Voice Report.  
 
22/59 – Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy  
 
Dipen Rajyaguru joined the meeting for this item 
 
Melanie Saunders presented the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) Strategy and reported that 
September was a busy month as the Trust was required to  approve and publish WRES and WDES 
standard.   
 
The EDI Strategy is at the Board for approval, and had been through various reporting channels 
involving Board members. The strategy has gone through an extensive consultation process and 
also reflected feedback. 
 
Dipen Rajyaguru added that the EDI Strategy outlined the Trust’s ambitions, visions and goals as 
an organisation. It was a statutory document and was required to be published every year. The 
document also outlined the trust’s equality objectives published every four years and the plans for 
implementation . The objectives are; 

• Inclusive leadership 
• Our people-  governors and volunteers 
• Improved patient access 
• Improved patient outcomes.   

 
Progress with each of the objectives would be tracked and measured annually. 
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Ian Green thanked Dipen for his work and responding to all the feedback and commented that the 
document should include more robust targets, and firmer trajectories in the action plan, that would 
need to be revisited annually. This would showcase the Trust’s real ambition. However, he agreed 
that overall really good work had been done. 
 
Nigel Hawker commended the excellent piece of work and noted that it was good to have numeral 
targets in the improvement plan. He commented on the representation of BAME staff in leadership 
and pointed out that this was a challenge to focus on. Sumit Biswas agreed and added that the Board 
would need to get its priorities right in terms of what to do first.  
 
Kish Sidhu commended the good work and asked if there some areas that where the document did 
not go but should have. Dipen responded that the report had to be contained but had some 
achievable but ambitious targets. One of the areas is sexual safety, however, a separate programme 
is running for this. As the priorities were reviewed annually, this could be included as some point in 
the future. 
 
Melanie Saunders reported that the Strategy would be shared with community partners and would 
engage them on equality objectives, all feedback would be incorporated.  
 
The Board approved the EDI Strategy.  
 
22/60 – Workforce Race and Disability Equality Standards 2021/22 Annual Report  
 
Melanie Saunders presented the Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) and noted this is 
mandated through the NHS standard contract. 
 
Dipen Rajyaguru reported that progress was slow in implemented the standards although the Trust 
is faring better that most Trusts. 
 
Melanie Saunders noted the documents would be published on the website and would be monitored 
through the P&C Committee.  
 
The Board approved Workforce Race and Disability Equality Standards 2021/22 Annual 
Report for publication. 
 
22/59 - Freedom to Speak Up (FTSU) Report 
 
Melanie Saunders presented the report and informed the Board that from 1 October 2022, the FTSU 
would be moved to the Organisational Development function due to its significance of this as part of 
the People Voice work. The FTSU Guardian would still have a direct reporting line to the CEO. 
 
October was FTSU month and work was underway to develop the communications to promote this. 
 
The Trust had commissioned the support of experienced FTSU Guardian from a HIOW who was 
providing support on policies and guidance on FTSU. FTSU training was being rolled out and 
Melanie encouraged staff to complete the training.  
 
Les noted that the lack of promotional material for FTSU October month at the sites and encouraged 
that posters be displayed at every site.  
 
Henrietta thanked Melanie for the report, noting that feedback had been taken onboard. 
She highlighted the importance of messaging on the move for the function to OD. She also 
highlighted some of the techniques that could be used the promote the FTSU month. 
 
Nigel added that some Trusts had a more structured champion / support system and wondered 
whether the Trust could adopt something similar.  
 
Melanie reported that posters are being displayed across the Trust but invited NEDs to provide 
specific feedback on where that is not the case so she could rectify this.  
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Interviews are currently being held to augment the function and appoint a FTSU Deputy Guardian. 
Plans are also being explored regarding the development of FTSU Champions.   
 
The Board noted the FTSU Report.  
 
BUSINESS UPDATES – KEY ISSUES ONLY 
 
22/60 – Medical Director’s Report 
John Black reported on the following:  
 

• The progress with recruitment on two clinical trials and SCAS was leading on recruitment 
numbers 

• Another initiative with medical students in Southampton to join rapid response vehicles   
• Update on national heart campaign and initiatives to improve uptake in wider CPR training.  

 
The Board noted the Medical Directors Report.  
 
22/61 - Operations Report – 999, 111 and Other 
Paul reported that the Workforce management system is on track to go-live next month subject to 
assessment. A new converter had been developed for ambulance and these would increase legroom 
by about 8cm. These would be assessed once delivered.  
 
The Board noted the Operations Report.  
 
CLOSING BUSINESS 
 
22/62 – Any Other Business 
No other items of business were discussed. 
 
22/063 – Questions from Observers (relating to items on the agenda)  
 
Governor Loretta Light commented that she would be giving a talk to two patient information groups 
from local practices later that day and as part of this, she had invited a local CFR who will be taking 
a defib and resuscitation equipment for people to practise on. LL asked if the leadership of the BOB 
system had been discussed and whether this presented an additional risk for SCAS.  
 
In response, the Chair apprised the Board on the situation at BOB. The CEO leaving and the Medical 
Director had stepped in on an interim basis, while the ICB was waiting for a substantive appointment 
to be made. Kish Sidhu added that the Trust was in negotiations with the ICB on funding levels for 
SCAS, and would not expect change in leadership to affect those negotiations. The CEO added that 
there would be a tightening financial position as discussed earlier and a new leader had been 
announced for the system. 
 
Governor Frank Epstein commented on the longevity of the FIAT vehicle and the improvements for 
the sirens to be moved. Two concerns had been raised, one on the vehicles being 8cm longer and 
whether they met the requirements of tall and short staff members, and also that in the FIATs there 
was nowhere to store personal items.  
 
Paul Kempster reported that a survey would be done this year as well as staff feedback from the 
team that managed the fleet. He explained it is not easy to get the specification right to meet 
everybody’s needs but there had been some improvements in the latest generation of vehicles. The 
8cm was a re-design of bulkhead, it did not made the vehicle longer. The overall spec was consistent 
with national specification and the converters have done something with the design, not changed 
the space at the back but additional space in front.  
 
22/65 - Review of Meeting  
These were challenging times in terms of increase in demand and the Quality improvement 
programme to meet CQC requirements. 
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Commented on the Queen’s funeral and the 20-year staff awards, and staff had shown passion 
loyalty and expertise. The Ideas panel would be real opportunity for the Trust, and many commented 
on that. 
 
Gillian Hodgetts informed the Board of the positive feedback from the staff awards and the Chair 
commended the Board and Governors who were in attendance and encouraged members to attend 
futures award ceremonies. 
 
22/66 – Date and time of next meeting 
24th November 2022 on MS Teams 
 
 
 
Approved by: 
 
Chair (signature)……………………………………………… 
 
 
Date:…………………………………………… 
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No. Minute ref. Action Resp Date 
Raised 

Original 
Due Date 

Comments / Updates 

 
Board Meeting – 31 March 2022 
1.  Action 

21/127 
Workforce 
Race and 
Disability 
Equality 
Standards 
Update 

Melanie Saunders to arrange for the 
SCAS Board members to join other teams 
in undertaking unconscious bias training. 

MS 31/03/2022 February 
2023 

Action in-hand 
Melanie Saunders will be arranging a Board 
training session for early 2023, to include the 
two new NEDs the Trust hopes to appoint later 
this year. There is a plan for those Board 
members and Governors involved in the 
recruitment of the aforementioned new NEDs, 
and a new CEO, to receive training earlier. 
 
November Update: In Progress 
Melanie Saunders will be arranging a Board 
training session for early 2023, to include the 
two new NEDs the Trust hopes to appoint later 
this year. There is a plan for those Board 
members and Governors involved in the 
recruitment of the aforementioned new NEDs, 
and a new CEO, to receive training earlier.  In 
progress, as soon as start dates for new NEDs 
are confirmed we can establish appropriate 
date for Board training (suggest this is included 
in a Board Seminar session). 
 

Board Meeting – 26 May 2022 
2.  Action 

22/017 
Medical 
Director’s 
Report 

John Black to provide a summary, at an 
appropriate future meeting, of the key 
actions SCAS would be taking in 
response to the findings of the Ockenden 
Report. 

JB/HY 26/05/2022 December 
2022 

Action in-hand 
John Black has advised that the Trust is 
awaiting the recommendations of the UK 
Ambulance Services Maternity Leads Group 
and will provide a further update to the Board 
later in the year. In the meantime, the Trust is 
strengthening its connections with the Local 
Maternity and Neonatal Systems in its region 
(although the ambulance services are not 
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considered to be providers of maternity services 
in the context of Ockenden). 
 
November Update: 
We are still awaiting outputs from national 
midwifery leads. Engagement with LMNS 
continues. 
 

Board Meeting – 21 July 2022 
3.  Action 

 22/051 
 

The Chief Executive to update the Board 
on learning from the Adastra incident and 
measures taken to mitigate such an 
incident occurring again.  
 

WH 29/09/2022 Proposed 
Closure 

Action completed/Closed 
The Adastra incident is being reported in the 
Cyber Security update report. 

4.  Action  
22/054.1 
 

Professor Young to investigate the 
downward trend in clinical incidents 
reporting and report back to the Board.  
 

HY 29/09/2022 Proposed 
Closure 

Action completed/Closed 
Included in the Quality and Safety report. 

5.  Action 
22/056 
 

John Black to provide timelines for when 
the EPR software is expected to go live 
 

JB 29/09/2022 Proposed 
Closure 

Action Completed/closed 
ePR software update for pain scoring went live 
6.10.22.  
 

6.  Action 
22/057 
 

Review risk of IT risk on BAF MM 29/09/2022 Proposed 
Closure 

Action completed / closed 
Please see BAF report on agenda 

Board Meeting – 29 September 2022 
 
AP Aneel Pattni HY Professor Helen Young  JB John Black  MS Melanie Saunders 
PK Paul Kempster  ALL All Board Members SD Syma Dawson   
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BOARD REPORT SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Report title: 
 

Chair’s Report 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

44 

Executive Summary: 
 

I have undertaken a range of activities associated with my role as 
SCAS Chair since the previous Board meeting; see Appendix 1 for a 
sample of these. 
 

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the report. 
 

Executive lead: 
 

Professor Sir Keith Willett CBE, Chair 

Report author: 
 

Professor Sir Keith Willett CBE, Chair 

Previously 
considered by: 

N/A 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☒ 

Approve 
☐ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
N/A 
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

Not applicable 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Not applicable 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

Not applicable 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 
N/A 
List of Appendices: One 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING IN PUBLIC 24 NOVEMBER 2022 

CHAIR’S REPORT 

PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of my report to bring the Board up to date on key stakeholder developments and my 
personal activity on behalf of SCAS.  
 

APPENDIX 1 – SAMPLE OF ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN 

Activity Summary Notes 
 

Board of Directors • Chaired the Board meetings on 29 
September 

• Attended Quality and Safety Committee 
on 3 November  

• Chaired the Board Seminar on 20 
October  

 
 

The Board received a 
presentation from NHS 
Providers on Board 
responsibilities and duties, 
followed by two sessions 
led by NHSE regarding the 
Governance review and 
Integrated Performance 
Report.  

 
 

Council of 
Governors (CoG) 

• Chaired CoG meeting on the 6 October  
• Governors Briefing session on REAP 

levels 10 October  
• Chaired the CoG/Board workshop on 11 

October 
• Attended the Nominations Committee 

meetings on 10 October, 9 November 
and conducted NED interviews 2nd, 4th 
and 7th November 

• Chaired an extraordinary CoG meeting 
on 10 November.   
 

The extraordinary CoG on 
10 November 
considered a 
recommendation from the  
Nominations Committee 
regarding the  
appointment of new Non-
Executive  
Directors.  
 

Staff • Visited Didcot Resource Centre on 7 
November  

• Catch-up meetings with the Chief 
Executive and Interim Director of 
Corporate Governance and Company 
Secretary  

• CQC Improvement Oversight Board 
meetings every two weeks  

• Met and held discussion with Rachael 
Cook and spent time in Emergency 
Operation Centre (EOC) Bicester on 14 
September  

• Attended SCAS Long Service Awards 
on 28 September, 12 and 13 October   

• Attended the Operations Team Away 
Day on 3 October  

• Attended the Southern House on 2 
November to participate in the GP 
Trainee SCAS Experience session 
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Activity Summary Notes 
 

Meetings with other 
NHS organisations 
– Clinical 
Commissioning 
Groups/providers 

• Attended the NHS England South East 
Regional Leadership event on 6 October 

• Chaired AACE Council 9th November 
• Joined NHS Provider's round table on 

Talent Management 7th November 
• Working dinner with BLMK ICB leaders 

and chairs 9th November 
• Contributed to NHSE/HEE roadshow on 

Delivering Future Workforce 10th 
October. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

Chief Executive’s Report 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

45 

Executive Summary: 
 

The report aims to highlight some of the biggest current risks faced by 

SCAS and provide assurance as to how these are being managed. 

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the report 

Executive lead: 
 

Will Hancock, Chief Executive 

Report author: 
 

Will Hancock, Chief Executive 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

N/A 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☒ 

Approve 
☐ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
N/A 
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

Not applicable 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Not applicable 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

Not applicable 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
N/A 
List of Appendices: N/A 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING IN PUBLIC 24 November 2022 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT  
 
PURPOSE 

 
1. The purpose of my report is to keep the Board abreast of key issues and developments.  
 

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY / TOP THREE ISSUES FOR BOARD ATTENTION 
 
2. Three key issues I would like to highlight are: 
 

• Following a huge amount of improvement work right across the Organisation we are in 
the final stages of phase one of our improvement programme which will see us complete 
the ‘Must Do’ actions from our last CQC Inspection.  We will seek to achieve independent 
assurance and sign off of this milestone so all of our staff, partners and stakeholders can 
have confidence in this progress.  This will also enable us to move on to phase two which 
will focus on delivering our vision – To be an outstanding team, innovating and partnering 
to deliver world leading outcomes for our patients.  Later on the agenda for this meeting 
is the Corporate Governance Strategic Plan 2022-24 for Board approval setting out how 
we will ensure our Governance will keep pace with our strategic ambition. 
 

• We are approaching winter and potential Industrial Action and we continue to work hard 
to deliver the safest and most effective care possible to all of our patients.  In addition to 
the internal focus we also work extensively with partner organisations to ensure a 
seamless experience for our patients and reduce delays which impact on capacity and 
safety. 

 
• Freedom to Speak Up (FTSU) Month: October once again saw the deployment of our 

‘Speakupulance’ as part of our FTSU month and I was delighted to join our FTSU 
Guardian, Simon Holbrook, on some of his visits. Section 7 of this report explains in 
further detail the incredible effort made by Simon to promote this campaign which has 
been a great success thanks to Simon’s commitment and dedication.  

 
NATIONAL AND POLITICAL CONTEXT 

 
3. New NHS England Operating Framework 
 

On 12 October 2022, NHS England published a new operating framework which sets out how 
the NHS will operate in the new structure created by the 2022 Health and Care Act.  
 
The Health and Care Act formally established integrated care systems (ICSs) on a statutory 
basis, enabling local systems to plan and deliver health and care services more effectively. 
The new operating framework sets out the roles that NHS England, ICSs and providers will 
now play in the new structure. It describes how we would like to work together and shows how 
accountabilities and responsibilities will work. 
 
Integrated care boards (ICBs) will provide effective system leadership which balances 
immediate and longer-term priorities. They will work with providers, local authorities and other 
partners to create local integrated care strategies, and deliver joint five-year forward plans for 
their system. 
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4. NHS England consultations  
 

NHS England developed and consulted on three governance-related documents: 

• An updated code of governance for NHS provider trusts that sets out an overarching 
framework for the corporate governance of trusts, reflecting developments in UK 
corporate governance and the introduction of ICSs. 

• An addendum to the existing guide to the duties of NHS foundation trust governors that 
covers the impact of system working on how councils of governors should undertake their 
role in holding non-executive directors to account. 

• New guidance on good governance and collaboration that links effective collaboration with 
the foundation trust governance condition in the NHS provider licence. 

 
The consultations ran for six weeks between 27 May and 8 July 2022. NHSE have confirmed 
that the new Code of Governance will ‘go live’ from 1 April 2023; final versions of all three 
documents can be accessed via the NHSE website. The Trust will review the final documents 
and plan accordingly, incorporating key changes into the Corporate Governance Strategic 
Plan.  

 
5. Going Further on Winter Resilience Plans  
 

On the 18th October, NHSE sent a letter to Chief Executives and Chairs of NHS Provider 
Trusts and ICBs setting out plans to go further on Winter Resilience Plans by ensuring the 
NHS can: 
 
• Better support people in the community – reducing pressures on general practice and 

social care and reducing admissions to hospital.  
 

• Deliver on our ambitions to maximise bed capacity and support ambulance services – bed 
occupancy continues to be at all-time highs, and we need to take all opportunities to make 
maximum use of physical and virtual ward capacity to increase resilience and reduce 
delays elsewhere in the system. This includes:  
 Supporting delivery of additional beds including previously moth-balled beds  
 All systems setting up a 24/7 System Control Centre to support system oversight 

and decision making based on demand and capacity across sites and settings  
 Ensuring all ambulance services deploy 24/7 mental health professionals in 

emergency operation centres and on-scene. 
 
• Ensure timely discharge and support people to leave hospital when clinically appropriate.  

 
The full letter can be accessed via the link provided in the reference section at the end of this 
report.   
 

 
6. UK Covid-19 Inquiry opens investigation into the impact of the pandemic on healthcare  
 

On the 8 November 2022, the UK Covid-19 Inquiry opened its investigation to examine the 
consequences for healthcare of the response to the pandemic. This is the third module of the 
inquiry, focusing on how the healthcare systems responded, the impact on systems and 
services, including on patients, doctors, nurses and other healthcare staff. In this module, the 
inquiry will examine the capacity of healthcare systems to respond to a pandemic, and how 
this evolved during the pandemic. It will consider the primary, secondary and tertiary healthcare 
sectors and services and people’s experience of healthcare during the pandemic, including 
through illustrative accounts. Module 3 will also examine healthcare-related inequalities 
however, no date has yet been set for the preliminary hearings for module 3. 
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7. Changes in the Political Landscape  
 

On the 25th October, Rishi Sunak became the third Prime Minister of 2022. In his government 
reshuffle, Jeremy Hunt remained Chancellor and Steve Barclay has been re-appointed as 
Secretary of State for Health and Social Care.  
 
Whilst we remain focused on our CQC Improvement Programme and delivering our Strategy, 
working with system partners to deliver the best possible service to patients, we are mindful of 
the changing political landscape and how this may impact NHS policy going forward.  

 
WITHIN SCAS 

 
8. Freedom to Speak Up (FTSU) month 2022  
 

October once again saw the deployment of our ‘Speakupulance’ as part of our FTSU month 
and I was delighted to join our FTSU Guardian, Simon Holbrook, on some of his visits.  
 
Simon has made an incredible effort to get out and about in order to raise awareness of 
about FTSU as he undertook: 

• 21 visits across services and footprint, 10 were collaborative and 2 in shared locations 
• Over 750 conversations and over 850 ‘packs’ distributed (a pack can include; H&WB 

door opener, FTSU sticker and Z card, Haribo Goldbears or box of raisins and latterly 
pocket pack of Clinell wipes).  

 
I was delighted to hear that other SCAS representatives were also involved including Chief 
People Officer, Head of ED&I, Patient Safety leads.  

 
There were also FTSU themed online events which included: 

• SCAS Leadership webinar, Supported by AD Organisational development 
• A SCAS Directorate meeting, Supported by AD Organisational development 
• All staff webinar, supported by Trust Chair and FTSU NED lead, CEO, FTSU Exec lead 
• The FTSU Guardian also attended the SCAS Civility training during the Speak Up for 

Civility week. 
 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank Simon for his commitment and dedication in 
promoting FTSU month, particularly on behalf of the staff he has reached out to as part of 
this successful campaign.   

9. Increased Board and Governor visibility  

I am pleased to report that Board members and Governors have significantly increased efforts 
to be more visible in the organisation; an important action raised by the CQC. Governors have 
re-commenced their ride-outs and likewise, Non-Executive Directors have also undertaken 
various walkabouts. Both Governors and Board members provide feedback on their ride outs 
/ walkabouts as part of the leadership engagement programme.  
 
On the Executive side, the Team continue to hold meetings, events and site-visits across the 
patch and it was particularly great to host our Executive Away Day in-person at the Whiteley 
Education Centre. As well as being in the office at HQ, I have personally enjoyed visiting many 
sites and particularly those currently undergoing upgrading works like Stoke Mandeville.  

 
10. Long Service Awards  
 

I was delighted to attend three Long Service events for staff who were eligible for one of the 
last Queen’s long service medals, or the SCAS long service medal for 20 years in the NHS or 
indeed for both. The event at Silchester Farm was a great success as it involved three different 
representatives from the Lieutenancy Office and more than two hundred recipients and their 
guests; the three events proved to be very well received. The SCAS Communications Team 
did an excellent job in hosting the events and we look forward to hosting more in future.  
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11. Operational and financial performance 
 
REAP levels 
 
On the 11th October, we moved to Resource Escalation Action Plan (REAP) Level 4 (Extreme 
Pressure) however, in light of operational improvements the Trust lowered back to Level 3 on the 9th 
November 2022.  The reason for this is due to our improved ability to be able to get to our patients 
quicker than we have been able to in the past month.  This is in addition to more staff being available 
to attend emergency calls leading to improved utilisation. 

 
Despite the lowering of our REAP level, the picture still remains challenging, with pressure across 
the NHS which is continuing to lead to the delayed handover of our patients into the care of the 
hospitals.  We are continuing to work with our partners across the SCAS area to ensure that we work 
together to improve this for the benefit of our staff and patients. 
 
Operational  
 
As shown in the latest Integrated Performance Report, and in common with other ambulance trusts, 
this continues to be an extremely challenging time for everyone across SCAS. We are continuing to 
struggle to deliver the levels of service performance we would like. We delivered a slight 
improvement in our Cat 1 performance in October. Our mean average performance on Cat, 2, 3 and 
4 measures were also better than the national averages. While we are falling short on the national 
999 response time standards, we remain in the top quartile of performance amongst other 
ambulance services. 
 
Hospital Handover delays have remained a significant challenge in October with us losing 5,497 
hours across all sites, with 1,692 over 1 hour delays.  Queen Alexandra Hospital (QAH) remains 
the most challenged hospital with us losing 2,764 hours at this hospital.  Our revised hospital 
handover plan has now been shared with all system partners and we will be implementing our 30 
minute handover process if we are under pressure to release ambulances from the hospital queue. 
We recognise that this will not be possible at the QA. 
 
Contact centre performance is still being impacted by vacancies and the duplicate calls in 999 
which occur when we have handover delays and long waits. 
 
A Performance Recovery Delivery Group has been established to oversee our improvement work in 
this area.  
 
Financial  
 
Our financial performance for month 7 remains broadly in line with the planned breakeven level. 
Our overall year to date financial position for performance reporting is a £62k deficit against the 
breakeven plan. 
  
12. Executive Team update 
 

 I would like to welcome Aneel Pattni to his first formal Board meeting as our new Chief Finance 
Officer. Aneel joined us in October and has significant NHS finance experience including senior roles 
in Buckinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust, Barts Health NHS Trust, Royal Free London NHS 
Foundation Trust, NHS London, and Monitor. In turn, I would like to take this opportunity to express 
my thanks to Kish Sidhu, Interim Chief Finance Officer, for supporting us during the transition period 
following the departure of our Director of Finance Charles Porter. 

 
 
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 
Thank you so much to everyone across SCAS, staff and volunteers, for your hard work and 
dedication to the care of our patients and each other.  Everyone plays an important role, whether 
directly through frontline services and Clinical Coordination Centres or indirectly through the many 
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and varied teams across SCAS, in ensuring we can continue to deliver our services for the benefit 
of our patients, staff and volunteers. 
 
 
The Board is asked to note the report.  
 
 
END OF REPORT     
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

CQC Update 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

46 

Executive Summary: 
 

To provide a verbal update 

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the update 

Executive lead: 
 

Mike Murphy 

Report author: 
 

Mike Murphy 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☒ 

Approve 
☐ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
N/A 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

All strategic objectives 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

All BAF risks 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

All Quality Domains 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 
To continue the work of the Improvement Programme 
List of Appendices: 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

SCAS Staff Story 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

47 

Executive Summary: 
 

Davina started at SCAS (and formerly RBAT) in 1998 working in 
numerous roles, moving to frontline in November 2005 as an 
Emergency Services Care Assistant. Since then, Davina has had 
numerous frontline positions in Bracknell and the Events team including 
ECA and Technician. 

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the staff story and reflect on lessons 
learned. 

Executive lead: 
 

Melanie Saunders 

Report author: 
 

Davina Lally 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

N/A 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☒ 

Approve 
☐ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☒ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of 
confidence in delivery 
of existing 
mechanisms / 
objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / 
objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / 
objectives 

No confidence in 
delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
N/A 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

All strategic objectives 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Risk 3 - Culture and staff experience 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

All Quality Domains 
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Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 

• Review communication regarding staff welfare & support, ensure we reach our workforce 
with these messages.  

• Ensure managers understand what can be offered and give them time to catch up with 
team regularly for check-ins 
 
 

List of Appendices:  Presentation 
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PUBLIC TRUST BOARD PAPER  
 

Title SCAS Staff Story 
Author Davina Lally 
Responsible 
Director 

Melanie Saunders 

Date 10.11.2022 
 
1. Purpose  
 

• Hear the story of a frontline worker affected by mental health issues  
• Understand the importance of early intervention 
• Remove the stigmas about mental health 
• Understand the impact that workload and demand can have on employees 
• Understand the importance of supportive management 

 
2. Executive Summary 
 
Davina started at SCAS (and formerly RBAT) in 1998 working in numerous roles, moving to 
frontline in November 2005 as an Emergency Services Care Assistant. Since then, Davina has had 
numerous frontline positions in Bracknell and the Events team including ECA and Technician. In 
December 2020, she reached out for help as she got to a point where she was struggling to get out 
of bed each day. Having previously had support for PTSD, she was able to recognise that things 
weren’t right and needed support but wasn’t really sure where to go.  
 
Fortunately, the manager she reached out to was incredibly knowledgeable on where to go and 
she received an immediate referral to Psych Health, and subsequent treatment through them was, 
and continues to be, supported by SCAS. As a result of her ongoing mental health concerns, 
Davina recognised (and it was confirmed by medical professionals) that she would no longer be 
able to work in a frontline role and she should look at alternatives. Davina is now working as HR 
Administrator following a redeployment process.  
 
Davina is able to feedback the positive experience she had with Psych Health, early intervention 
and the redeployment process but will also be able to add first hand experience of how burnout 
can happen and identify some areas for improvement.  
 
3. Recommendations 
 
The Trust Board is asked to note the staff story and reflect on lessons learned. 

 
Name and Title of Author: Davina Lally, Emergency Care Assistant - Events 
Date: 10th November 2022 
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APPENDIX ONE - PRESENTATION 
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Patient / Staff Stories 
Davina Lally



Executive Summary 

Davina started at SCAS in 1998 working in numerous roles, 
moving to frontline in November 2005 as an Emergency Services 
Care Assistant. Since then Davina has had numerous frontline 
positions in Bracknell and the Events team including ECA and 
Technician. 
In December 2020, she reached out for help as she got to a point 
where she was struggling to get out of bed. Having previously 
had support for PTSD, she was able to recognise that things 
weren’t right and needed support. 
Following a period of absence and treatment, Davina was 
redeployed and is now working as HR Administrator.



This story provides an 
important opportunity to:

• Hear the story of a frontline worker affected by mental health 
issues which resulted in various disorders

• Understand the importance of early intervention
• Remove the stigmas about mental health
• Understand the impact that workload and demand can have on 

employees
• Understand the importance of supportive management



What worked well?

• Early intervention worked well but was only made possible as 
Davina recognised the need for help and reached out to 
someone with the knowledge and influence necessary to help

• Improvements in mental health support available to employees 
– increased variety and improved timescales for access

• Some supportive managers and colleagues
• Generous sick pay scheme – removes some financial worry



What didn’t work so well? 

• Capability/Sickness – the way conversations/meetings are held 
(value of welfare checks, language used, formality of 
processes) – particularly when feeling vulnerable

• Communications – getting messages out to all staff
• Workload/Demand – no time to decompress; expectation that 

downtime needs to be used for ‘work’ (i.e. checking 
emails/catching up on e-learning/reading clinical directives etc) 
and not using the time to relax and mentally process jobs

• Providing and protecting mealbreaks for the purpose they are 
intended for



Reflection post incident

• Better access to online mental health support/signposting via 
ipads/technology

• Improved communication on getting messages out
• Training – recognising the signs of burnout/other mental health 

concerns for early intervention – some managers/colleagues 
more knowledgeable than others



Key risk arising from this 
incident 

• Burnout is a huge issue and we need to consider how we 
prevent it in the first place not just trying to ‘fix’ people once 
affected

• Retention – employees leaving as a result of the mental / 
physical burdens



Escalation route to SCAS 
system partners 

• GP support/wider mental health support external to SCAS can 
be very sporadic and inconsistent, which puts more pressure on 
the internal support available



Recommendation and next 
steps

• Review communication – think about how we can get messages 
out to all employees effectively

• Change the mindset about mental health
• Ensure managers understand what can be offered and give 

them time to catch up with team regularly for check-ins



Thank you
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

Quality & Patient Safety Report 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

48 

Executive Summary: 
 

1. The Trust remains under the warning of enforcement from the 
CQC, so all the work described in the patient safety improvement 
plan is important but the areas that currently present the highest 
risk to patients are the management of medical devices and 
equipment and safeguarding. These areas are being managed 
and mitigated and are reflected in the corporate risk register and 
Board Assurance Framework (BAF).    
 

2. Management of Medical Devices  
Work continues to deliver the actions resulting from the thematic 
review of Zoll defibrillators, including rolling out the availability of 
secondary devices (AEDs) being placed in operational vehicles. 
This process had been delayed due to availability of stock. It is 
anticipated that 10% of the stock will be available at the end of 
November 2022. The deployment of a single therapy cable is now 
complete. Zoll software has been updated and further training 
has been developed and disseminated to staff. 
Additional checks have been added to Make Ready processes. 
The audit of devices is due to be complete the week ending 11 
November 2022. 
 

3. Safeguarding Key Actions,   
Safeguarding referrals are managed through the DocWorks 
system.  As a result of server outages and several system 
failures safeguarding referrals were delayed. Mitigation is now 
in place, comprehensive investigations completed, and 
recommendations will be monitored through the Safeguarding 
Improvement Plan.  
 
Level 3 Safeguarding Training is now available across multiple 
channels to enable as many eligible staff as possible to attend. 
A training trajectory has been developed to map monthly 
progress against the year-end target. This will be monitored 
through Safeguarding Committee. 
 
The Safeguarding Strategy and key policies have been 
amended and approved and will be launched at the end of 
November 2022. 
 

4. Incident Management and Learning 
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Serious Incident Management Policy has been approved and 
due to be launched at the end of November 2022. 
Changes have been made to Datix to reflect the NLRS harm 
descriptors which will allow for more accurate benchmarking. 
 

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to: Receive the paper and note the following 
key quality and patient safety issues; 
 

Executive lead: 
 

Professor Helen Young Executive Director of Patient Care and Service 
Transformation/ Chief Nurse 

Report author: 
 

Sue Heyes Interim Director of Nursing/ Deputy Chief Nurse 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

Patient Safety Group  

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☒ 

Approve 
☐ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
 
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

All strategic objectives 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Risk 1 - Poor clinical governance and 
practices 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

All Quality Domains 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 
The recommendations inform the Patient Safety Improvement Plan and will be monitored 
through Patient Safety Group and Quality & Safety Committee. 
List of Appendices: 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

PUBLIC TRUST BOARD PAPER  
 

Title Quality & Patient Safety Report  
Author Assistant Director of Quality 
Responsible 
Director 

Professor Helen Young 
Executive Director of Patient Care and Service Transformation/Chief 
Nurse 

Date November 2022 
 
1. Purpose  
 
The purpose of the paper is to provide the Board with information, updates, and assurance 
on progress with work to support the delivery of safe, effective clinical care for our patients 
and staff. 
 
The paper covers the reporting period M5-M6, highlights risks issues and mitigations which 
are reflected in the corporate Risk Register, Integrated Performance Report (IPR) and 
Board Assurance Framework (BAF). The information provided within the paper 
demonstrates evidence of compliance against Care Quality Commission (CQC) regulations 
where appropriate 
 
2. Executive Summary 
 

1. Following receipt of the Warning of Enforcement Notice (Section 29a) and CQC Well 
Led Inspection Report the Trust continues to work on the required patient safety 
improvements. These improvements are described in the Patient Safety 
Improvement Plan. The plan is divided in to specific workstreams covering;  

• Safeguarding  
• Patient safety and experience  
• Management of medical devices and equipment  
• Medicines management  
• Infection Prevention and Control (IPC).  

 
The Trust remains under the warning of enforcement from the CQC, so all the work 
described in the patient safety improvement plan is important but the areas that 
currently present the highest risk to patients are the management of medical 
devices and equipment and safeguarding. These areas are being managed and 
mitigated and are reflected in the corporate risk register and Board Assurance 
Framework (BAF).    
 

2. Safeguarding Key Actions:  
 
Safeguarding improvements are described in the Safeguarding Improvement Plan, 
which is monitored weekly through the Executive Management Committee, the 



Safeguarding Committee, Patient Improvement Delivery Group and the NHSE/ICS 
Oversight and Scrutiny group.  
 
 
Referral System Risk 
 
Safeguarding referrals are managed through the DocWorks system. Because of 
several historic server outages and system failures, a large number of safeguarding 
referrals were delayed creating a backlog.  This posed a significant risk to the 
organisation and the potential for at risk children and vulnerable adults not being 
protected. Comprehensive investigations have been conducted and a Serious 
Incident declared. The occurrence of server failure and consequential back log of 
cases remains a HIGH risk for the organisation and immediate actions have been 
implemented to mitigate and manage this risk. These includes read receipts being 
generated, implementation of a referral progress dashboard for oversight of all held 
referrals and additional DocsWork training provided to the Safeguarding Team.  
 
A technical assessment report was compiled by a senior Trust IM & T Business 
Manager and presented to Executives on the 8 November 2022. This report 
highlighted weakness in the technical management and support of the app and server 
and has resulted in a recommendation that SCAS seeks a hosted and fully managed 
service for the SG application. This option is now being scoped out by the ICT 
Director. The findings in the technical report supported recommendations in the audit 
report by BDO.   
 
Staffing 
 

The Associate Director of SG, Mental Health, and Complex Care has now 
commenced in post. Several other appointments have also been made, including the 
SG named professionals. The SG team structure has been significantly enhanced 
and fully funded since the CQC feedback and the roles are currently covered with a 
mix of interim staff and the remaining members of the permanent SG team.   
 
SG Policies 
The SG strategy and key policies have been re-written and received by the SG 
Committee. The policies will be launched across the Trust in the coming weeks as 
part of a communication strategy that will focus on the role and function of the 
Safeguarding Team.  
 
Governance 
The Quality and Safety Committee (Q&S) receives upward reports from the Safe 
Guarding Committee and the SG NED and Chair of Q&S Committee attends the SG 
Committee. SG risks and mitigations are described through the SG risk register, 
corporate risk register and reflected in the BAF.            
 
 
SG Training 
Level 3 SG training is now available across multiple channels to enable as many 
eligible staff as possible to attend. A SG training trajectory has been developed to 
map monthly progress against the year-end target.  
 
 
 



Medical Equipment and Devices Management Key Actions:  
 
Work continues on actions resulting from the thematic review of Zoll defibrillators, 
including rolling out the availability of secondary devices (AEDs) being placed in 
operational vehicles. As highlighted in the previous Board paper this process has 
been delayed due to availability of stock. It is anticipated that 10% of the stock will be 
available at the end of November 2022. The deployment of a single therapy cable is 
now complete. 
 
The Zoll software has been updated and has been trialled and approved through 
CRG for roll out. A training package has been created including video guidance and 
reporting information. There is an additional e-learning module in development to 
ensure staff are competent in its use and that additional training is documented. This 
is due for release in December 2022 
 
Additional checks have been added to Make Ready processes for Zoll devices and 
additional guidance sent to all staff and make read operatives on the checking 
process. Additional guidance is available through a QR code to support staff with 
completion and recording daily checks of key equipment on operational vehicles.  
 
Following the Collinson and Grant review, progress has been made in the following 
areas: 

• Zoll maintenance contract- development of KPIS’s and regular performance 
reviews 

• Churchill Contract Review- development of additional KPIS’s and monitoring.  
• The creation of a contract management process for third party providers 

 
The clinical directorate is supporting the Operations Directorate in both the audit and 
the ongoing monitoring of medical devices equipment. This audit is due to be 
complete w/e 11 November 2022.  This risk has been described in the corporate risk 
register and reflected in the BAF.       
 

Patient Experience  
 
During the reporting period The Trust received 131 new formal complaints, 120 
informal concerns and 344 HCP feedback requests during the reporting period. Trust 
wide we saw a 5% decrease in the total number of PE contacts raised (595) when 
compared with the previous two months (624).  In the same period last year, the trust 
received 740. 
 
There has been a significant decrease in the percentage of cases raised regarding 
Staff Attitude & Communication which could be attributed to the roll out of the Trust’s 
Civility Matters work.  
 
Formal complaints performance to target achieved in September with 96% against a 
target of 95%.  
 

Incident Management and Learning 
 
During the reporting period, the Trust has demonstrated improvements against the 
areas outlined in the Patient Safety Improvement Plan. This includes the development 
of a new Serious Incident Management Policy which is due for publication at the end 
of November 2022.  



 
A redesigned weekly Incident Review Panel with membership from system partners 
has commenced. This allows learning to be identified and disseminated in a timely 
manner. 
Since its introduction of the panel the reporting of Serious Incidents (SI’s) has 
increased from the previous year from 3 to 9 during the same reporting period. The 
top theme remains the same- delays to treatment and care.  
 
Following feedback from system users, amendments have been made to the Datix 
incident reporting system. The harm descriptors have been changes to reflect the 
NLRS harm descriptors. This will allow the Trust to undertake benchmarking with 
other providers at the end of Q4. This action has been identified following 
engagement with staff, as part of the programme of work currently being developed to 
improve the safety culture. 
 

      KEY ISSUES – COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY ISSUES  
 

Care Quality Committee 
 

3. Following the publication of the most recent CQC inspection an improvement plan for 
the must do, should actions and section 29a, were submitted by the deadline date of 
26 September 2022. 
 

4. An improvement programme had been developed prior to the report publication as 
there were immediate improvement actions required. The wider improvement plan 
covers core workstreams: Governance, Patient Safety, People and Culture (includes 
staff wellbeing) and Performance Recovery. 
 

5. Improvements are described in the Patient Safety Improvement Plan. The plan is 
divided in to specific workstreams covering safeguarding, patient safety and 
experience, management of medical devices and equipment, medicines management 
and Infection Prevention and Control (IPC).  
 

Infection, Prevention & Control (IPC)  
 

6. The IPC improvement workstream, against the CQC “should” action has met weekly 
reporting to the Patient Safety Delivery group with evidence and assurance of 
actions.  
 

7. The total number of hand hygiene audits year to date is 1651 against a trajectory of 
2010, showing an upward trend against plan. All hand hygiene audits completed were 
100% compliant, work is in progress regarding peer review audits to ensure 
consistency. 
 

8. Audit data for cleaning of vehicles is on plan trust wide at 91% but shows as behind 
plan in EUC services. This has been raised with the relevant EUC leadership, as we 
are unable to assure the required cleanliness of vehicles without this data. The audits 
that have been completed show good compliance. It should be noted that PTS are 
ahead of plan and to be commended for their work in this area. The IPC agenda in 
PTS is “owned” by the Team leaders who are actively engaged in promoting and 
completing the audits. Sharing good practice with their EUC colleagues is being 
encouraged by the IPC team.        
 



9. Audit data for premises/buildings is 232 in October 2022 against a trajectory of 294 
which fluctuates month on month. The building and premises audits have been 
revised to align with updated National Cleaning Standards. An audit assurance peer 
review process will be implemented in Q4 to provide additional scrutiny.  

 
10. The IPC and Estates team have undertaken spot check building site audits with the 

focus on identifying any new infestations Netting and spikes are in place where 
required and the trust continues to work with a specialist contractor to eradicate pests. 
The site inspections covered 23 major resource centres across the SCAS footprint. 
No new infestations were found.  
 

11. SCAS have benchmarked IPC resources with other sector services and have 
approval to increase the team capacity to include further IPC Specialists and Audit 
Practitioners.  
 

12. The development of trust wide IPC Link Practitioner roles has been agreed with 
service leads. This is for three hours per month in line with the Team Leader role 
description responsibilities. The purpose is to lead improvements at local level, action 
implementation from vehicle/buildings audits and improve local compliance with audit 
numbers.  
 

13. The Director of Infection Prevention and Control (DIPC) Annual Report and workplan 
was received and approved at the IPC Committee in September 2022.  

 
Patient Safety & Experience Workstream 
 

14. The patient safety and experience workstream plan has 47 actions agreed to address 
the Section 29a and CQC must and should do actions. The current position is: 42 are 
closed and 5 are in progress. 
 

15. Two of the actions in progress relate to the roll out of Health Education England 
Patient Safety E-Learning Modules. Modules 1 and 2 are now live on the learning 
platform but are not mandatory. Further information is being provided to Workforce 
Development Board for consideration as a mandatory requirement through a training 
needs analysis approach. 

 
16. A further action in progress relates to the development of an assurance process for 

the dissemination of local, sector and system learning. The other two actions relate to 
the communication plan and launch of the Serious Incident and new Incident 
Management Policy. 
 

17. Completed actions include new terms of reference for Incident Review Panels, 
learning from experience report, development of the patient safety staff hub page and 
a safety newsletter. 

 
Medicine Management Workstream 
 

18. The medicine management workstream plan has 24 actions, with 23 completed and 
one in progress. The completed actions include an analgesia audit, training slide 
update and medicines memorandum concerning analgesia. 

 
19. The remaining action is the development and completion of an education needs 

analysis which is currently being reviewed by pharmacy and education colleagues. 



 
Medical Devices Workstream 
 

20. Work continues to deliver the actions within the Patient Safety improvement plan. 
Improvements in the maintenance and governance of medical devices continues and 
is formally overseen at the newly developed Medical Device Review Group. This has 
oversight of the medical device audit which is due to complete by 12 Nov 2022.  Zoll 
devices have been prioritised to ensure compliance with pre planned maintenance 
schedules. Additional work is in progress with Make Ready to create a tracking 
system for Zoll devices to ensure improvements are embedded. This risk remains on 
the Corporate Risk Register and reflected in the BAF. 
           

21. The roll out of secondary devices (AEDs) has been delayed due to extended lead 
times with 10% expected by the end of November 2022.  Additional checks have 
been added to Make Ready processes for Zoll devices and additional guidance sent 
to all staff and make read operatives on the checking process. Additional guidance is 
available through a QR code to support staff with completion and recording daily 
checks of key equipment on operational vehicles.  
 

22. The organisation continues to work with an external consultancy to procure a system 
for the effective contract management of third-party providers. A review of the 
operational support services structures to meet organisational need is currently in 
progress.  

 
Safeguarding Workstream 
 

23. The Safeguarding Improvement Plan has 80 actions, of which 42 are closed, 20 in 
progress,18 are overdue. All overdue actions relate to policies which are to be ratified 
and by the end of November and then launched. The delay was due to additional 
feedback received from partners following the original consultation process. 

 
24. Completed actions include, re-establishment of the Safeguarding Committee, 

established SG sub-groups, developed TOR’s and meetings scheduled  
Development of a Safeguarding Dashboard  
Safeguarding learning and training standard operating procedure developed including 
a revised training requirement matrix.  

 
25. The newly appointed Associate Director of Safeguarding has now commenced in post 

and is appointing into vacant positions within the team. The SG professionals (8a) 
have been appointed and interviews for the SG band 7 roles was completed in 
second week of November. Interim staff continue to support the AD with operational 
and professional SG requirements until the new staff are in post.     
 



 
KEY ISSUES – CLINICAL INCIDENTS 
 

26. Clinical incident reporting has remained stable over the reporting period. Patient 
treatment/care and delay remain the top two categories. Following feedback from 
front line staff the functionality has now been reviewed and amendments made to 
make it more user friendly and less complicated to report issues. 

27. The harm descriptors in Datix have been amended to clearly align with NRLS harm 
categories so the Trust can benchmark accurately. 

 
Trust Wide Incident Reporting 

  Clinical Non-Clinical  

June 324 232 

July 346 286 

August 380 281 

September 383 231 

 
EOC 

 
EOC reporting of incidents is outlined in the table below. Fluctuating REAP levels 
may affect incidents in the emergency call centre function. 

 

  Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Total 
None 41 20 31 41 133 
Low 6 5 10 8 29 
Moderate 3 1 1 3 8 
Severe 3 1 3 1 8 
Death 9 3 6 8 26 
Total 62 30 51 61 204 
      

  
A review of a sample of these records provides the following investigation outcome 
summaries: 
 
• Safeguarding forms completed in a more timely and consistent manner 
• Ongoing monitoring of call response times 
• Meetings and reflective practice with staff undertaken where required for 

individual guidance 
• Alerts applied on iCAD for abusive patients 
• Translator delays with Language Line are being addressed with a task and finish 

group and expected to make recommendations to contractors to make 
improvements in Q4 and beyond. 



28. The top three reported incident categories across both EOCs during the reporting 
period were delay, patient treatment and non-attendance. 

29. The delayed responses to Fallers Task and Finish Group continues to progress the 
launch of dedicated falls cars staffed with enhanced Community Responders and 
an update paper will be prepared for Clinical Review Group in December 2022. 

30. Two EOC SOPs have been updated during the reporting period as a result of learning 
from incidents:  SOP 2-8: Incoming Call Demand Management Process – Updated to 
ensure Aspirin advice for ACS patients in included in the exclusion criteria for stage 2 
call demand when care instructions are reduced. SOP 2-9 Care Line / Remote 
Observer Calls – updated to include additional information in the flow process which 
instructs ECTs to consider use of the careline loudspeaker function to undertake 
triage prior to selecting early exit. 

 
E&UC/999 

31. There was an increase (12%) of clinical incidents during the reporting period when 
compared to the previous two months. This reflects the pressures that the service is 
still experiencing, which could be attributed to an increased recording of lost unit 
hours at some acute trusts.  

32. The top reported categories for clinical incidents during the reporting period were 
patient treatment / care (263) and delay (197). Risk grading for clinical incidents 
remains low with most incidents graded as low or minor risk.  

33. Within the Trust's South-East Region, the ‘rapid release’ of ambulance resources 
process was activated several times during this period. Activation of this process 
should result in the immediate handover of patients to the acute trust. The impact of 
this on patients has been reviewed by the clinical governance team, which confirmed 
there were no clinical incidents of concern. 

34. As part of the Trusts work to mitigate the impact of Covid-19 to patients and increase 
the number of available resources for conveyance to hospital, SCAS implemented a 
procedure in February 2021 to be able to deploy two Emergency Care Assistant 
(ECA) staff on a Double Crewed Unit (DCU) to respond to a specific criterion of 
patients. This was titled Twin Emergency Care Assistants (TECA).  This clinical 
effectiveness of this process has been reviewed following a structured judgement 
review of 60 cases. The final report will be presented to Patient Safety Group in 
November 2022. 

 
NEPTS  

35. Patient Treatment/Care remains the highest reported category of patient safety 
incidents within NEPTS during the reporting period, with delay being the second. 
Failed discharges and standards of care are the most prevalent sub-categories. All 
incidents recorded severity of harm was either none or minor in all cases. 

36. In the delay category the highest sub-category was crew not following procedure. 
Lack of communication with dispatch featured in other incidents including where 
information on PDAs should have been questioned and where the achievability of 
task allocations was questioned by crews. All were managed appropriately by the 
crews’ Team Leaders. Other delays were caused by hospitals, access issues and 



patient’s condition on collection. 
 
NHS111/IUC 

37. NHS111 have seen an increase in incident reporting for this period. This is largely 
due to the national Adastra outage experienced during August 2022. Investigation of 
incidents from previous months remained significantly affected by the Adastra 
outage as the recovery process has still to be confirmed nationally, although SCAS 
local processes have been instigated to review any patient harm – none of which 
has been identified to date. It is positive to note the reporting of incidents against the 
outage. 
The top two categories of incidents were delay (41) and patient treatment (25). Within 
delay specific trends were delay in call backs caused by the system outage. In patient 
treatment accessibility of other services was a trend, with translation services being 
prominent. There has been an increase in ICT fault/issues that have been raised as 
incidents in the 111 service through this reporting period. This is notably higher than 
previous reporting months but is again, due to the national system outage. 
 

38. A change in process has been instigated to mitigate risk by suspending call streaming 
and updating the agency referral process. 
 

Serious Incidents and Incident Management  
 

39. During the reporting period there were 9 Serious Incidents declared.  
• 4 have been categorised as delay  
• 2 patient care 
• 1 ICT system issue  
• 2 Clinical equipment 
 

 
 

Following the introduction of the Incident Review Panels (IRPs) with system partners 
the trust has seen a rise in SIs declared in the Aug/Sept 22 reporting period against 
the same period in 2021. The themes and trends reflect the delays, equipment and 
care so align to the improvement workstreams and performance improvement plans. 
 
Benchmarking post introduction of IRPs in the sector will take place at the end of Q4. 

 



 
 
 

The main theme continues to be delays but note the ICT increase as described in the 
NHS111 part of the report. 

 
Monitoring and embedding learning and the assurance that this will result in reduced 
avoidable harm issues being reported. This will be monitored through Patient Safety 
Group and assurance reported to Quality and Safety Committee. 
 
The harm descriptors on Datix have been reviewed and clarified in alignment with 
NRLS and the fields for reporters simplified this should result in a Q4 national report 
which correctly reflects no harm to death data which can be compared with other 
trusts 
 
Feedback from DATIX users at the SCAS patient safety webinars has been 
incorporated into a review of DATIX fields to make it more user friendly, reduce 
completion time and enable managers to better see local trends. 
 
The revised Serious Incident Policy has been written in line with best practice will and 
approved at Patient Safety Group. It will be launched within next few weeks.  
 

40. During national speak up week and the national IPC week – roadshows and drop-in 
sessions were held for staff to encourage reporting, refresh training and answer 
questions. Ongoing newsletters and hub articles will continue to assist staff and 
create a better safety culture. A survey will be developed to assess culture on safety 
and feedback will be fed into processes. This will be throughout 23/24. 

 
KEY ISSUES – NON-CLINICAL INCIDENTS – (Appendix B)  
 

41. The top reported category during the reporting period is that of abuse/abusive 
behaviour incidents. The further breakdown of the top three abuse/abusive behaviour 
sub-categories illustrates that the sub-category with the highest number of incidents is 
threatening behaviour.  
 

42. The Head of Risk and Security is working with the Assistant Director of Operations 
and Staff Side Representatives to review and revise the Trust’s Violence and 
Aggression Policy and the Lone Working Policy in Q3/4 and the ongoing national and 
sector work around restraint. 
  

43. Joint working with the risk team, Emergency and Urgent Care and the Patient 
Transport Service (PTS) to review and revise their respective risk assessments on 
preventing violence and aggression towards SCAS staff is being completed  



  
44. The Head of Risk and Security and the Risk Assistant (Body Worn Cameras) are 

reviewing the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for Body Worn Cameras as part 
of the review to increase the use of the cameras. This will assist with staff feeling safe 
and aid any internal or external facing investigations. The Risk Assistant (Body Worn 
Cameras) is also attending operational/service team training days to provide training 
to frontline 999 operations staff on the safe use and operation of the body worn 
cameras. The trust is also investigating the use of alternative fixings for the cameras.  
 

45. As part of this work articles for Staff Matters are included to increase the reporting of 
violence and aggression incidents to the police and encourage reporting alongside 
drop-in sessions with the DATIX manager on general DATIX training and the 
importance of reporting all incidents.  
 

46. During national speak up week and the national IPC week – roadshows and drop-in 
sessions were held for staff to encourage reporting, refresh training and answer 
questions. Ongoing newsletters and hub articles will continue to assist staff and 
create a better safety culture. A survey will be developed to assess culture on safety 
and feedback will be fed into processes. This will be throughout 23/24. 

 
KEY ISSUES – PATIENT EXPERIENCE (PE) – (Appendix C) 
 
  

47. Patient Experience (PE) contacts are recorded under three categories: formal 
complaints, informal concerns, and healthcare professional feedback (HCP).  

 
48. During the reporting period The Trust received 131 new formal complaints, 120 

informal concerns and 344 HCP feedback requests during the reporting period. Trust 
wide we saw a 5% decrease in the total number of PE contacts raised (595) when 
compared with the previous two months (624).  In the same period last year, the trust 
received 740. Patient Experience contacts decrease 20% in comparison to 2021/22.  

 
49. 510 cases were responded to and closed during the same period, of which 67% (346 

Cases) were either fully or partly upheld when the investigations were concluded.  
 
  

PE CASES 
AUGUST & 

SEPTEMBER 

 
2022/23 

% of Trust 
Total 

% change from 
previous two 

months 

 
21/22 

 
20/21 

NHS 111 
Includes GP CAS pilot 

 
84 

 
14 

 
Down 4% 

 
124 

 
134 

 
PTS 

 
351 

 
59 

 
Up 8% 

 
381 

290 

 
999 Operations 

 
101 

 
17 

 
No change 

 
146 

 
126  

 
EOC 

 
57 

 
10 

 
Down 1% 

 
91 

 
38 

Mental Health 
Triage Service 

 
2 

 
--- 

 
----- 

 
2 

 
----- 

 
Trust total  

 
595 

 
100% 

 
Down 5% 

 
744 

 
588 

 



 
50. 50% (299) of all PE issues raised during the reporting period were regarding delays / 

non-attendance - this is a 2% increase from the previous reporting period.  
 

51. Of the delay’s issues raised in the reporting period: 35% 999/EOC (106), 60% PTS 
(179) 5% NHS111 (14)  

   
52.  There has been a significant decrease in the percentage of cases raised regarding 

staff attitude and communication which could be attributed to the roll out of the Trust’s 
Civility Matters work.  

  
53. Formal Complaints performance to target achieved in September with 96% against a 

target of 95%.  
 

54. There is one formal complaint which the PHSO is currently deciding if they will be 
undertaking a full investigation. The PHSO is currently completing a full investigation 
on a further case and an update is awaited.  
 

55. The trust received 249 compliments for the care and service delivered by our staff 
across the reporting period.  Compliments are shared with the staff involved and their 
line managers.   

 
56. Patient Experience Investigations training is continuing monthly via Microsoft Teams. 

Positive feedback about this training session has been received which is delivered 
virtually to approximately twenty staff per month.  A way of ascertaining the 
effectiveness of this training will be timely responses without the need for further 
review in 2023/24.  

 
57. A breakdown down of the outcomes/lessons/actions taken from closed cases is 

included in the Patient Experience Appendix.  
 

58. A full breakdown of PE issues by service area and by subject is provided in the 
Patient Experience Appendix C.  

 
7. Recommendations 
 

The Board is asked to note this report. 
 
Name and Title of Author:  
Interim Director of Nursing 
Assistant Director of Quality 
 
Date: 
November 2022 
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Appendix A – Clinical Incidents 
Clinical Incident Categories (All) 
 

 Aug 2022 Sep 2022 Total 
Patient treatment/care 129 134 263 
Delay 99 98 197 
Medicines 66 72 138 
Special circumstances 38 22 60 
Clinical equipment 25 28 53 
ICT systems 11 12 23 
Non-attendance 3 7 10 
Infection Control 4 5 9 
Medical Gases 2 1 3 
Needlesticks and sharps 2 1 3 
Other 1 1 2 
Feature request 0 1 1 
Ill health 0 1 1 
Total 380 383 763 

 
Sub-Categories of Patient Treatment/Care (Top 5) 
 

 Aug 2022 Sep 2022 Total 
Standard of treatment/care concern 39 28 67 
Potential incorrect clinical assessment/treatment 22 19 41 
Inappropriate/incomplete requests for transfer 15 17 32 
Guideline/protocol/Directive/SOP not followed 13 13 26 
Accessibility of other service (e.g. GP, GPOOH, district nurse etc) 14 9 23 

 
Clinical Incidents – Top 5 Categories over 18 Months 
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Appendix B - Non-clinical incidents 
 
The chart below illustrates the total number of non-clinical incidents reported on the Datix 
system between August 2021 and September 2022.  
  

  
  
Top ten non-clinical incidents reported in August and September 2022  
  
The table below illustrates the top ten non-clinical incident categories reported on Datix in 
August and September 2022, illustrating that Abuse/abusive behaviour incidents is the 
top reported category.  
   
  

Top ten non-clinical incidents reported in August and September 2022  
  

Category  
  

August 2022  
  

September 
2022  

Total  

Abuse/abusive behaviour  51  53  104  
Slip, trip and fall  41  35  76  
Feature request  30  22  52  
Manual Handling  28  23  51  
Physical assault  22  17  39  
Welfare  23  12  35  
Vehicle  11  15  26  
Road traffic collision  12  8  20  
Contact with/struck by 
object/vehicle (including hot 
liquids)  

13  5  18  

Ill health  8  6  14  
 Total  239  196  435  
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The table below illustrates the breakdown of the top three Abuse/abusive behaviour sub-
categories illustrating that the sub-category with the highest number of incidents is 
Threatening behaviour.  
  

Abuse/abusive behaviour incidents (Top three sub-categories) 
Reported in August and September 2022  

  
Sub-categories  
  

August 
2022  

September 
2022  

Total  

Threatening behaviour  18  18  36  
Verbal abuse  21  13  34  
Poor attitude  11  21  32  
Total  
  50  52  102  

  
The bar chart below illustrates the breakdown of non-clinical incidents reported by each 
Service area in August and September 2022.  The majority of incidents continue to be 
reported by the 999 Operations.  
  

  
  
Severity of non-clinical incidents reported between August 2021 and September 
2022 as graded by managers  
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The bar chart below illustrates the severity of non-clinical incidents reported between 
August 2021 and September 2022 and as graded by managers.  It illustrates that the 
majority of reported non-clinical incidents are graded by managers as being of minor risk.  
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Appendix C - Patient Experience 
 
 

The graph shows the number of PE contacts received, tracked by type.   
  

 
  
 

The graph below tracks the percentage of trust wide formal complaints closed within 
agreed timescales.  

  

 
 

The chart below shows the % of PE contacts received by service area for August & 
September 2022  
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The chart below shows the % of PE contacts received Trust wide by subject for 
August & September 2022. The highest proportion (50%) remains delay. 

 

.  
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The chart below shows the outcomes and actions taken from Patient Experience 
investigations which were completed and closed August & September 2022.  
 

 
 



 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 

Report title: Integrated Performance Report (IPR) for the month ended 31st October 
2022 

Report to: Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda 
Item: 

49 

Executive Summary: The performance of the Trust is set out the Integrated Performance Report 
(IPR) report for month 7, ended 31st October 2022. The summary position for 
month 7 is shown on page 3 of the report (Appendix A).  
 
As shown in the latest Integrated Performance Report, and in common with 
other ambulance trusts, this continues to be an extremely challenging time for 
everyone across SCAS. We are continuing to struggle to deliver the levels of 
service performance we would like. We delivered a slight improvement in our 
Cat 1 performance in October. Our mean average performance on Cat, 2, 3 
and 4 measures were also better than the national averages. While we are 
falling short on the national 999 response time standards, we remain in the top 
quartile of performance amongst other ambulance services. 
 
Our financial performance for month 7 remains broadly in line with the planned 
breakeven level. Our overall year to date financial position for performance 
reporting is a £62k deficit against the breakeven plan. 
 
Actions are being taken to redesign the IPR report to include the use of SPC 
charts. A draft plan and timeline for the IPC development is included in 
Appendix B for discussion. An example of the Hospital Handover metric 
represented through the SPC chart format and proposed template is provide 
in Appendix C.  
 

Recommendations: The Trust Board is asked to review and APPROVE the report, noting the 
improvement actions being taken.  

Executive lead: Aneel Pattni, Chief Finance Officer 

Report author: Alan Monks, Deputy Director of Finance  
Ellis Rush, Finance Manager 

Previously 
considered by: 

Internal Integrated Performance Report (IPR) Review meeting, 14th 
November 2022 

Purpose of report: Note 
☐ 

Approve 
☒ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status: 
 
 
 
 

Public 
☒ 

Private 
☐ 

Internal 
☐ 



Assurance level: Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

 No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of 
confidence in 
delivery of 
existing 
mechanisms / 
objectives 

General 
confidence in 
delivery of 
existing 
mechanisms / 
objectives 

Some 
confidence in 
delivery of 
existing 
mechanisms / 
objectives 

No confidence in 
delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating. Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 

 

Strategic Objective(s): All strategic objectives 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 

All BAF risks 

Quality Domain(s): All Quality Domains 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
Actions are being taken to redesign the IPR report to include the use of SPC charts.  

 

 
 
List of Appendices: 

 
Appendix A:  Integrated Performance Report (IPR) for the month ended 31st October 

2022. 
Appendix B: Integrated performance Report (IPR) development plan and timeline – draft for 

discussion. 
Appendix C:  October 2022 Hospital Handover metric represented through the SPC chart 

format and proposed template, provided for SPC example purposes only. 



Integrated Performance Report

Oct-22



Section 1: Chief Executive’s Overview

Performance/Finance/Issues/SOF
The CQC Improvement Programme remains a key priority following the Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspection report and overall ‘inadequate’ rating. We have been assigned to Segment 4 of the NHS
England/Improvement ‘System Oversight Framework’ regulatory approach, the framework takes into account quality of care, access, and outcomes; preventing ill health and reducing inequalities; people;
finance and use of resources; and leadership and capability.  As a result of this, we are receiving support from NHSE/I as part of their Recovery Support Programme arrangements, including the provision of
an Improvement Director to help us deliver our recovery and improvement plans.

October was again a hugely challenging month for SCAS as we are approaching winter and the Trust continues to experience significant challenges in terms of operational pressure, which have impacted our
delivery across all three core services.

As a result, our 999 and NHS111 performance has been greatly challenged, including in relation to the most critical of emergency, life-threatening incidents (Category 1). The operational pressure facing
SCAS mirrors that being seen across the whole of the NHS, and our current level of performance compares favorably with other providers, although it is not where we would like it to be.

PTS performance, we have insufficient capacity to meet demand resulting in active demand management.

I would like to thank our staff and volunteers for their ongoing hard work and commitment as we strive to deliver the best possible outcomes for our patients during what is proving to be a very challenging
period.
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Integrated Performance Report
Report Period: Oct-22

G On or better than the plan

A Less than plan by up to 20%, except of National Standards

R More than 20% worse than plan, except of National Standards, these are red if not achieved
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Section 2: National Standards Month YTD Month R ← YTD R ←
Section 3: 999 Operational Performance Month R ← YTD R ←
Lead Director: Paul Kempster

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

ARP measures Task time is above budget caused by handover
delays and additional time on scene

Improve Task Time through targeted performance improvement
activities

Reviewed Optima modelling regarding the impact of 85%
compliance in 15min handovers, a 50% reduction in delays at QA
and also on handovers >60mins at QA. It illustrates potential time
savings and performance gains if investments are made.

For CAT1 recovery, increased the deployment of RRVs from Standby
to 30% both TV and Hants (Optima modelling).

Reviewed the priority RRV vs DMA when addressing SCA issues on
the day, evidenced by Fleet Mix at Different Utilisations.

Reviewed the Learning for the NWAS Ambulance Handover project
which had successfully reduced handover time, however no new
learning identified.

Completed deployment by auto-dispatch of Cat 2 Nature of Call that
were previously Cat 1.

Recovered log on compliance to required percentage to realise
performance gains in task time.

Increased hours on the urgent care desk and dispatching CFRs.

EOC SOP to dispatch paramedic to every CAT 1 is now live.
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Section 2: National Standards Month YTD Month R ← YTD R ←
Section 3: 999 Operational Performance Month R ← YTD R ←
Lead Director: Paul Kempster

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

999 call answer Contact centre performance metrics are below
target because we do not have sufficient
workforce to meet the demand.

Performance Improvement programme to improve 999 and 111
call answer performance.

We are beginning to see movement in the actions requiring BI
capacity as a result of re-prioritising internal staff time. One new
interim BA commences 07/11/22.

Optimising indirect resource desk cover, to ensure dispatch of our
indirect resources to support performance delivery plans, with 3
volunteers have been trained and staff on alternative duties service
the desk. Providing 37.5hrs pw. Future dates available when
volunteers come on board.

Insights and understanding of Clinical Service Desk (CSD) activities
and capacity are being captured for improved scheduling and
resourcing. Increased CSD clinical capacity through the deployment
of Specialist Practitioners to CC – Dates agreed and training in place.

Reviewed training & mentorship model and literature, increased ECT
training space at NH. New curriculum to be launched Nov. 2022.

The Isle of Wight EOC contract was sent for signing on the 26th
October. It is likely to achieve 95% of target WTE (26) by end of Jan
23, with a view to be BAU by Feb 23. Currently recruited 21.26 WTE.

Recruitment & Training Re-introduced recruitment to twilight shifts as part of interim
improvements to the current shift patterns to aid recruitment and
retention ahead of winter.

ECT new starters roster to support trainees in development
approved by scheduling.
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Section 2: National Standards Month YTD Month R ← YTD R ←
Section 3: 999 Operational Performance Month R ← YTD R ←
Lead Director: Paul Kempster

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Retention NH rest area refurbishment works is on track and due to complete
9th December

Two-week consultation has ended for the EOC rosters, feedback is
currently being collated in preparation for the project board on the
2nd of December 2022. Looking to engage and start roster designs
this week with staff.

RRP incentives approved to improve retention.

Future Contact Centre First Project board meeting held on the 31st October. They reviewed
the following:
     * Technical drawing and MNE drawings
     * Detailed design and design feasibility approval
     * Finance reporting dashboard development

Optimising call-handling performance Staff engagement going well - drop in sessions to discuss team and
call hander performance is continuing to open minds and gain
interest

Monthly ECT scorecard covering AHT's for SCAS overall and IoW has
now gone live and is being used to manage staff.

BI have scheduled Information Literacy Training (for managers)
which started 25.10.22. It is an 8-week course. By the end of the
course the QlikSense system will go live late December 2022. The
course together with the fortnightly AHT data will equip managers
to optimise Call Handler performance.
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Section 2: National Standards Month YTD Month R ← YTD R ←
Section 3: 999 Operational Performance Month R ← YTD R ←
Lead Director: Paul Kempster

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Dedicated adequate resource required for telephony report and
QlikSense development. Additional 15-20% BI capacity made
available to this workstream from existing BI staff commenced in
October. Plans in place to complete their actions by end Nov 2022
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Section 4: Ops Workforce Indicators Month R ← YTD A ←
Section 5: IUC/111 Service Month R ← YTD R ←
Lead Director: Paul Kempster

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

111 Call Answer
Performance and
abandonment

Contact centre performance metrics are below
target because we do not have sufficient
workforce to meet the demand.

Performance Improvement programme to improve 999 and 111
call answer performance.

We are beginning to see movement in the actions requiring BI
capacity as a result of re-prioritising internal staff time. One new
interim BA commences 07/11/22.

Conversations with DHU 111 and LAS are progressing regarding
outsourcing to increase capacity.

Continued focus on recruitment and training. Recruitment target for Call handler recruitment is 310.53, in post is
206.64. New initiative in 111 to use a call centre recruitment agency
to progress with procurement.

Advert out for recruitment to 'twilight' shifts - to provide additional
resource in CC during high demand period.

Retention RRP incentives approved to improve retention.

NH Rest area refurbishment works due to complete 9th December.

Future Contact Centre First project board meeting held on the 31st October. They reviewed
the following:
* Technical drawing and MNE drawings
* Detailed design and design feasibility approval
* Finance reporting dashboard development
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Section 4: Ops Workforce Indicators Month R ← YTD A ←
Section 5: IUC/111 Service Month R ← YTD R ←
Lead Director: Paul Kempster

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Optimising call-handling performance. Protype performance reports continue to be produced
weekly/monthly and are being used to manage individual call
handler performance and identify outliers in 111.

BI have scheduled Information Literacy Training (for managers)
which started 25.10.22. It is an 8-week course. By the end of the
course the QlikSense system will go live late December 2022. The
course together with the fortnightly AHT data will equip managers to
optimise Call Handler performance.

Dedicated adequate resource required for telephony report and
QlikSense development. Additional 15-20% BI capacity made
available to this workstream from existing BI staff commenced in
October.

Homeworking Health Advisors Pilot. The Project board will shortly consider a recommendation as to
longer term home working.

The home working Health Advisors are performing at least as well as
those working in the call centre with no wellbeing or patient safety
concerns.
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Section 6: Clinical Performance Month R ← YTD R ←

Lead Director: John Black

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Lower Limb
fracture

This internal indicator is tracking below the
expected compliance levels.

Review reasons There were 14/50 compliant records.  The most common reason for
non-compliance was documentation of limb immobilisation (31
cases).  There were 22 records where pain scoring had not been
correctly documented.

Take any required actions to correct/mitigate. Mandating of 2 pain scores in the Ortivus ePR system has been
released into the  live system following successful system testing,
analysis will now be undertaken to review the cases that were non
compliant in terms of pain scoring to determine if they were Ortivus
ePR records, or Scribe records completed by Private Ambulance
providers. Previously issued guidance article to be reissued.

Febrile convulsion This internal indicator is tracking below the
expected compliance levels and hence is
flagging amber

Review reasons There were 41/50 compliant records.  The most common reasons for
non-compliance were documentation of a blood glucose reading (4)
and administration of an anti convulsant (4).

Take any required actions to correct/mitigate. As detailed within the new medicines management policy,
ambulance technicians and AAP's are now able to administer
Diazepam under certain circumstances.
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Section 6: Clinical Performance Month R ← YTD R ←

Lead Director: John Black

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Cardiac arrest
ROSC and survival

These national indicators have dipped below
the expected compliance levels

Review reasons There were 23 patients in the utstein cohort and hence %'s can
differ from month to month with such low numbers.  Cardiac arrest
outcomes have been on an upward trajectory and SCAS remain
above the national average when benchmarked YTD against English
ambulance services for survival following a cardiac arrest.

Take any required actions to correct/mitigate. Resuscitation update training is in progress via the annual in person
clinical update programme.  To observe.
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Section 7: Patient Experience Month R ← YTD R ←
Section 8: Risk & Safety Management Month G ← YTD G ←
Lead Director: Helen Young

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Complaints (111,
999 and NEPTS )

The number of complaints received across all
services are higher than anticipated.

Review reasons. The most common reasons for a complaint being raised about 111 is
Delay (4) and Clinical care (3).   Within 999 its delay (19) and staff
attitude (11).  Within NEPTS its delay (13) and patient care/handling
(11).

Take any required actions to correct/mitigate. All calls will be audited and cases fully investigated with system
partners, where applicable. Performance improvement plans are in
place as part of our trust wide improvement programme, with the
aim of increasing operational capacity within the Clinical
Coordination Centres and E&UC service.  A people and culture
workstream is also in place and civility workshops have been held for
senior managers during October, with further offers related to
civility to be launched.

IPC audits The number of IPC audits completed is below
plan.

Review position. The number of audits completed is below plan for vehicles and hand
hygiene, mainly within the E&UC service. Compliance for the
building and vehicle audits completed is below required thresholds
in month, with compliance for hand hygiene within required
standards.  This is related to operational capacity as those
responsible for audit completion are focussued on operational
delivery.

Take any required actions to correct/mitigate. An improvement workstream is in place as part of our SCAS wide
improvement activities.  A focus of this workstream includes the
development of an audit assurance schedule to be implemented
alongside link IPC practitioner roles, as well as actions to ensure
compliance with the required standards. The IPC team are working
in partnership with the estates team on a programme of site
refurbishment and storage upgrade to improve the IPC compliance
of our sites.
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Section 7: Patient Experience Month R ← YTD R ←
Section 8: Risk & Safety Management Month G ← YTD G ←
Lead Director: Helen Young

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Serious Incidents The number of serious incidents declared is
higher than previous months.

Review reasons . Serious incidents are declared in line with the national serious
incident framework when incidents meet the required threshold for
declaration.  Of the cases declared, the main theme is  delay in
assessment or care.

Take any required learning actions. Learning will be identified through the investigations and action
plans are jointly agreed and progressed in partnership with the
operational teams as part of our revised serious incident processes.
Within October a range of patient safety related communications
have been launched including a newsletter, podcasts and webpages
on the SCAS Hub (Intranet) to promote a postive reporting culture
and highlight key learning as a result of patient safety related
incidents.

Never event SCAS have declared a serious incident that is a
'never event', as per current NHSE never event
list.

Review postion/reason. SCAS have declared a never event - oral/enteral medication or
feed/flush by any parenteral route.

Take any required actions. A comprehensive Serious Incident investigation is in progress and
notifications made to commissioners and CQC.
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Section 9: Patient Transport Service Month R ← YTD R ←

Lead Director: Mike Murphy

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Call Answer Contact Centre / Digital infrastructure and
processes

Demand reduction (CC) SMS cancellation project is subject to upgrade being completed. The
upgrade is being completed 20 October; testing is underway.

Patient App has been tested in our test system; the functionalities
are being added to the live system for further testing.

Extension of Sussex discharge ward bookings pilot to be discussed at
the next review meeting.

Contact Centre Organisational Health Check (OHC) Completion of paper underway for Exec review on next steps.

High Vacancy factor across key roles within the
Contact Centre / Frontline

Recruitment Drive (CC) 5 work from home call handlers start training 15 November to go
live week commencing 21 November.

Job centre recruitment event being attended 15 November in South.

Both internal Call Handlers and 1 external call handler have gone live
working from home. Review of performance and outputs will be
undertaken to review the overall working from home pilots.

Partnership working with Meridian agency for PTS dispatchers,
targeting candidates and the market with initial interviews being
undertaken as well.

Page 14 of 50



Section 9: Patient Transport Service Month R ← YTD R ←

Lead Director: Mike Murphy

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Patients
Arrival/Patients
Collected

Insufficient capacity to meet demand resulting
in active demand management

Increase capacity/Recruitment Drive (PTS Ops) Activity continues to be high against a number of our contracts. KPIs
have started to be affected due to the imbalance of capacity and
demand.

Discussions have commenced with Commissioners to implement
capping activity in one of our contracts to improve the patient
experience, manage demand and improve the workload on our
planning and dispatch team.

2 new Private Providers have been validated, discussions of the
hours they can provide is underway.
Good uptake on the incentive scheme for overtime across the board.

Work ongoing on IWP options to look at alternative ways of
increasing our recruitment and reducing attrition.
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Section 10: Finance Month A ← YTD G ←
Section 11: Cost Savings Month A ↓ YTD G ←
Lead Director: Charles Porter

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Surplus/Deficit Risk of not achieving financial targets Ensure financial performance is in line with plan. Take recovery
actions as soon as performance deviates

The financial performance is slightly behind the breakeven plan on a
year to date basis. Actions are being taken to bring this back on
track.

Review risks and opportunities on a monthly basis The net risks are reported to the Board on a monthly basis.

Need to ensure cost saving plan stays on track and recovery
actions are put in place if performance deviates

CIPS were slightly behind plan in the month, but are still ahead on a
YTD basis.

Agency spend Agency above plan Ensure there continues to be rigorous approval of agency spend The agency is above planned levels. This is due to some delayed
recruitment of permanent staff and some agency in the Covid
National Services. Rigorous approval of spend continues via the
weekly ESR Committee.
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Section 12: Statutory & Mandatory Training Month A ← YTD A ←
Section 13: HR / Workforce Month R ↓ YTD R ←
Lead Director: Melanie Saunders

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Health and wellbeing of our workforce and
management of attendance.

RRP for Call takers, remains in place and under review for the winter
period.  Absence across the Trust has dropped below forecast this
month

Recovery of number and quality of appraisals Recovery plans in place across CCC, 999 and NEPTS. Appraisal rates continue to improve..  We continue to monitor
appraisal rates via our improvement programme boards

Recovery of S&M compliance Face to face S&M training to re-commence. Statutory and Mandatory (face to face) training recommenced April
2022, plans are in place throughout 2022/23.  E-learning has
dropped this month due to a change in the baseline line.  This is
currently being reviewed to ensure the baseline is correct.

Safeguarding Level 3 compliance Level 3 face to face Safeguarding training to re-commence. Face to Face S&M Safeguarding has now recommenced and is
scheduled throughout the financial year, to be complemented with a
blended delivery of e-learning.  Safeguarding L3, as with other S&M
Subject the baseline for L3 training is being reviewed to ensure it is
accurate and capturing the correct level of staff.
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Section 12: Statutory & Mandatory Training Month A ← YTD A ←
Section 13: HR / Workforce Month R ↓ YTD R ←
Lead Director: Melanie Saunders

KPI Key Issues Action Progress against Action

Rising attrition and a challenged employment
market are impacting on our ability to attract
and retain staff across all 3 service lines.

Recruitment and retention recovery plans to be agreed at service
line level

Detailed recovery plans for recruitment and retention are now in
place for EOC, 111 & 999, despite these plans attrition continues to
track above forecast.  Further robust review of those plans to take
place, in particular shift patterns.  The Trust is also participating in
NHSE/i Overhauling recruitment campaign.  The Trust has secured
additional funding for continuation of International Recruitment.
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1 Single Oversight Framework

NHS Improvement Single Oversight Framework

Lead Director: Will Hancock
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1 Single Oversight Framework

Comments:- -
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2 National Standards

Operational Performance

Lead Director: Paul Kempster Overall Rating: R
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2 National Standards
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3 Operations 999

Comments:- -

Comments:-
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3 Operations 999

Comments:-

Comments:- ST&C to ED continue to decrease with good levels of H&T and S&T. The clinical pathways team are continuing to develop new pathways and supporting staff with the use of SCAS connect to maximise the use of the pathways

Comments:- We are continuing to work with acute trusts on non ED pathways, however a number of these routes are lacking capacity due to hospital bed occupancy levels.
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3 Operations 999

Comments:- Handover delays at QAH have decreased in October, however we have seen increases at other hospitals including the Royal Berkshire and Stoke Mandeville.

Comments:- We are continuing to see improvements with our clear up times and are now on trajectory at Trust level with some more improvements still required in the north which is being picked up as part of the task time improvement project.
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3 Operations 999

Comments:- Long waits remain a concern with an increase in Cat 3 delays. The Ops and Clinical teams are continuing to review LW to assess for any patient harm incidents.

Comments:- The most common reason for a complaint being raised is a delay (19) and staff attitude (11).  Actions to improve our operational performance are being managed via a performance recovery improvement plan. There is also a people and
culture workstream. Themes from complaints have been presented at the E&UC clinical governance group, attended by the senior operational management team.
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4 Workforce Indicators

Comments:- The month has shown further decline in break compliance at a Trust level, which is being driven by handover delays in the north.

Comments:- We have seen missed breaks remain at 6.4% at a Trust level. This is mainly due to the south which is still seeing extensive handover delays.
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4 Workforce Indicators

Comments:- This indicator remains at below plan which is a positive position since the end of shift changes were introduced.

Comments:-
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5 Clinical Coordination Centre

Comments:- 111 calls offered in October was above plan. 999 volumes increased throughout October, and we also experienced an increase in duplicate calls.

Comments:- We have seen a decrease in the 111 call answer for October. 111 remains under establishment and abstractions are high which impacts on overall performance. 999 95th percentile showed a slight deterioration in month which is
reflective of the increased call volume.
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5 Clinical Coordination Centre

Comments:- Due to the Adastra outage in August 2022 we continue to be unable to report on the 999 referral rate.  Reporting function has been resolved early November but await BI validation.

Comments:- Due to the Adastra outage in August 2022 we continue to be unable to report on ED referral rate.  The reporting issue has been resolved at beginning of November and we await BI validation.
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5 Clinical Coordination Centre

Comments:- Due to the Adastra outage in August 2022 we continue to be unable to report on clinical referral rates.  The reporting issue has been resolved at beginning of November and we await BI validation.

Comments:- 111 abandonment rate increased in October due to the reduction in call answer performance.  This is due to current vacancy rate and abstraction levels. The slight increase in 999 abandonment rate reflects the reduction in call answer
performance.
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6 Clinical Performance

Clinical Performance

Lead Director: John Black/Helen Young Overall Rating: R
Red > 30% Red scores, Green > 70% Green and <10% Reds (but no key indicators),
Amber - rest
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6 Clinical Performance

Comments:- All ACQI data in the October IPR relate to cases from June 2022, due to the NHSE data submission and publication timelines. Stroke and STEMI care were not subject to audit in this month.

Comments:- Whilst Stroke and STEMI timeliness measures have extended, we continue to benchmark above the national average for the YTD 2022/23.
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6 Clinical Performance

Comments:- There were 23 patients in the utstein cohort and hence %'s can differ from month to month with such low numbers.  Cardiac arrest outcomes have been on an upward trajectory and SCAS remain above the national average when
benchmarked against English ambulance services for outcome following a cardiac arrest.

Comments:- -
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8 Safety and Risk Management

Safety & risk management

Lead Director: Helen Young Overall Rating: G
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9 Operations - PTS

Comments:- Online bookings continue to decline, this is dependent upon the mix of bookings be it patient or HCP led, mobility etc. Not all bookings are suitable for online bookings. Call answer performance has slightly improved, the staffing hours
remain a challenge, however we have seen a number of staff commence in November with a number that will work from home.

Comments:- Performance has slightly declined, activity is continuing to be high with continued staffing challenges. The most common reason for a complaint being raised is a delay (13) followed by patient care/handling (11).  Full investigations will be
undertaken and learning actions identified.
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10 and 11 Finance and CIPs

Finance

Lead Director: Charles Porter Finance Rating: A CIP Rating: G
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10 and 11 Finance and CIPs
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 10 and 11 Finance and CIPs

Quality & Workforce Impact Assessment of the Cost Improvement Programmes 2022‐23 Workforce premium adds 50%

Meal Break 
Compliance

50 increase in meal break compliance 3 Q 1
Will be done in line with better staffing. More 
rested staff leading to better patient care 3 3 0 This should improve staff experience 0 3

Other Abstraction 623 1% Other abstraction 1 Q 1
Targeted at management of return to work and 
utilising staff in budgeted positions i.e. CCC 1 1 0 This should improve staff working 

environment and experience 0 1

Task Time 
Reduction

2,263
By reducing the task time of incidents you are able 
to reduce the volume of hours required to meet 

ARP targets
3 Q 2

If done effectively risk minimised. Risk increased if 
focus on time reduction and not on quality and 

patient outcome
6

Travel to scene is delivered with 
correct resource levels. On scene 
time has the PPE 4.5 mins built in.  
Largest element is handover delays 

in conjunction with the acutes

6 6

Reduction in task time, could additional 
pressure to staffing in complex decision 
making, especially if focus is on time 

taken rather than decision/clinical care 
provided.

6 9

Lease Benefits 40 Lease benefits outright purchase 0 Q 0 None 0 0 0 0 0

Sickness 746 reduction in sickness ‐ non covid 1 Q 1 Lower sickness will benefit patients 1 Covid sickness is not targeted 1 0
Effective support and engagment with 
staff should result in better wellbeing 
outcomes and improved attendance

0 1

DCA Replacement 599
A more modern fleet will have lower VOR resulting 
in greater vehicle availability and lower mid shift 

VOR/lost hours 
1 Q 1

This should enhance quality if greater availability 
on vehicles is achieved 1 more modern fleet for lower cost 1 1 This should improve staff working 

environment and experience 1 1.5

Workforce Flow 
Through

569
Cost difference between SCAS staff and private 

provider
1 Q 1

This should have a positive impact of patient 
safety and experience if achieved.  1 this is an annual CIP  1 1

Good engagement with staff needed to 
ensure teams feel secure and reassured 

that employment is not effected
1 1.5

111 Attrition 199
Reduction in attrition for call handlers and clinical 

advisors compared to 21.22
1 Q 1

Should have a positive impact as will likely reach 
our establishment requirement sooner if attrition 

levels reduce. 
1 1 1 This should improve staff working 

environment and experience 0 1

111 Sickness 218
Reduction in sickness for call handlers and clinical 

advisors
1 Q 1

This should have a positive impact as staff will not 
be needed to as many additional hours at late 

notice. 
1 1 1

Effective support and engagment with 
staff should result in better wellbeing 
outcomes and improved attendance

0 1

Clinical Advisor 
Handling Time

195
Reduction in average handling time from 12 

minutes to 11:30 for clinicians
2 Q 2

This should improve quality/delivery as Clinicians 
that are current doing  well over 12 minutes 
should improve allowing clinicians to answer 

more calls and less time for the patients to wait.

4 Audit data will be reviewed regularly 4 6

Reduction in average handling time, 
could additional pressure to staffing in 
complex decision making, especially if 
focus is on time taken rather than 
decision/clinical care provided.

0 6

Operational 
Abstraction

222
Reduction in Abstraction % ‐ Surrey, Sussex, MK, 

Hants and TV
1 Q 1

This should have a positive impact on patient 
safety and experience if achieved.  1

Targeted at management of return 
to work and utilising staff in 

budgeted positions 
1 0

Effective support and engagment with 
staff should result in better wellbeing 
outcomes and improved attendance

0 1

Recruitment 766 Increase SCAS Staffing (in‐line with the IWP plan) 1 Q 1
This should have a positive impact on patient 

safety and experience if achieved.  1
Monitor progress through 
performance board and PTS 

reviews.
1 0 This should have a positive impact on 

existing staffing 0 1

Agency 46
Logistics resource cost savings (Reduction in OT 

and agency usage)
2 Q 1 Low impact if no stock impact  2 2 0 0 2

OT Contact Centre 59 Reduction in CC OT  3 Q 1
low impact as long as shift cover not 

compromised 3 3 4
Potential to impact on morale if 

opportunities to work additional hours 
are reduce

0 4

Improved 
Efficiency

993

Improved efficiency metric equivalent by 3.2% ‐ 
equivalent to moving 1.5 patients per 100 hrs of 
operational resource time (on average across the 

year)

1 Q 1 This has no direct impact on quality 1 1 0 0 1

Aborts 156
Reduction in level of aborts by 5% on average 

across the year
1 Q 1

This should have a positive impact on patient 
safety and experience if achieved.  1 1 0 0 1

Contact Centre 
Abstraction

39 Reduction in abstraction % ‐ Contact Centre 1 Q 1
This should have a positive impact on patient 

safety and experience if achieved.  1
Targeted at management of return 

to work and utilising staff in 
budgeted positions 

1 0
Effective support and engagment with 
staff should result in better wellbeing 
outcomes and improved attendance

0 1

Reduce Cancel 
Calls

24 Moving to SMS to reduce cancel calls 1 Q 1
This should have a positive impact on patient 

safety and experience if achieved.  1 1 0 0 1

Increase VCD 303
Increase VCD hours and reduce the associated 

Private Provider and Taxi spend
1 Q 1 1 Training for VCDs 1 0

Good engagement with staff needed to 
ensure teams feel secure and reassured 

that employment is not effected
0 1

Comms and PR 41 Reduction in pay of senior team 0 Q 0 This has no direct impact on quality 0 N/A 0 0 No direct impact 0 0

Estates 1,449
Reduction in spend on Maintenance, F&F, Legal 

Fees & Consultancy Reductions
0 Q 0 This has no direct impact on quality 0 N/A 0 0 No direct impact 0 0

ICT Director 794
Reduction in Hardware spend pre‐dominantly and 

also cessation of double running contracts
0 Q 0 This has no direct impact on quality 0 N/A 0 0 No direct impact 0 0

Trustwide Scheme 1,000 Organisation stretch target ‐ review of posts 0 Q 0
Quality impact will need to be reviewed when 

posts identified 0 N/A 0 0 No direct impact 0 0

Workforce 
Mitigated 
Risk Level

Combined 
Mitigated 
Risk Level

Potential Impact to Quality/Delivery
Quality Risk 

Rating
Mitigating Actions

Quality 
Mitigated 
Risk Level

Workforce 
Risk Rating

Workforce Description and 
Mitigating Actions

LikelyScheme Name £000’s Source of Saving
Conseq
uence



12 and 13 Statutory & Mandatory Training and Workforce

Comments:- Trust sickness as increased over the last month and is above target.  Trust appraisals have steadily increased over the financial year and are now at 80%.  There continues to be a focus on meaningful PDR conversations taking place
throughout the Trust

Comments:- -
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12 and 13 Statutory & Mandatory Training and Workforce

Comments:- We have seen sickness increase during October linked to Cough, cold and Flu as well as MSK and Stress/anxiety. We are supporting those staff who have been off work and reviewing our processes to get staff back to work as quickly and
safely as we can.

Comments:- We have continued to deliver appraisals while operating at REAP 4 to achieve the higher completion levels. We are also reviewing the accuracy of the ESR data to further cleanse the data to provide a more accurate picture
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12 and 13 Statutory & Mandatory Training and Workforce

Comments:- -

Comments:- Sickness in 111 has increased between September to October, a concerted effort is taking place to address the reasons for this and to support staff back to work.
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12 and 13 Statutory & Mandatory Training and Workforce

Comments:- PDR completion have significantly increased throughout the CCC and managers are continuing to prioritize appraisal completion.
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12 and 13 Statutory & Mandatory Training and Workforce

Comments:- As with CCC and 999 sickness in PTS as increased over the last month.  PTS management continue to focus on appraisal completion as reflected with consistently high percentage compliance.

Comments:- -
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12 and 13 Statutory & Mandatory Training and Workforce

Comments:- A competitive recruitment market and higher than expected numbers of leavers means that we are behind with the workforce numbers for frontline operations.

Comments:- Attrition remains 4% above forecast and retention plans are currently being reviewed.
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12 and 13 Statutory & Mandatory Training and Workforce

Comments:- The roles in our call centres are difficult jobs and we are below plan for both EOC and 111 now.  We are reviewing recovery plans.

Comments:- EOC recruitment has been slightly above plan so far, but we continue to struggle to recruit part time workers for our 111 call centre.  We are reviewing recruitment and attraction options.
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12 and 13 Statutory & Mandatory Training and Workforce

Comments:- EOC  and 111 attrition remain high and above planned but a significant proportion of this is due to internal attrition.

Page 47 of 50



12 and 13 Statutory & Mandatory Training and Workforce

Comments:- PTS workforce numbers remain a challenge.  There are a number of short, medium and long term options that are being reviewed.

Comments:- Band 2 recruitment has been a challenge.  We are now advertising at the top of band 2 and have introduced a joining incentive.  We will be monitoring success in the coming months.  We've had a larger than expected number of
internal movers which has impacted on attrition numbers.
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Appendix B: Integrated performance Report (IPR) development plan and timeline – draft for 
discussion 

Key actions and milestones 

November 2022 

BI team are working with external consultants to develop the calculations and Business Intelligence 
modelling required and automated feeds for SPC chart production. A template will be produced that 
can be applied to any metric. 

Review of other ambulance and acute Trusts IPR’s to determine what we want the new IPR to look 
like.  

Mock up example of template using one performance metric – Hospital Handovers. Present October 
YTD data in an SPC format, alongside the current IPR. 

Develop SPC chart training, development and implementation plan. 

December 2022 

Testing and application of SPC modelling and data feeds (BI team). 

Present November YTD data in an SPC format for a further sample of operational KPI’s, alongside the 
current IPR. 

Develop the IPR to meets the demands of the governance workstream along while enabling better 
decision-making across operations. 

Further engagement and feedback with key stakeholders on the IPR development. 

January 2023 

Determine the format of the new IPR and work alongside the executive team to decide what data we 
want to include. Formats to be reviewed and approved by the board. 

Provide training to management & other stakeholders on what SPC is and how it works. Explain why 
we are moving to SPC and the benefits this will bring to all parts of the Trust. 

Further engagement and feedback with key stakeholders on the IPR development. 

February – March 2023 

Further development and testing of the SPC IPR. 

Final refinements to the IPR. 

April 2023 

Trial run the SPC IPR.  

May 2023 

Go Live with the new IPR in SPC format for the new financial year. 



Operations
Hospital Handovers October 2022 Data Owner/Responsible Exec: Paul Kempster

Intelligence Narrative
Hospital Handover Delays Trustwide - metric shows Common Cause Summary
 * Insight narrative to be included in future reports.  * Narrative to be included in future reports.

Hospital Handover Delays North - metric shows Common Cause Actions
 * Insight narrative to be included in future reports.  * Narrative to be included in future reports.

Hospital Handover Delays South - metric shows Special Cause Concerning Variation Impact
 * Insight narrative to be included in future reports.  * Narrative to be included in future reports.

Assurance
 * Narrative to be included in future reports.

Operational Narrative
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

Board Assurance Framework 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

50 

Executive Summary: 
 

The Board should note the following risks in particular: 

1: Poor Clinical Governance and Practices. Risk, Assurance and 
Compliance Committee (RACC) discussed the risk rating on the 17th 
November and agreed to reduce the rating down from 25 (Catastrophic 
x Almost Certain) to 20 (Catastrophic x Likely) based on the significant 
improvements made through the completed actions in the workstreams 
(Patient Safety and Safeguarding). Equipment audits have confirmed 
the ZOLL devices carried on vehicles are within service windows and 
working with suitable batteries and pre-shift checks are being 
undertaken by crews. 

2: Inability to meet demand on services. This risk continues to 
remain at 25, due to the issues experienced in handover delays as well 
as demand being above budget for the period. The recovery 
programme continues to progress in order to improve performance.  

7 & 8: Recruitment and retainment of clinical and non-clinical 
staff. This continues to be high risk area with a large volume of 
vacancies across the Trust, including in the EOC and 111 areas. 
External factors play a significant part in the risk with the ongoing cost 
of living crisis reducing the value of pay increases and reducing the 
competitiveness of the roles within the market. Alternative routes and 
options are being considered to help mitigate the risk. 

10: Poor IT Resilience. RACC discussed the current IT resilience risk 
and have increased the risk rating to 16 (Major x Likely) from 12 
(Moderate x Likely) based on the ongoing issues within the PTS space 
with Cleric and the Safeguarding system, Docworks along with the 
associated impact should the issues continue to materialise. These 
would be a potential deterioration of commercial revenue and 
reputational impact to the Trust.  

Recommendations: 
 

The Board is asked to approve the Board Assurance Framework 
 

Executive lead: 
 

Mike Murphy, Executive Director of Strategy, Business Development 
and Corporate Governance 

Report author: 
 

Steven Dando, Corporate Risk Manager 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

Quality & Safety Committee 
Risk, Assurance and Compliance Committee 



 

2 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☐ 

Approve 
☒ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
 
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

All strategic objectives 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

All BAF risks 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

Not applicable 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 

• Any changes recommended by the Board will be made to the Board Assurance 
Framework. 

• Good Governance Institute to advise the Board in the coming months on recommended 
BAF changes.  
 

List of Appendices: 
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Reporting Dates: 

Risk, Assurance & Compliance Committee…...17/11/2022 

Quality & Safety Committee………………………...03/11/2022 

Audit Committee………………………………………….07/12/2022 

Board……………………………………………………………24/11/2022 



 

Board Assurance Framework Key 

 Likelihood 

Rare Unlikely Possible Likely Almost 
Certain 

Im
pa

ct
 

Catastrophic 5 10 15 20 25 

Major 4 8 12 16 20 

Moderate 3 6 9 12 15 

Minor 2 4 6 8 10 

Insignificant 1 2 3 4 5 

   

Board Assurance Framework Definitions 
Risk Owner Executive with overall responsibility for the management of the risk 
Target Rating The risk score which would be considered with appetite 
Impact The potential effect on SCAS should the risk materialise 
Likelihood The probability that the risk will materialise 
Inherent Rating The impact and likelihood of the risk materialising without any controls in place, the natural level of risk. 
Residual Rating The impact and likelihood of the risk materialising with controls in place, the current level of risk. 
Target Ratings The impact and likelihood of the risk materialising that SCAS considers acceptable. 
Control An activity that modifies a risk 
Control Owner Person responsible for the operation of the control 
Control Rating If the control is operating as expected (Effective), mostly operating as expected (Partially Effective) or not operating as expected (Not 

Effective) 
Issue Problem affecting the Trust and negatively impacting a risk 
Action Plan Plan of activities designed to resolve an issue or gap in assurance 
Assurance Activity Activity aimed at providing confidence that the controls are working effectively, and the risk is managed. 

 

  

Risk Rating Escalation 
 High Risk Executive Committee, relevant 

Oversight Committee and Board. Risk 
is outside of appetite. 

 Significant 
Risk 

Executive Committee and relevant 
Oversight Committee. Risk is outside 
of appetite. (12 and above) 
 

 Moderate Risk No escalation required, monitored 
within relevant directorate. Risk is 
within appetite. 

 Low Risk No escalation required. Risk is within 
appetite 
 



 

Board Assurance Framework Dashboard 

Risk 
# 

SCAS Objective Risk Title 2021 2022 
Jan Mar May Jul Sep Nov Jan Mar May Jul Sep Nov 

1 
Clinically-Led 

Poor clinical governance 
and practices 12 12 8 8 8 8 12 12 12 12 25 20 

2 

Service Quality & Patient 
Experience 

Inability to meet demand 
on services 16 16 16 16 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 

3 Insufficient fleet 
resources 12 12 12 16 16 12 12 8 8 8 8 8 

4 Inability to retain 
commercial contracts 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 

5 Partnership & 
Stakeholder Engagement 

Lack of SCAS 
representation at health 
economies 

6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

6 
Finance & Sustainability 

Sufficient and stable 
financial resources 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 

7 

People & Organisational 
Development 

Inability to recruit and/or 
retain non-clinical staff 9 9 9 9 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 

8 Insufficient clinical staff 
to meet demand 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 20 20 

9 Loss of corporate 
memory 9 9 9 9 9 9 12 12 12 12 16 16 

10 Technology 
Transformation 

Poor IT resilience 
12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 16 

11 
All Objectives 

Inability to maintain 
operations due to a 
business continuity event 

20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 12 12 



 

Board Assurance Framework Dashboard 

 

    

     

     

Target Rating =  

Where the current risk exposure is at the target rating, only the current rating will show. 
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Risk Title Risk Description 
Poor Clinical 
Governance and 
Practice 

The risk that SCAS does not have sufficiently robust systems of clinical governance, including 
implementation of change from both national and local authorities and learnings from incidents. 

Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
Clinically-Led John Black / Helen Young Quality & Safety Committee 
Corporate Risk Register Risks IPC Compliance Risk (6), Learning Risk (10), Health & Safety Risk (22), Regulatory 

Compliance Risk (23), COVID-19 Risk (25), Medical Devices Risk (26), Legal Risk (27), 
Safeguarding Risk (28) 

 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 

Catastrophic 
(5) 

Almost Certain 
(5) 

High Risk 
(25) 

Catastrophic 
(5) 

Likely 
(4) 

High Risk 
(20) 

Moderate 
(3) 

Unlikely 
(2) 

Moderate 
(6) 

  
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
5

10
15
20
25

Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

Overall rating has reduced to 20, this is due to the progress that has been made against the actions 
associated with the ongoing issues within the Safeguarding function, ZOLL defibrillators, the findings from the 
recent CQC inspection and further uncertainties around the management and governance of medical devices.  

Significant work is ongoing to implement the Safeguarding Improvement Plan. A new Assistant Director of 
Safeguarding, Mental Health & Learning Disability has been recruited along with the Deputy Chief Nurse role. 
Recruitment for Safeguarding roles is progressing. Level 3 training has started and is being monitored via the 
Safeguarding Committee.  

The Patient Safety and Experience Improvement workstream is leading on the work needed to ensure 
adherence to the 2015 standard. Of the 47 actions highlighted, 42 are closed, 2 are in progress (policy 
consultation) and 3 are overdue.  

Work continues in the Medical Devices space with the MDRG now established and an equipment audit has 
been conducted to understand what equipment we have and when it was last serviced. This data is being 
validated before entering into the Asset Management Database. 

Risk is expected to remain above the target score until the improvement actions have been completed 
however the residual risk rating is expected to reduce as those improvements are delivered embedded. 

Should this risk materialise, there could be legal and reputational risks for the Trust. 



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
Medicines Management 
Policy 

Policy detailing the requirements and procedures to safeguard the use of medicines 
within the Trust. 

Louise Maunick To be assessed 

Private Provider 
Governance Framework 

Framework for ensuring that there is governance in place to manage private providers, 
covering clinical practices. 

Guy Alexander To be assessed 

Risk Management Strategy Overarching strategy for how risk is managed across SCAS Steven Dando To be assessed 
Risk Policy Policy detailing the risk management process within SCAS Steven Dando To be assessed 
Clinical Standard Operating 
Procedures 

Set of standard procedures related to the clinical treatment of patients Helen Young To be assessed 

Adverse Incident Reporting 
Process 

Policy detailing the requirements and criteria for determining and investigating incidents, 
including near misses. 

Jane Campbell To be assessed 

Serious Incident Policy Policy detailing the requirements and criteria for determining and investigating a Serious 
Incident (SI), including roles and responsibilities. 

Paul Cooke To be assessed 

Infection Prevention Control 
(IPC) Policy 

Policy which details requirements for all staff to adhere to in order to reduce potential 
infections for both staff and patients. 

Claire Ward-
Jackson 

To be assessed 

Staff Training All staff undergo a series of mandatory training modules as well as Continuous 
Professional Development training to ensure they competent with current treatments and 
procedures. 

Ian Teague To be assessed 

Learning from Deaths Reviews of deaths which meet inclusion criteria to identify any avoidable mortality and 
morbidity as well as sharing best practice. 

Simon Brown To be assessed 

 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
ZOLL devices Zoll defibrillators not displaying a rhythm or shock when using therapy pads. Crews see a 

'Lead fault' error message. When devices are used in the AED mode there is a delay to 
providing the first shock. 

Jack Ansell / Mark 
Ainsworth-Smith / 
Andy Pope 

Urgent 

ZOLL consumables The ability to obtain consumables for ZOLL devices, including the correct type of cable, 
replacement batteries and adaptors. 

Jack Ansell / Mark 
Ainsworth-Smith / 
Andy Pope 

Urgent 

Safeguarding CQC 
Inspection 

CQC inspections in November 2021 and April 2022 identified several areas for 
improvement for safeguarding in SCAS, including capacity and capability of the 
Safeguarding team, provision of level 3 training across the Trust, supporting of 
safeguarding referrals and the boards visibility of safeguarding issues. 

Helen Young Urgent 

Lack of an equipment 
database 

There is no equipment database to allow for tracking of equipment, including medical 
devices across the Trust meaning we do not know which items are within their service 
schedule. 

Phil Pimlott Urgent 



 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
Incident Management Incidents (both clinical and non-clinical) are logged on multiple systems which leads to 

inaccurate reporting and hinders the Trusts ability to identify trends and understand the 
complete picture. 

Ross Cornett Urgent 

ZOLL Spares We have been notified by ZOLL that there is an increasing issue of obtaining spare parts 
for ZOLL devices. Currently it is impacting front covers (including screens). ZOLL are 
currently reporting that they are unable to advise when they will get more. 

Phil Pimlott Moderate 

 
Action Plans 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 
Owner 

Due Date 

Safeguarding 
Improvement Plan 

An improvement plan is in place to increase capacity and 
capability in GG Team, review SG policies, increase the 
amount of L3 training, review the effectiveness of the IT 
system supporting referrals and the SG dashboard. 

Workstream actions for 
Safeguarding are continuing with 
policies signed off, recruitment 
underway and training commenced. 

Helen Young Majority of 
actions due 31 
Oct 2022 
2 due 31 Dec 
2022 & 31 July 
2023 

Make Ready Contract Review Make Ready contract to ensure that compliance with 
medicines packing and vehicle cleanliness requirements. 

Requirements are being finalised 
before going out for competitive 
dialogue. 

Phil Pimlott Q2 2023 

Clinical Information 
Access 

Ensure that clinicians access vital clinical information in a 
timely manner through a consistent patient record. 

ePR data between systems has 
been matched with ongoing work to 
automate transfer of records. 

Dave Sherwood 31 December 
2022 

Equipment Database Database containing all equipment owned and managed by 
the Trust. Database will include asset tag, location, last 
inspection date, last service date, last test data and last 
configuration date, all in line with manufacturers 
recommendations. 

Audit underway to provide 
information for the asset database. 

Kevin Mouland November 22 

ZOLL Investigations Work with Zoll to understand issues and possible resolutions 
Order supply of single lead cables for Zoll machines to 
reduce errors in use 
Reconfiguration of devices to reintroduce monitoring alerts 
Training for all clinical staff on reconfiguration as display has 
changed 

New configuration has been 
approved by SCAS and ZOLL and, 
will be updated as part of a 
software update for all ZOLL 
devices. ZOLL are developing a 
plan to complete this. 

Andy Pope /  
Mark Ainsworth-
Smith /  
Jack Ansell 

Jan 23 

Patient Safety 
Incident Response 
Framework 

Implementation of the Patient Safety Strategy from NHS 
England and the associated Patient Safety Incident 
Response Framework (PSIRF) to replace the existing 
Serious Incident policy and process. 

The final version of the framework 
has been released with a complete 
transition required by August 2023. 
SCAS will be one of the later to 

Debbie Marrs / 
Dawn Chase 

Autumn 2023 



 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 
Owner 

Due Date 

transition in line with current NHSE 
action plan. 

Equipment Audit Audit of all medical devices used across the Trust to 
establish what equipment there is and where it is located. 
Serial numbers and service details to be included. 

Audit in progress. 8 staff have 
captured 8843 audits as of 
24/10/2022. 22 stations and 320 
vehicles have been completed. 

Kevin Mouland Complete 

 
Assurance Activity 

Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
Patient Safety Group Provides oversight of patient care safety issues and ownership of the Patient Safety  Helen Young 
Patient Safety Incident Group Provides oversight of patient safety incidents, both SCAS and system cases. Helen Young 
Quality & Safety Committee Provides oversight of all aspects of Patient Safety and Clinical Governance Anne Stebbing 
Internal Audits Provides an independent assessment of the design and operation of controls Aneel Pattni 
CQC Inspections Provides an external assessment of the clinical activities carried out by the Trust Will Hancock 
Clinical Governance Audits Annual audit plan for clinical audits and reviews of clinical changes or implementation of new 

processes to highlight impact on patients and opportunities for learning. 
Vicky Holliday 

Emergency & Urgent Care 
Clinical Governance Committee 

Provides oversight of clinical governance across the Emergency & Urgent Care departments. Vicky Holliday 

Infection Prevention and 
Control Committee 

Provides oversight of IPC matters across the Trust. Claire Ward-Jackson 

Safeguarding Committee Provides oversight of Safeguarding across the Trust. Helen Young 
Medicines Optimisation and 
Governance Group 

Provides oversight and steer for the management of medicines across the Trust. Louise Maunick 

Clinical Review Group Provides oversight of the clinical standards across the Trust. John Black 
 

Key Risk Indicators (in development) 



 

  

 

Working with the medicines team to include medicine administration errors metrics, likely volume per month initially. 
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Risk Title Risk Description 
Inability to meet 
demand on services 

The risk that increasing demand across all services leads to poor patient experience and inability 
to meet targets and expectations 

Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
Service Quality & Patient Experience Paul Kempster / Mike Murphy Executive Management Committee 
Corporate Risk Register Risks Handover Delay Risk (1), 999 Demand Risk (2), 111 Demand Risk (3), IPC Compliance 

Risk (6), 999 Staff Capacity Risk (15), 111 Staff Capacity Risk (16), PTS Demand Risk 
(20), Call Dispositions Risk (30) 

 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 

Catastrophic 
(5) 

Almost Certain 
(5) 

High Risk 
(25) 

Catastrophic 
(5) 

Almost Certain 
(5) 

High Risk 
(25) 

Moderate 
(3) 

Unlikely 
(2) 

Moderate Risk 
(6) 

 
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
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Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

The Trust has moved back to REAP 4 with effect from 11 October due to the ongoing operational 
pressures.  

Call acuity remains a concern with Cat 2 calls now accounting for 55% of calls with the increase mainly 
coming from Cat 3 calls (now at 19%). This means that more calls require an ambulance response. This is 
being monitored via the Service Delivery Board and is on the Corporate Risk Register. 

Handover delays decreased in August however has increased again in September with almost 5700 hours 
lost. Queen Alexandra (QAH) continues to account for as significant percentage of these hours (62% during 
September) with no other hospital accounting for more than 7%. A new handover policy is being circulated 
for approval from UEC boards with the aim of reducing delays and ensuring there are no delays over 30 
mins. 

Long waits continue to fluctuate and mirror the excess hours lost through handovers. 

EOC demand was above budgeted demand during August, September and October combined with 
available resources being under forecasted requirements for call handers. Clinician hours were under 
budgeted requirements for the whole period.  

111 demand has been both above and below budgeted demand during the August, September and October 
period with resource hours mostly above budget. Available clinical hours were below budget for August. 



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
Mutual aid process Ambulance services have agreements in place with neighbouring services to provide 

support during periods of high demand/pressure 
Mark Ainsworth To be assessed 

Demand forecasting Demand forecasting and profiling using models which are adjusted based on experience Maria Langer To be assessed 
Daily Operational MI Operational Management Information reports detailing performance against set metrics Mark Green To be assessed 
Real-time call queue 
management 

Call queue information   To be assessed 

National pandemic / 
emergency Standard 
Operating procedures 

Modified operating procedures to manage demand and resources during periods of 
emergency. 

Mark Ainsworth To be assessed 

Workforce planning Planning of resource requirements to meet expected demand Pamela Putt To be assessed 
Integrated Urgent Care SCAS participates in the Integrated Urgent Care framework and meetings Luci Stephens To be assessed 

 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
Handover delays Delays in handing over patients from SCAS to Hospital/Treatment Centre due to 

capacity/resource constraints 
Mark Ainsworth Urgent 

Private Provider Hours Private 999 providers are not delivering the required, contracted hours causing a deficit 
in resource availability for the trust. 

Steve West High 

 
Action Plans 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 
Owner 

Due Date 

Integrated Urgent Care Participation in IUC developments to shape services 
to meet the evolving and emerging needs of the 
Trusts local population 

IUC workshops with Frimley 
system and await actions from 
the meeting. Business case for 
BOB was not approved.  
Working with providers ready 
for the winter period. 

Luci Stephens / 
Mark Rowell 

To be confirmed 
once actions 
have been 
communicated 

Deployment Delivery Review the Trusts deployment delivery between the 
two CCCs to ensure adherence to ARP dispatch 
rules 

Action currently with Senior 
Operations Team. 

Luci Stephens Date to be 
confirmed once 
Ops team have 
allocated the 
review 

 
 
 



 

Assurance Activity 
Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
Emergency & Urgent Care Boards Regional groups consisting of acute providers, commissioners, ambulance service, 

community services and mental health services where issues impacting the care community 
can be discussed. 

Heads of Operations 

Patient Experience Review Group Group providing oversight of patient experiences, through pathways such as complaints, 
surveys and patient experience referrals. 

Will Hancock 

Service Delivery Board Provides operational oversight of service and performance. Paul Kempster 
Patient Safety Group Provides oversight of patient care safety issues and ownership of the Patient Safety. Helen Young 
Quality & Safety Committee Provides oversight of all aspects of Patient Safety and Clinical Governance. Anne Stebbing 
Workforce Planning Board Oversight of resource planning across the Trust. Melanie Saunders 
Long wait audits Audit of long waits each month to identify learnings and improvements from any long waits. Dan Holiday 

 
Key Risk Indicators (in development) 
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 Risk Title Risk Description 
Insufficient fleet 
resources 

The risk that there are insufficient fleet resources to meet demand leads to poor patient 
experience and care 

Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
Service Quality & Patient Experience Paul Kempster Executive Management Committee 
Corporate Risk Register Risks Fleet Capacity Risk (4), Private Providers Risk (5) 

 
 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 

Catastrophic 
(5) 

Likely 
(4) 

High Risk 
(20) 

Major 
(4) 

Unlikely 
(2) 

Significant 
Risk (8) 

Minor 
(2) 

Unlikely 
(2) 

Moderate Risk 
(4) 

 
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
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Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

Risk remains stable with actions ongoing to resolve the noted issues. The current make-ready 
contract has rolled over with Churchill continuing to deliver the services. A new competitive 
dialogue is due to be started with potential providers in the market. The exact requirements 
are being finalised. Stock control and asset management has been removed due to the 
ongoing work and decision to manage this within the Trust.   

The new Team Leader vehicles have been delivered (4 due week commencing 31 October) 
which has released the existing ones back to their previous roles. There has ever been a 
delay in receiving the 52 new ambulances. The delivery was meant to have started in early 
September, however currently none have been received.  

The percentage of vehicles off road continues to exceed tolerance largely due to Team Leader 
vehicles, as part of the replacement programme work.  



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
Operational MI Operational Management Information reports detailing performance against set metrics. Mark Green To be assessed 
Incident Reporting Policy Policy detailing the requirements and criteria for determining and investigating incidents, 

including near misses. 
Jane Campbell To be assessed 

Serious Incident Policy Policy detailing the requirements and criteria for determining and investigating a Serious 
Incident (SI), including roles and responsibilities. 

Paul Cooke To be assessed 

Demand forecasting Demand forecasting and profiling using models which are adjusted based on experience. Maria Langer To be assessed 
Workforce planning Planning of resource requirements to meet expected demand. Pamela Putt To be assessed 
Vehicle Off Road MI Management Information reports detailing the number of vehicles off road, reason and 

timeframe. 
Julie Larner To be assessed 

Make Ready Checks Vehicles are inspected prior to assignment to a job to ensure they meet the required 
standard in equipment and safety. 

Phil Pimlott To be assessed 

 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
Make Ready Contract The current make ready contract for ambulances ends in June 2022.  Phil Pimlott Urgent 
Private Provider Hours Private 999 providers are not delivering the required, contracted hours causing a deficit 

in resource availability for the trust. 
Steve West High 

 
Action Plans 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 
Owner 

Due Date 

Make Ready Contract 
Renewal 

Review and update Make Ready contract to 
ensure fit for purpose 

Requirements are being finalised 
before going out for competitive 
dialogue. 

Phil Pimlott Q2 2023 

Vehicle Replacement 
Programme 

Replacement of decommissioned vehicles from 
the batch of vehicles being released to fleet (52 
DCUs) 

Team Leader vehicles delivered, 
however the DCUs have been 
delayed with no vehicles being 
delivered to fleet yet. 

Phil Pimlott / Trevor 
Thompson 

TBC once 
dates received 
from vendor. 

Deployment Delivery Review the Trusts deployment delivery between 
the two CCCs to ensure adherence to ARP 
dispatch rules 

Action currently with Senior 
Operations Team. 

Luci Stephens Date to be 
confirmed once 
Ops team have 
allocated the 
review 

 
 
 



 

Assurance Activity 
Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
Emergency & Urgent Care 
Boards 

Regional groups consisting of acute providers, commissioners, ambulance service, community 
services and mental health services where issues impacting the care community can be discussed. 

Heads of Operations 

Patient Experience Review 
Group 

Group providing oversight of patient experiences, through pathways such as complaints, surveys and 
patient experience referrals. 

Will Hancock 

Patient Safety Incident Group Provides oversight of clinical incidents. Helen Young 
Patient Safety Group Provides oversight of patient care safety issues and ownership of the Patient Safety. Helen Young 
Quality & Safety Committee Provides oversight of all aspects of Patient Safety and Clinical Governance. Anne Stebbing 
Workforce Planning Board Oversight of resource planning across the Trust. Melanie Saunders 
Long wait audits Audit of long waits each month to identify learnings and improvements from any long waits. Dan Holiday 
Fleet meetings Provides oversight of the fleet and issues impacting it – meeting details are in development Trevor Thompson 
Internal Audits Provides an independent assessment of the design and operation of controls Aneel Pattni 

 
Key Risk Indicators 
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Risk Title Risk Description 
Inability to retain commercial 
contracts 

The risk that inefficient and ineffective contract management leads to the loss of 
commercial services or inability to make a profit from them. 

Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
Service Quality & Patient Experience Mike Murphy Executive Performance Group 
Corporate Risk Register Risks  

 
 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 
Major 

(4) 
Likely 

(4) 
High Risk 

(16) 
Major (4) Possible (3) Significant 

Risk (12) 
Significant 

(3) 
Unlikely 

(2) 
Moderate Risk 

(6) 
 
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
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Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

Commercial team work closely with services to manage contracts and identify new opportunities. 

Current performance could have an impact on the renewal of contracts however no indication that 
this is the case at the moment with our existing partners. Contact centre call answer rate is red (62% 
& 64% for September and October) along with the abandonment rate (16% & 14% respectively) 

The main challenge is the funding from the commissioners who are unable to match the increased 
costs experienced by the Trust through IPC processes following COVID.  

Market engagement sessions taking place, indicative timelines from the events means there is a 
possibility of back to back tenders for 6 months. This could impact our ability to effectively manage 
the process.  



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
Supplier Performance 
Reports 

Supplier performance information reports detailing performance against set metrics. Paul Stevens To be assessed 

CQC Compliance Reports Reports detailing supplier’s compliance against CQC requirements. Paul Stevens To be assessed 
Contract Models Contract models which ensure block contract in the event of a national emergency. Paul Stevens To be assessed 
Audits Audits of contact centre calls against accuracy and quality of information Paul Stevens To be assessed 
Demand Forecasting Formal forecasting of demand on a daily/weekly/monthly basis to understand resource 

requirements per day. 
Charlotte Micallef To be assessed 

 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
    
    

 
Action Plans 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 
Owner 

Due Date 

     
 
Assurance Activity 

Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
Commercial Board Oversight of commercial activity and service models Mike Murphy 
Internal Audits Provides an independent assessment of the design and operation of controls Aneel Pattni 
Clinical Governance Meeting Provides oversight of clinical governance across the commercial services Ross Cornett 

 

  



 

Risk Title Risk Description 
Lack of SCAS representation 
at Health economies 

The risk that SCAS is not represented at local and national health economies leading to an 
inability to influence future development, negative impacts on SCAS operations or missed 
opportunities 

Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
Effective stakeholder relationships: Developing whole 
systems solutions and seamless pathways of care. 

All Executive Management 
Committee 

Corporate Risk Register Risks Handover Delay Risk (1), Community Disruption Risk (7), Safeguarding Risk (28) 
 
 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 
Major 

(4) 
Likely 

(4) 
High Risk 

(16) 
Moderate (3) Unlikely (2) Moderate Risk 

(6) 
Moderate 

(3) 
Unlikely 

(2) 
Moderate Risk 

(6) 
 
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
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Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

Risk remains stable with SCAS having membership of and attending local and regional 
committees and boards. SCAS are asked to input into new initiatives and feedback on 
proposed changes to working practices which would impact on SCAS operations. 

SCAS are included in the development of ICB processes, including how risks and issues are 
escalated across the systems. 



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
Integrated Care Systems Attendance at Integrated Care Systems boards Multiple Owners To be assessed 
Resilience Forums Attendance at local resilience forums Paul Jefferies To be assessed 
Multi Agency Safeguarding 
Hub 

Attendance at relevant Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub Helen Young To be assessed 

Emergency & Urgent Care 
Boards 

Regional groups consisting of acute providers, commissioners, ambulance service, 
community services and mental health services where issues impacting the care 
community can be discussed. 

Heads of 
Operations 

To be assessed 

Contract Review & Quality 
Meeting 

Attendance at commissioner lead CRQM  Helen Young To be assessed 

Contract Review Meeting Attendance at commissioner lead CRM Mike Murphy To be assessed 
ICS ICP Quality Committees  Attendance at local and regional ICP meetings Helen Young To be assessed 
System Resource SCAS to be at the centre of system resource planning to attract and maintain income. Steve West To be assessed 
Tripartite Meetings Attendance at Tripartite meetings Mike Murphy To be assessed 

 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
    
    

 
Action Plans 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 
Owner 

Due Date 

     
 
Assurance Activity 

Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
Audit Committee Provides oversight of SCAS activities Mike Hawker 
Board Finance Reports Report to the board covering the trusts financial position. Aneel Pattni 
Clinical Transformation Board Oversight all clinical transformation project activity across the trust to ensure delivery against cost, 

time and patient care. 
Helen Young 

  



 

Risk Title Risk Description 
Sufficient and stable financial 
resources 

The risk that SCAS do not maintain stable financial resources or achieve planned cost 
savings. 

Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
Finance & Sustainability Aneel Pattni Executive Management Committee 
Corporate Risk Register Risks Financial Risk (11), Internal or External Fraud Risk (12) 

 
 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 

Catastrophic 
(5) 

Almost Certain 
(5) 

High Risk 
(25) 

Major (4) Possible (3) Significant 
Risk (12) 

Moderate 
(3) 

Unlikely 
(2) 

Moderate Risk 
(6) 

 
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
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Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

Financials remains stable and well managed however there is a potential for the increase in 
activity and resource required to resolve the actions required by the CQC inspection will 
impact our ability to deliver the financial plan. This is being monitored by the finance 
department and will be reassessed as more information becomes available. 



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
Integrated Performance 
Report 

Comprehensive report covering all aspects of the Trusts performance, including 
operations, finance, commercial services and patient care. 

Mark Green To be assessed 

Account Reconciliations Reconciliation of the trust accounts to ensure money is not missing Aneel Pattni To be assessed 
Central Funding Access to national funding for emergency related activity Aneel Pattni To be assessed 
Budget Process Planning and approval process for the Trusts budget. Aneel Pattni To be assessed 
Risk and Opportunity 
Register 

Cost pressures, both unexpected known and unknown are monitored via the register. Aneel Pattni To be assessed 

 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
CQC Improvement Plan Additional work and resource required to deliver the CQC improvements may increase 

the Trusts cost base meaning that the financial plan may be impacted. 
Aneel Pattni High 

 
Action Plans 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 
Owner 

Due Date 

Cost Improvement 
Programme 

Departments have cost improvement programmes to 
deliver efficiencies. 

 Aneel Pattni Ongoing 

 
Assurance Activity 

Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
Audit Committee Provides oversight of SCAS activities and financial accounts Mike Hawker 
Internal Audits Independent audit of the Trusts financial controls Aneel Pattni 
External Audits Independent audit of the Trusts financial accounts. Aneel Pattni 
CIP Quality Impact 
Assessments 

Impact assessments against the quality of service for Cost Improvement Plans. Aneel Pattni 

Benchmarking Trust can benchmark pandemic related spending against other ambulance trusts. Aneel Pattni 
 
  



 

Risk Title Risk Description 
Inability to recruit and/or 
retain non-clinical staff 

The risk that SCAS is unable to recruit sufficient numbers of new employees or retain 
existing employees to meet demand leading to poor patient experience and care 

Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
People & Organisational Development Melanie Saunders Workforce Development Board 
Corporate Risk Register Risks 999 Demand Risk (2), 111 Demand Risk (3), 999 Staff Capacity Risk (15), 111 Staff 

Capacity Risk (16), Training Compliance Risk (17), PTS Demand Risk (20) 
 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 

Catastrophic 
(5) 

Almost Certain 
(5) 

High Risk 
(25) 

Major (4) Almost Certain 
(5) 

High Risk 
(20) 

Minor 
(2) 

Unlikely 
(2) 

Moderate Risk 
(4) 

 
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
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Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

Risk continues to be high with external factors influencing the rating. The labour markets 
continue to be challenging and the cost of living crisis has deteriorated further. This severely 
impacts the Trusts ability to hire and retain band 2, 3 and 4 roles.  

The NHS pay-scales are in place; however, unions are balloting for industrial action as the 
rises are below current levels of inflation. 

Recruitment roadshows for January are being planned and recent open days have taken 
registration forms from interested people for ECA roles.  

111 Health Advisor and ECT intakes for October and November are lower than planned 
however the October intake for ECAs is higher. 

SCAS has been nominated for a Recruitment Industry Disability Initiative award. 

The risk is expected to remain high and outside of tolerance whilst these external influences 
remain as severe as they are.  

 



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
Integrated Workforce Plans Workforce plans for the Trust, including the delivery of a 5-year workforce plan Pamela Putt To be assessed 
Operational MI Operational Management Information reports detailing performance against set metrics. Mark Green To be assessed 
Staff Surveys Annual NHS staff survey Nicola Howells To be assessed 
Work from Home Ability for certain staff to work from home Jill Lanham To be assessed 
Agenda for Change National pay framework for NHS staff Natasha Dymond To be assessed 
Integrated Performance 
Report 

Comprehensive report covering all aspects of the Trusts performance, including 
operations, finance, commercial services and patient care. 

Mark Green To be assessed 

Secondments Internal short-term positions for staff to gain additional experience and skills Department Heads To be assessed 
Recruitment drives Focused recruitment events/advertisements in local areas Pamela Putt To be assessed 
Private Providers Use of private providers to deliver services Steve West To be assessed 

 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
Cost of Living Ongoing cost of living crisis including high levels of inflation and increased energy and 

fuel prices. 
Melanie Saunders Urgent 

New call centre A new call centre has opened in Oxford offering day and night shifts. Melanie Saunders High 
Call centre locations Call centre locations are in areas which have high  Melanie Saunders High 
IT team capacity Increased demand on the IT team requires additional roles however we have been 

unable to recruit when advertised. 
Jill Lanham High 

 
Action Plans 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 
Owner 

Due Date 

Retention Programme Review Review of the retention programme and 
opportunities. 

 Natasha Dymond TBC 

Talent Spotting Development of talent spotting and development.  Nicola Howells TBC 
SCAS Branding Increase SCAS employer branding. External website has been 

refreshed. Large amount of 
attraction activity being 
undertaken in person and online 

Pamela Putt Ongoing 

Workforce Race Equality 
Standard Action 
Implementation Plan 

Development of improvement plan to increase Race 
Equality to improve recruitment and retainment. 
Actions cover recruitment, selection, disciplinary 
process, career development, harassment and 
bullying, and diversity. 

 Dipen Rajyaguru Various, last 
being March 
2023 



 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 
Owner 

Due Date 

Workforce Disability Equality 
Standard Action Plan 

Development of plan to improve disability equality 
and improve recruitment and retainment rates. 
Actions cover recruitment, selection, harassment 
and bullying, wellbeing, and staff engagement. 

 Dipen Rajyaguru Various, last 
being March 
2023 

Retention Improvement Plan Development of improvement plan to increase 
employee retention rates 

 Natasha Dymond Ongoing 

Recruitment Plan Recruitment of additional health advisors, ECTs, 
ACAs and ECAs. 

Attraction plans in place. 
Recruitment processes have 
been reviewed and updated and 
additional training courses have 
been provided. 

Pamela Putt Ongoing 

 
Assurance Activity 

Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
Workforce Development Board Provides oversight of all aspects of workforce management. Melanie Saunders 
SCAS Leader Evaluations Post course feedback on strengths and development areas. Nicola Howells 
Equality & Diversity Steering Group Provides oversight of Equality and Diversity across the Trust Dipen Rajyaguru 
SCAS Leadership Programme Development programme for SCAS leaders Nicola Howells 
Workforce Race Equality Standard 
& Workforce Disability Equality 
Standard results 

Data submitted to NHS England and contrasted across all NHS providers to monitor progress 
against Equality, Diversity and Health standards. 

Melanie Saunders 

Recovery Board Provides oversight of all aspects of performance including recruitment and retention 
improvement plans. 

Paul Kempster 

Service Delivery Board Provides oversight of service delivery and associated activities. Paul Kempster 
 

Key Risk Indicators (in development) 

  



 

Risk Title Risk Description 
Insufficient clinical staff to 
meet demand 

The risk that there is insufficient clinical staff to meet demand across the Trust leading to 
poor patient experience and care.  

Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
People & Organisational Development Melanie Saunders Workforce Development Board 
Corporate Risk Register Risks 999 Staff Capacity Risk (15), 111 Staff Capacity Risk (16), Training Compliance Risk (17) 

 
 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 

Catastrophic 
(5) 

Almost Certain 
(5) 

High Risk 
(25) 

Major (4) Almost Certain 
(5) 

High Risk  
(20) 

Minor 
(2) 

Unlikely 
(2) 

Moderate Risk 
(4) 

 
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
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Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

Risk remains elevated due the high number of clinical vacancies across the North. 

A third cohort of international paramedics are due to start in November 2022 with the 
November intake of paramedics higher than planned.  

Plans have been developed to recruit additional Ambulance Nurses across the Trust to relieve 
pressures on existing crews. 

An international nurses project to bring additional nurses in to the CCC area has started. 



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
Integrated Workforce Plans Workforce plans for the Trust, including the delivery of a 5-year workforce plan Pamela Putt To be assessed 
Operational MI Operational Management Information reports detailing performance against set metrics. Mark Green To be assessed 
Staff Surveys Annual NHS staff survey. Nicola Howells To be assessed 
Agenda for Change National pay framework for NHS staff. Natasha Dymond To be assessed 
Integrated Performance 
Report 

Comprehensive report covering all aspects of the Trusts performance, including 
operations, finance, commercial services and patient care. 

Mark Green To be assessed 

Secondments Internal short-term positions for staff to gain additional experience and skills. Department Heads To be assessed 
Recruitment drives Focused recruitment events/advertisements in local areas. Pamela Putt To be assessed 
Private Providers Use of private providers to deliver services. Steve West To be assessed 
Exit Interviews Leavers are given an exit interview to understand reasons for leaving which is then 

analysed and reported on. 
Natasha Dymond To be assessed 

Paramedic Rotation Paramedics can rotate duties to ensure a variety of work and experience. Melanie Saunders To be assessed 
Executive Performance 
Review 

TBC TBC To be assessed 

ICS Programme Programme for primary care staffing Melanie Saunders To be assessed 
 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
North East and North North 
vacancies 

High vacancy levels in the North East and North North nodes Melanie Saunders Urgent 

Apprenticeship programme 
Lack of a direct entry apprenticeship programme. Only existing paramedics come in 
directly or internationally. The only non-qualified route is internal and requires 1-year 
employment tenure. 

Ian Teague High 

International Recruitment Paramedic recruitment programme in place for Australia but no agreed programmes 
beyond that. 

Pamela Putt / Ian 
Teague 

High 

 
Action Plans 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan Owner Due Date 
Retention Programme Review Review of the retention programme and 

opportunities. 
 Nicola Howells TBC 

Talent Spotting Development of talent spotting and 
development programme. 

 Nicola Howells TBC 

SCAS Branding Increase SCAS employer branding. External website has been refreshed. 
Large amount of attraction activity 
being undertaken in person and online 

Pamela Putt Ongoing 

Health & Wellbeing Development of Health & Wellbeing initiatives.   Natasha Dymond TBC 



 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan Owner Due Date 
Workforce Race Equality 
Standard Action 
Implementation Plan 

Development of improvement plan to increase 
Race Equality to improve recruitment and 
retainment. Actions cover recruitment, 
selection, disciplinary process, career 
development, harassment and bullying, and 
diversity. 

 Dipen Rajyaguru Various, last 
being March 
2023 

Workforce Disability Equality 
Standard Action Plan 

Development of plan to improve disability 
equality and improve recruitment and 
retainment rates. Actions cover recruitment, 
selection, harassment and bullying, wellbeing, 
and staff engagement. 

 Dipen Rajyaguru Various, last 
being March 
2023 

Retention Improvement Plan Development of improvement plan to increase 
employee retention rates 

 Natasha Dymond TBC 

Primary Care Actively lobby at national level on pace and 
scale of paramedics in primary care (including 
development of ICS level workplans) 

 Melanie Saunders Ongoing 

Recruitment Plan Recruitment of additional clinical advisors, 
Clinical Support Desk Practitioners, Nurses 
and Paramedics. 

Attraction plans in place.  Recruitment 
process has been reviewed and 
updated.  Additional training courses 
have been provided. 
International nurse work has started to 
recruit nurses to work in CSD initially. 

Pamela Putt Q3 2022 

Return to Practice Return to Practice programme for previously 
trained and working paramedics who no longer 
practice. 

Course being developed in conjunction 
with Cumbria University 

Ian Teague / Pamela 
Putt 

Q3 2022 

 
Assurance Activity 

Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
Workforce Development Board Provides oversight of all aspects of workforce management. Melanie Saunders 
SCAS Leader Evaluations  Nicola Howells 
Equality & Diversity Steering Group Provides oversight of Equality and Diversity across the Trust Dipen Rajyaguru 
SCAS Leadership Programme Development programme for SCAS leaders Nicola Howells 
Workforce Race Equality Standard & 
Workforce Disability Equality Standard results 

Data submitted to NHS England and contrasted across all NHS providers to monitor 
progress against Equality, Diversity and Health standards. 

Melanie Saunders 

Key Risk Indicators – In development 



 

 

Risk Title Risk Description 
Loss of corporate memory The risk that high turnover of staff in key and leadership roles could lead to a loss of 

corporate memory and reduce the Trusts ability to deliver change. 
Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
People & Organisational Development All Executive Directors of Service Areas Executive Management Committee 
Corporate Risk Register Risks Leadership Capacity Risk (19) 

 
 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 
Major 

(4) 
Likely 

(4) 
High Risk 

(16) 
Major 

(4) 
Likely 

(4) 
High Risk 

(16) 
Minor 

(2) 
Unlikely 

(2) 
Moderate Risk 

(4) 
 
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
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Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

Risk continues to be elevated however mitigations are in place to manage at this level. The 
Interim CFO has been in place since August and the new permanent CFO started in October 
with a handover period. 

The recruitment of a new CEO is ongoing with interview panels planned and a decision 
expected by the end of the year. 

The Interim Deputy Director of Nursing left at the end of September with a new Interim Deputy 
Director of Nursing joining in October.  

There is an Interim Director of Corporate Governance and Company Secretary as well as a 
two new Deputy Company Secretaries to help manage the improvement work.  

The risk is expected remain elevated whilst the new roles are recruited and are settled in 
position. 



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
Recruitment Process Formal process for recruiting and onboarding people into the Trust. Pamela Putt To be assessed 
Talent Mapping and 
Development Programme 

Identification of emerging talent across SCAS and create bespoke development 
programmes for them. 

Nicola Howells Not Yet 
Implemented 

Succession Planning Key technical and leadership roles have identified succession plans in place. Nicola Howells Not Yet 
Implemented 

SCAS Leader Programme for leader development across SCAS covering individual management, team 
management and service development. 

Nicola Howells To be assessed 

 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
CEO Stepping Down The CEO is stepping down in 2023 after 17 years at SCAS. This is a considerable loss of 

knowledge, experience and leadership for the Trust. 
Melanie Saunders Urgent 

New CFO (Interim) The CFO is retiring in August 2022 with a new CFO taking over on an interim basis. This 
is a considerable loss of knowledge, experience and leadership for the Trust. 

Melanie Saunders High 

New Company Secretary The Director of Corporate Governance and Company Secretary is leaving after 10 years. 
This is a considerable loss of knowledge, experience and leadership in managing the 
company governance and board agenda. 

Melanie Saunders Urgent 

CQC Improvement Plan The CQC improvement plan requires a considerable amount of focus and attention from 
the Executive and Senior Leadership teams. 

Mike Murphy Urgent 

Recovery Plans The Operational Recover Plans requires a considerable amount of focus and attention 
from the Senior Leadership teams. 

Paul Kempster Urgent 

 
Action Plans 

Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 
Owner 

Due Date 

Talent Programme Reinvigoration of SCAS talent programme  Nicola Howells TBC 
Succession Planning Development of succession plans for key roles  Nicola Howells Q4 2023 
Skillset Gap Analysis Analysis of skill gaps for each directorate Plan to be developed All Execs TBC 
Recruitment against Gap 
Analysis 

Recruitment to address recognised skill gaps Plan to be developed All Execs TBC 

CQC Improvement Plan Improvement plan to address issues identified by 
the CQC visits, including safeguarding, risk 
management and patient safety. 

 Mike Murphy Stage 1 
October 22 

Recovery Plans Detailed recovery plans for the Operational teams 
to start achieving operational performance targets.  

 Paul Kempster March 2023 

CEO Recruitment Recruitment process for the new CEO. Plan to be agreed. Melanie Saunders December 22 



 

Assurance Activity 
Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
Workforce Development Board Provides oversight of all aspects of workforce management. Melanie Saunders 
SCAS Leader Evaluations Post course feedback on strengths and development areas. Nicola Howells 
SCAS Leadership Programme Development programme for SCAS leaders Nicola Howells 

 

  



 

Risk Title Risk Description 
Poor IT resilience The risk that poor IT resilience negatively impacts operational and clinical performance and 

digital change  
Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
Technology Transformation Aneel Pattni Executive Management Committee 
Corporate Risk Register Risks System Failure Risk (13), Cyber Risk (24) 

 
 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 
Major 

(4) 
Likely 

(4) 
High Risk 

(16) 
Major (4) Likely (4) High Risk 

(16) 
Moderate 

(3) 
Unlikely 

(2) 
Moderate Risk 

(6) 
 
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
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Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

Work continues to improve the resilience of our infrastructure. The Data centre infrastructure 
upgrade continues with the hardware due to be in place for November, followed by a period of 
testing. This will take place before migration of the virtual server estate. Resilience 
improvement work continues with the VXLAN project however there has been a slight delay to 
delivery due to the global supply chain issues. Current expectations on the VXLAN project is 
that the circuits and hardware will be delivered by the end of October with final completion of 
the project in early December.  

Cleric had a significant outage on 20 September 2022, with processes reverting to paper. 
Cleric was restored in the late afternoon. 

A BDO review of Safeguarding ICT systems has highlighted that the infrastructure used to 
manage the referrals is not sufficiently robust and will require improvement. 

 

 



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
Technology MI Management information detailing performance against set IT metrics. Jill Lanham To be assessed 
VPN Security protocol for staff working away from SCAS sites. Mark Northcott To be assessed 
Multi-Factor Authentication Access to SCAS applications requires the user to authenticate their credentials multiple 

times using username/password and a code from an authenticator app (such as 
Microsoft Authenticator or Google Authenticator). 

Mark Northcott To be assessed 

Disaster Recovery Plans Recovery plans for IT services. Jill Lanham To be assessed 
Business Continuity Plans Recovery plans for teams and sites. Hollie Bailey To be assessed 
Patching Schedule Update and Security patches, both standard and critical are patched on servers and 

laptops/desktops. 
Mark Northcott To be assessed 

Back-up processes Critical systems have back-up processes, such as paper-based patient notes,  Process Owners To be assessed 
Supplier Relationship 
Management 

Process for managing the relationship with key suppliers/partners aimed at improving the 
service provided. 

System / Service 
Owners 

To be assessed 

 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
Technical Documentation There is no technical documentation library covering items such as network maps, data 

maps, application dependencies. 
Jill Lanham Moderate 

Maintenance Schedules There is no routine maintenance performed on IT hardware (e.g. servers) nor on 
databases.  

Jill Lanham High 

Supplier contracts Escalation process and responsibilities for support (including SLAs) in the event of 
system issues should be clearly defined.  

Jill Lanham Moderate 

Supply Chain There is a global chipset shortage which is impacting the Trusts ability to obtain certain 
technology which could impact our ability to deliver against all projects 

Jill Lanham High 

Adastra Outage 
Adastra software was unavailable between 4 – 23 August 2022. This has led to the 111-
service going into Business Continuity. The safeguarding team are unable to access 
Adastra data meaning they cannot effectively respond to requests from partnerships and 
boards. 

Luci Stephens Urgent 

Cleric Outages The Cleric system used by PTS has experienced a high number of outages over the past 
12 months, causing the team to revert to paper. 

Jill Lanham Urgent 

 

  



 

Action Plans 
Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 

Owner 
Due Date 

Data Centre Replacement 
Project 

Upgrading current end of life virtual services to new 
technology. 

Infrastructure planned to be up 
and running in 
October/November for testing 
prior to migrating the virtual 
servers. 

Jill Lanham Mar 2023 

VXLAN 

Implementing VXLAN to add the ability for VX servers 
to mirror to improve resilience 

Circuits and hardware delivery 
has been delayed until October 
with installation, configuration 
and testing to be completed in 
early December. 

Jill Lanham December 
2022 

Recruitment of an SQL 
Database Administrator 

A database administrator role is going to be included 
in the IT structure. 

Proposed structure to be 
discussed at Exec Committee 

Jill Lanham Awaiting 
approval 

Clinical Safety Officer 
Role being created to manage the clinical risk aspect 
of system changes 

Role details have approved but 
no internal skill set at present. 
Temporary resource being 
sourced externally. 

Jill Lanham ASAP but 
depending on 
market 
availability 

 
Assurance Activity 

Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
ICT Control Board Oversight of IT related activities. Jill Lanham 
Data Security and Protection 
Toolkit 

Self-assessment against NHS Digitals Data Security and Protection requirements. Mark Northcott 

Internal Audits Provides an independent assessment of the design and operation of controls Aneel Pattni 
Information Security & 
Governance Steering Group 

Oversight of Information Security and Information Governance activities across the Trust Aneel Pattni 

  



 

Risk Title Risk Description 
Inability to maintain 
operations due to a business 
continuity event 

The risk that the Trust is unable to or is inefficient in recovering or maintaining operations 
in the event of an external business continuity event, leading to poor patient care. 

Strategic Objective Risk Owner Oversight Committee 
All Objectives All Executive Directors Executive Management Committee 
Corporate Risk Register Risks Community Disruption Risk (7), System Failure Risk (13), Cyber Risk (24), COVID-19 

Risk (25) 
 
Risk Ratings 

Inherent Ratings Residual Ratings Target Rating 
Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score Impact Likelihood Score 

Catastrophic 
(5) 

Almost Certain 
(5) 

High Risk 
(20) 

Major (4) Possible (3) Significant 
Risk (12) 

Major 
(4) 

Rare 
(1) 

Moderate Risk 
(4) 

 
Risk Rating History and Rationale 
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Risk Rating v Target Rating

Rating Rationale 

The recovery programme following the Business Continuity incident is ongoing with actions being 
tracked via the Recovery Group. 

There is an emerging risk around national power outages for 3 hours during the winter. The Estates 
and ICT teams are working to understanding the resilience of SCAS to the potential blackouts. This 
includes reviewing the Trusts offices, resource centre, data centres and aerial masts. A series of 
black site tests are being conducted to test building resilience, identify issues and resolve them prior 
to the potential power outages.  

The Business Continuity team are working with HR and Risk to understand the potential impact of 
industrial action over the winter period both for SCAS and the system 

Cleric went down on 20 September with the process reverting to paper for the period.  



 

Controls 
Control Name Control Description Control Owner Control Rating 
National Emergency and 
Pandemic Plans 

Set of national plans to direct activity during national emergencies including 
pandemics. 

James Amos To be assessed 

Resilience Planning Models Planning models to identify SCAS resilience. Jason Somerville To be assessed 
Membership of Network Bodies Membership of regional and national resilience networks to aid in horizon scanning 

for potential risks and develop coordinated responses. 
James Amos To be assessed 

Integrated Care System 
Partnership 

Close partnership working across the ICS footprint to understand local acute and 
primary care recovery plans impact SCAS. 

James Amos To be assessed 

Financial Monitoring Identification of unanticipated spend associated with increase in expenditure due to a 
national emergency. 

James Amos To be assessed 

Integrated Performance Report Comprehensive report covering all aspects of the Trusts performance, including 
operations, finance, commercial services and patient care. 

Mark Green To be assessed 

Business Continuity Plans Each team has a documented procedure that guides the team in how to respond, 
recover, resume and restore the operations of the team. All plans stored in the 
Business Continuity System, Fusion. 

Hollie Bailey To be assessed 

Business Impact Analysis Teams conduct a Business Impact Analysis process to identify what impacts to the 
Trust there would be should their processes be unavailable. This includes their 
Recovery Time Objective, Recovery Point Objective and their Maximum Tolerable 
Period of Disruption. 

Hollie Bailey To be assessed 

Business Continuity & 
Assurance Manager 

The Trust has a dedicated Business Continuity & Assurance Manager in place to 
manage the Business Continuity process. 

James Amos To be assessed 

Incident Debriefs Teams and management are debriefed by the Business Continuity team post 
incidents to document and implement any post incident learning as well as observing 
and disseminating good practice. 

James Amos To be assessed 

 
Current Issues 

Issue Name Issue Description Issue Owner Issue Rating 
Stakeholder Engagement Business Impact Analyses and plans are not being returned or signed off in the required 

timeframe. Stakeholders are not actively engaging in the project sufficiently. 
Hollie Bailey High 

Lack of a complete CMDB Lack of a complete CMDB covering all assets and their location impacts the ability to 
conduct BIAs and identify any dependencies. 

Jill Lanham Moderate 

End to End Recovery There is no end to end recovery (including ICT) view covering all processes and systems 
to provide assurance that the system can recover in the event of an emergency 

James Amos High 

 
 
 
 



 

Action Plans 
Action Plan Name Action Plan Description Action Progress Notes Action Plan 

Owner 
Due Date 

Fusion Implementation Plan Implementation plan for Fusion across the Trust. Plan owners continue to be chased to 
update their plans. 

Hollie Bailey October 2022 

Adastra Recovery Group Group reviewing the incident, actions taken and 
what improvements can be made within the Trust 
to improve our response in the future. 

 James Amos Ongoing until 
action plan 
developed 

 
Assurance Activity 

Assurance Activity Assurance Description Owner 
Plan Exercises Testing and exercising of emergency plans to highlight gaps. James Amos 
Quality & Safety Committee Provides oversight of all aspects of Patient Safety and Clinical Governance Anne Stebbing 
Resilience and Emergency 
Boards 

Attendance at local and national resilience and emergency boards to drive pathway discussions James Amos 

Clinical Review Group Provides oversight of clinical activities including the use of medical devices and equipment. John Black 
Workforce Development Board Provides oversight of all aspects of workforce management. Melanie Saunders 
Internal Audits Provides an independent assessment of the design and operation of controls Aneel Pattni 
Commercial Board Provides oversight of the commercial strategy and decisions for the Trust Paul Stevens 
Patient Safety Group Provides oversight of patient care safety issues and ownership of the Patient Safety  Helen Young 

 

Key Risk Indicators (in development) 
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Business Impact Analysis - Sept 2022

BIAs Completed In Progress - In Contact
In Progress - Limited Contact
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

Amendments to the Trust Constitution 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

50 

Executive Summary: 
 

The Board of Directors is invited to approve the changes to the Trust’s 
Constitution, brought forward following a review undertaken by a 
Membership and Engagement Committee comprising Governors. 
 
Subject to approval, the changes will result increase number of public 
membership constituencies from four to five and increasing the total 
number of Governor positions from 25 to 26.  
 

Recommendations: 
 

The Board is asked to approve the proposed amendment to the 
Constitution. 
 

Executive lead: 
 

Mike Murphy 

Report author: 
 

Syma Dawson, Interim Company Secretary 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

The Council of Governors has already approved the proposed 
amendments to the Trust’s Constitution, at its meeting on Tuesday 5th 
April 2022.  
 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☐ 

Approve 
☒ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☒ 

Acceptable 
☐ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
Requesting that the Board (and Council of Governors) approves amendments to the Trust’s 
Constitution is in accordance with the Health and Social Care Act 2012 
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

Not applicable 
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Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Not applicable 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

Not applicable 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 
If the amendments are agreed, an updated Constitution will be uploaded to the Trust’s public 
website.  
 
List of Appendices: n/a  
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING IN PRIVATE 24 NOVEMBER 2022 

Amendments to the Trust Constitution 
 
PURPOSE 

 
1. The purpose of the paper is to seek Board approval to establish a new public constituency: 

‘Rest of England and Wales’. This amendment follows a decision made by the Council of 
Governors at their meeting on 5 April 2022. 

 
KEY ISSUES  

 
2. Following a recommendation made by the Membership and Engagement Committee, the 

Council of Governors has agreed to create a fifth public membership constituency – ‘out of 
area’. This will be in addition to the Berkshire, Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Hampshire 
constituencies.  
 

3. Up until this point, anyone residing outside of the four counties can still become a member of 
the Trust, if they can demonstrate a link or connection to one of the four counties. Appendix 
1 provides further detail and highlights the recommendation that was made to, and accepted 
by, the Council of Governors.  
 

4. The Membership and Engagement Committee will be tasked to consider how the Trust can 
recruit and engage members in the new Constituency, notwithstanding the 300 members that 
would already come under the new constituency if approved.  
 

5. This change in approach will require an amendment to the Trust Constitution; to recognise 
that there would be five public membership constituencies. 
 

 
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 
6. The Board is asked to approve the amendment to the Trust’s Constitution in light of a decision 

taken by the Council of Governors to create a new public constituency ‘Rest of England and 
Wales’.  
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APPENDIX 1 – EXTRACT FROM CoG paper Enclosure F, 5 April 2022 

 
 
New public constituency  

 
7. At the CoG meeting in July 2021, it was agreed to create a new public constituency to 

represent those members that reside outside of one of SCAS’ four main counties. The Trust’s 
Membership and Engagement Manager has sought advice from a number of sources 
(including NHS Providers and the Foundation Trust Model Constitution) in regard to the most 
appropriate name for the new constituency and to ensure that it is both logical (i.e. where 
SCAS served patients) and legally appropriate. It is proposed that the new public constituency 
be called ‘Rest of England and Wales’ as opposed to ‘Out of Area’ which was initially 
considered. The Trust has a small number of members residing in Wales and this will ensure 
that they are also represented by the new Governor.   

 
8. It is proposed that the introduction of this new Governor position and constituency be aligned 

to the next round of public Governor elections which are due to take place in autumn 2022. 
 

9. If approved by the CoG, approval will need to be sought from the SCAS Board at an 
appropriate future Board meeting.  
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

Corporate Governance Strategic Plan 2022-24 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

50 

Executive Summary: 
 

The purpose of the Corporate Governance Strategic Plan 22-24 (“CG 
Plan”) is to outline how South Central Ambulance Service (SCAS) will go 
‘back to basics’ with its corporate governance in order to strengthen the 
foundations needed to deliver the Trust’s overarching Strategy ‘Our 
Future Vision & Strategy 2022-27’.  
 
This two-year CG Plan demonstrates how and when the Trust will 
address the Corporate Governance related findings from the CQC 
inspection carried out in 2022 as well as recommendations from the 
Governance Review undertaken by NHSE/I Improvement Director Cathy 
Geddes. The plan also extends to other governance standards such as 
those relating to declarations of interest and ensuring compliance 
against our corporate documents i.e. Constitution, Trust Standing 
Financial Instructions (SFIs), Scheme of Delegation and Standing 
Orders.  
 
The approval of this CG Plan by the Board of Directors and Executive 
Team declares their firm commitment to establish a robust and resilient 
corporate governance system in the next two years.  
 

Recommendations: 
 

The Board is asked to approve the CG Strategic Plan.  
 

Executive lead: 
 

Mike Murphy 

Report author: 
 

Syma Dawson, Interim Co Sec 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

Approved by Executive Committee on the 15th November. Prior to this, 
informally consulted NEDs: Mike Hawker, Sumit Biswas and Exec 
leads Will Hancock and Mike Murphy.  

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☐ 

Approve 
☒ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☒ 

Acceptable 
☐ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 
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Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
 
The Strategic Plan sets out actions and timescales to deliver the CQC actions relating to 
corporate governance as well as those identified in Cathy Geddes’ NHSE/I governance review. 
KPIs will be developed to report on progress to the Executive and assurance reports provided to 
the Audit Committee twice a year.  
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

All strategic objectives 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Not applicable 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

Not applicable 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 
Implementation of the Strategic Plan and tracking progress via Executive Committee  
 
List of Appendices: n/a  
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

 

‘Back to Basics’ 

 

Q3 2022 – 2024 

 

 

 

 

Author  Syma Dawson ACG, Interim Director of Corporate 
Governance / Company Secretary 

Version  1.0 

Approved by:  Executive Committee: 15th November 2022 
Board of Directors:      24th November 2022 

Review due by:  September 2024  

 

 

https://southcentralambulance-my.sharepoint.com/personal/syma_dawson_scas_nhs_uk/Documents/Desktop/scasjobs.co.uk
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1. Executive Summary  
 
The purpose of this Corporate Governance Strategic Plan 22-24 (“CG Plan”) is to outline 
how South Central Ambulance Service (SCAS) will go ‘back to basics’ with its corporate 
governance in order to strengthen the foundations needed to deliver the Trust’s overarching 
Strategy ‘Our Future Vision & Strategy 2022-27’.  
 
This two-year CG Plan demonstrates how and when the Trust will address the Corporate 
Governance related findings from the CQC inspection carried out in 2022 as well as 
recommendations from the Governance Review undertaken by NHSE/I Improvement 
Director Cathy Geddes. The plan also extends to other governance standards such as those 
relating to declarations of interest and ensuring compliance against our corporate 
documents i.e. Constitution, Trust Standing Financial Instructions (SFIs), Scheme of 
Delegation and Standing Orders.  
 
The approval of this CG Plan by the Board of Directors and Executive Team declares their 
firm commitment to establish a robust and resilient corporate governance system in the next 
two years.  

2. Vision and Mission  
 

The Trust’s Strategy ‘Our Future Vision & Strategy 2022-27’ sets out its vision to be an 
outstanding team, delivering world leading outcomes through innovation and partnership. 
Its mission is to ‘deliver the right care, first time, every time’ and prides itself on 4 core 
values: 

• Caring – by understanding and connecting with the needs of ourselves and those 

around us, we can take action to deliver the best possible care.  

• Professionalism – by demonstrating strong integrity, respect and high standards of 

practice including maintaining high standards of governance at all times.  

• Innovation – continuously striving to create improved outcomes for all.  

• Teamwork- by combining our strengths and working together, we develop 

outcomes that are more effective, inclusive and sustainable than when we work in 

isolation.  

Corporate Governance Vision 

In line with the Trust’s strategic vision and mission, we will strive to achieve ‘Outstanding’ 

governance systems and processes by 2027. We recognise that in order to deliver our 

overarching Strategy, we need to establish and maintain a robust governance infrastructure. 

In order to achieve this goal, this two-year strategic plan goes ‘back to basics’ to build the 

foundations for a sustainable governance framework.  

The vision of this two-year Strategic Plan is to ensure that our systems, people, and 

processes reflect the following key governance principles: 

1. Integrity and fairness: we are committed to establishing an honest and fair culture 

when applying our governance standards and maintaining the highest levels of 

probity.  
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2. Transparency and Accountability: as an NHS Foundation Trust, we endeavour to 

be transparent and held to account about how we ensure the best value for money 

and make decisions in the best interests of our staff, patients and volunteers.  

3. Compliance particularly in relation to regulatory and statutory requirements: we 

commit to ensuring compliance against our own Corporate Governance Framework 

as well as the NHS Provider License, and statutory legislation such as the Companies 

Act 2006 and the Health and Care Act 2022.   

4. Effectiveness and efficiency: good governance facilities effective and efficient 

decision-making which is informed by accurate, reliable and timely information.  

Corporate Governance Mission:  

“To make the right decisions at the right time with the right information”. 

To succeed in achieving this mission, it’s important that senior leaders in the organisation 

understand the difference between good governance and weak governance. This 

Strategic Plan sets out what good governance looks like however, the following section 

will highlight some examples of weak governance.  

• Duplication of reporting – particularly in busy times there is a tendency to submit 

the same report to several Committees / Board and change the headings, date of 

meeting. However, reports must be tailored according to the audience and the 

desired outcome of the report for example, are you simply reporting on progress, 

seeking to escalate risks for agreed mitigating actions and / or providing assurance 

that systems and processes are operating as intended. Executive management 

meetings will have operational detail however, Board level reports typically only 

provide assurance and by exception, include more granular detail when necessary 

for example, escalation of risks / serious incidents.   

 

• Non-compliance with SFIs and Scheme of Delegation – the Board reserves certain 

powers and delegates others as set out in the Scheme of Delegation. The CEO / 

Executive Team / management have a responsibility to understand their delegated 

authority and the approvals process set out in the SFIs. It is a common 

misconception that this responsibility lies with the Chief Finance Officer and 

Company Secretary who are only the custodians and advisors of the corporate 

documents.  

 

• Meetings on top of meetings - a weak governance system fails to consider the 

appropriate timing and frequency of meetings which is why our mission references 

‘at the right time’. It’s important to have sufficient time in-between meetings to allow 

the work to happen and for changes to take effect. If a Committee meets too often, 

the quality of the papers and discussion suffer so it is important to strike a balance.  

 

• Lack of accountability and transparency – a weak governance system fails to 

identify ownership and how information should flow within the organisation 

internally but also externally. Governance structures play an important role in 

establishing an accountability framework while ensuring the organisation is 

transparent about the way it operates and the decisions it makes.  
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3. Corporate Governance Framework  
 

The Chartered Governance Institute defines Corporate Governance as the system of rules, 

practices and processes by which a company is directed and controlled. The Corporate 

Governance Framework below is the context in which the Board and management lead the 

organisation within a system and network to collectively work together in serving the best 

interests of patients, public, staff and volunteers.  

The Integrated Care Systems (ICSs) are incredibly important in bringing together NHS 

organisations, local authorities and others to take collective responsibility for planning 

services, improving health and reducing inequalities across geographical areas. Therefore, 

as well as be internally focused, our governance systems and processes must look outwards 

and consider how the relevant components relate to the wider system. In doing so, we 

provide assurance to our regulatory bodies that our corporate governance framework is 

robust and effective. 

 

 

 

 

 

Corporate 
Governance

Board of 
Directors & 
Committees 

Council of 
Governors 

Transparency 
& 

Accountability

Legal & 
Regulatory 
Framework

Organisational 
Hierarchy 

Policies & 
Procedures

Risk 
Management & 
Internal Control

System level 

working 

Integrated Care 
Systems & 

Integrated Care 
Boards  

 

Regulatory 

Oversight 

NHSE/I & CQC 
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4. Accountability Framework  
The Board of Directors has a legal duty to promote the success of the Trust in order to 

maximise the benefits for the members of the Trust and general public at system level.  

At the corporate level, the Board is wholly responsible for developing, implementing and 

maintaining a sound corporate governance system. The Chair, with the support of the 

Company Secretary, must ensure the Board remains focused on governance. 

While the overall responsibility for Corporate Governance sits with the Board, authority is 

delegated to the Chief Executive as Accountable Office and Executive Directors to 

execute this responsibility through the management structure. A good governance system 

identifies and promotes accountable decision-making at all levels of the business.  

Under the National Health Service Act 2006 and amended 2012 Act, the Council of 

Governors relates to the concept of an NHS Foundation Trust and local accountability, 

which governors form a pivotal role in providing. The Council of Governors, collectively, is 

the body that binds the Trust to the public, staff, volunteers, and key stakeholders.  

Below is an illustration of our internal accountability framework:  

 

Externally: at the system and regulatory level, the Trust holds monthly tripartite meetings 

which provides oversight and assurance regarding the Trust’s position and performance 

and includes representation at the provider, ICB, CQC and NHSE/I level. This forum 

reports into the Integrated Assurance Committee which in turn reports into the ICB. In 

addition, there is the NHSE/I regional oversight and assurance structure. Like all NHS 

providers, the Trust has regular ‘keep in touch’ meetings with the CQC as well as provides 

formal assurance to the regulator on our progress against the Improvement Programme.  
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5. Assurance Framework  
 
The most fundamental part of our assurance framework is a proper understanding of our 
patients’ needs, as well as the numbers of appropriately qualified staff and other resources 
to meet those needs. As set out in the Plan, the Trust must undertake a Business 
Assurance assessment which will scrutinise the three lines of defence model to determine 
the gaps and single points of failure in the organisation. This assessment will need to 
stress test our resilience levels and internal controls to help us continue to strengthen 
these important defence mechanisms.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1st Line of Defence   2nd Line of Defence  3rd Line of Defence 

 

Strategic delivery (Executive 

Committee) 
Project and programme 
management (Executive 
Transformation Board) 
Business planning and assurance 
process 

Performance management & IPR 
(Service Delivery Board & IPR 
review meetings) 
Budget and budgetary control 
Risk management (Risk, 
Assurance and Compliance 

Committee) 
Counter Fraud Policy 
Internal audits  
Incident Management  
Corporate Risk Register  
SI reports to Board  

EPRR 
Information Governance / Cyber-
security  
Health & Safety 
Declarations of Interest 
Policies, procedures, codes of 

conduct and charter of behaviours 
 

Board of Directors 

 

Corporate Assurance 

 

Board Assurance 

 

External Assurance 

 

• Audit Committee: Reviews and 

monitors risk management 
systems, governance and internal 
controls. Reviews and recommend 
approval of the Annual Report and 
Accounts, including the Annual 

Governance Statement 

• Internal Audit 

• Review Board Assurance 
Framework and strategic risks  

• Upward Reporting from Board 

Assurance Committees: Audit, 
People and Culture, Quality and 
Safety, Remuneration Committee, 
Charitable Funds Committee 

• SI Reports to Board  

• Staff Survey results 

• Complaints  

• Legal Claims  

• Freedom to Speak Up 

• Patient, Staff & Volunteer stories to 
Board 

 

External audit work programme 

 
Counter fraud investigations 
and reports  
 
External reviews: Cathy 
Geddes’ governance review  

 
CQC inspections  
 
NHSE/I Improvement Director 
support  
 

Tripartite meetings with ICBs, 
NHSE/I and CQC 
 
External reporting: e.g. DSPT, 
RIDDOR reporting to Health & 
Safety Executive  
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6. Strategic Plan (objectives in no particular order) 
 

The Corporate Governance Strategic Objectives have been developed as a result of: 

• Required actions issued by the CQC following their 2022 inspection;  

• Recommendations from Cathy Geddes’ Governance Report October 2022 (NHSE/I 

Intensive Support Director); and  

• A broader internal programme of work which has mapped good governance practice 

against the Trust’s existing systems and processes.   

 

Due No Objective 
 

Key Actions  Key 
Dependencies / 

Updates 

Status 

 2022/23 
Q3 
– 
Q4 

1 i. Corporate 
Documents 
(Constitution, 
Scheme of 
Delegation, SFIs 
and Standing 
Orders) reflect new 
leadership roles and 

current systems. 
 
 
ii. There is a good 

level of 
understanding 
across the 
organisation 
regarding Corporate 
Governance and 
the key provisions 
and purpose of the 
Corporate 

Documents.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

iii. Internal assessment 
against compliance 
with CQC 
Regulation 17: gap 
analysis is 

Corporate documents 
reflect current Board and 
Executive Structures and 
a review of delegated 
authority.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
Produce high level 
guidance for staff on key 
CG requirements e.g. 
approval limits, authorised 
signing of contracts, use 
of the Trust seal etc. 
Comms to disseminate.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
Trust webinars / training 
for all staff on chairing 
meetings effectively, 
report writing and 
providing assurance, risk 
management.   
 
 
 

A dedicated lead will need 
to be identified to carry 
out this work as it covers 
corporate, clinical and 
information governance. 

New CFO to 
update the SFIs 
and Scheme of 
Delegation. Co 
Sec to update 
Constitution and 
Standing 
Orders. 

 
 
Corporate 
Documents 
updated and 
approved by the 
Board at its 
meeting on the 
26th January 
2023 -  and 
Council of 
Governors 
(Constitution 

only) 
 
 
NHS Providers 
to deliver this 
training in Q4 

AMBER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
RED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
GREEN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RED 
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undertaken to 
develop a plan to 
address any gaps 
and provide the 
Board assurance 
before signing the 
Board self-
declaration in May / 
June 2023.  

 

To be discussed and 
agreed at the Governance 
Improvement Delivery 
Group.  

Q3 

– 
Q4 

2 Standardised 

templates are used for 
all Agendas, Minutes, 
Action logs, Terms of 
Reference, Cover 
Sheets and (Upward) 
Reports.  
 
 
 
 

Requested examples from 

NHSE/I Improvement 
Directors Kate Hall and 
Cathy Geddes to 
benchmark against best 
practice.  
Work with Comms in 
disseminating the 
templates across the 
Trust for all formal 
governance structures.  
 
Co Sec’s office to do spot 

checks each year on 
Terms of References to 
ensure these are 
reviewed and where 
significant changes are 
made, approved by the 
Committee delegating 
authority (2023/24 
onwards) 
 

Secretaries of 

the Committees 
adopting the 
templates and 
sending the 
Terms of 
References to 
Co Secs Office.  
 
Standard cover 
sheets and 
report templates 
issued for Board 

and Executive 
Committee.   

GREEN 

 

Q3 
– 
Q4 

3 The Board 
Development Plan 
supports the Board in 
governing the 

organisation and stays 
focused at the strategic 
level 
 
 
 

Board members have an 
annual training and 
development programme 
which optimises Board 

Seminars and Board 
workshops internally as 
well as external 
networking events: to 
include a Board session 
on risk, FTSU and Quality 
(PSIRF).  
 
 
Working with 
Communications, develop 
a leadership engagement 
plan which commits EDs, 

as a minimum, to a site 
visit once a month and 
NEDs six times a year. 
Feedback is captured and 

Board forward 
planner 
considers future 
topics / areas for 

learning – two / 
three new NEDs 
joining the 
Board from 1 
Jan 2023 –an 
effective 
induction and 
onboarding 
process to be 
established. 
 
 
 

Board Seminar 
to receive the 
Board 
development 
plan, draft 

AMBER 
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where appropriate, acted 
upon.  
 
Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee 
to consider the balance of 
the Board when 
re/appointing EDs and 
NEDs and diversity.  

 
Co Sec Office to keep the 
Board informed on new 
guidance and legislative 
changes. Ongoing.  
 
NED appraisals are up-to-
date and led by the Chair 
except in the case of the 
Chair’s own appraisal this 
will be led by the SID. Due 
February 2023.   

Finance & 
Performance 
Committee ToR 
and Board 
governance 
structure – 
considering 
reporting of 
assurance re: 

Strategy.  
 

 

Q4 4 Council of Governor 
training and 

development 
programme  
 
 

Governor training session 
to be delivered in Q4 by 

external governance lead 
– to invite Board members 
and senior leaders to join 
part of this session to 
understand the important 
role of Governors.  
 
Annual CoG self-
assessment and 
development plan to be 
completed and presented 
to the January Council of 

Governor meeting. 
Progress is tracked at 
each CoG meeting. 
 
 

DCO 
commissioned 

to deliver this 
session in 
January with 
new cohort of 
Governors and 
existing 
Governors.  

GREEN 
 

Q3 
– 
Q4 

5 Ensure the Risk 
Management Strategy 
and Framework is 
effective and efficient in 
identifying, measuring 
and monitoring 
strategic and corporate 
risks 
 
 

 

Review the risk function 
and structure, including 
the resource required to 
support this function: to be 
picked up in Corporate 
Governance business 
case which must also 
consider resource 
requirements for 
Governance.  

 
 
 
 

Additional senior 
& administrative 
support required 
in Risk 
Department – 
business case to 
be developed 
but capacity 
issues in Co Sec 
Office to prepare 

this causing 
delay.  
 
 

RED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
GREEN 



11 
 

Review risk management 
processes including use 
of a digital risk 
management system  
 
Review risk 
documentation in light of 
industry standards 
including the Board 

Assurance Framework 
(BAF).  
 
Each Board Committee to 
receive and approve its 
relevant BAF risks for 
BAF is presented to 
Board.  
 
Board to set its risk 
appetite and BAF to 
monitor risks against this 

and tolerance levels  
 

Capital needed 
for a new 
system 
 
 
Benchmarking 
data needed / 
best practice 
identified. 

 
 
Co Sec to 
advise 
Committee 
Chairs.  
 
 
 
GGI to lead on 
this work.  
  

 
 
 
 
GREEN 
 
 
 
 

 
 
GREEN 
 
 
 
 
 
GREEN 
 

Q3 
– 
Q4 

6 All Policies and 
Procedures are 
updated and a new 
Policy on Policies 
streamlines the way in 
which policies are 
approved.  
 

Executive Committee to 
approve new Policy on 
Policies: two committee 
approval process and 
policy certificate signed to 
confirm E&D impact 
assessment and Data 
Protection impact 
assessments have been 
completed.  
 
All the latest policies are 

readily accessible on the 
intranet for staff and 
communicated to staff 
Trust wide when 
published.  
 
Policy on Policies 
distinguishes the 
difference between Policy 
and Procedure. Duplicate 
and obsolete Policies are 
removed from the intranet. 
 

New resource 
required to 
maintain this 
new system: 
dedicated 
Central Policy 
Officer (CPO) at 
Band 4. Co Sec 
to prepare 
business case 
but capacity 
issues may 

cause delay. 
Interim Asst Co 
Sec is leading 
on this work in 
the interim.  
  

AMBER 
 
 

Q3 
– 

Q4 

7 Clear reporting lines in 
the Governance 

structures for Board 
and Executive 
Committees; staff 
understand what goes 
where and why.  

Map existing governance 
committees and groups  

 
 
 
 
 

Request and 
review all Terms 

of References 
for Committees 
and Groups – 
capacity issues 
to do this in Q3.  

AMBER 
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Redesign Governance 
Structures based on flow 
of information and avoid 
duplication. Consider 
Cathy Geddes’ 
recommendations.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
CQC: meetings that 
operate under each REAP 
level 
 

 
Mapping of 
existing 
structures 
needed first. 
New CEO may 
wish to change 
proposed 
structures for 

Execs. Board to 
consider and 
approve.  

 
RED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
GREEN 
 
 

Q3 
– 
Q4 
 

8 Declarations of Interest 
are submitted and 
published in 
accordance with 
national guidance  

 

Board declarations 
received and Register of 
Interests updated and 
published on Trust 
website 

 
Band 8d and above 
declarations to be 
obtained  
 
Council of Governor 
declarations of interest: 
register updated and 
published 
 
Internal Trust Register of 
Interests promoted and 

awareness raised across 
the organisation (due Q4) 
 

Company 
Secretary to 
undertake spot 
checks on 
Register and 

query any gifts / 
hospitality etc 
which exceed 
recommended 
threshold in 
national 
guidance.  
 
 
Company 
Secretary to 
work with 

Counter-Fraud 
in ensuring full 
compliance with 
policy.  
 

GREEN 
 
 
 
 

 
AMBER 
 
 
 
 
 
AMBER 
 
 
 
 

 

Q4 9 RACC to lead on and 
review the Business 
Assurance Framework  
 

RACC to establish a Task 
& Finish Group which 
develops a plan and 
timescales for: single 
points of failure, supply 
chain continuity, 
manpower risk 
assessment and 
organisational 
effectiveness. 

Cross-
membership 
from key 
departments: 
governance, 
EPRR, HR, 
PMO 
 
External 
expertise and 

consultancy may 
be brought in to 
support this 
work 

AMBER 
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 2023/24 
Q1 
– 
Q2 

10 An Accountability 
Framework that is clear 
which Executive is 
leading on which areas 
long term.  
 
 

Review Executive Director 
Portfolios  
 
 
 

New CEO  
 
 
 
 

RAG 
ratings to 
be 
completed 
in March 
2023 

Q1 
– 
Q2 

11 Company Secretary’s 
Office to manage 
Board, Board 
Committees and the 
Executive Committee 
meetings. 

 

Company Secretary’s 
Office to hold all agendas, 
minutes, Terms of 
References for these 
meetings and lead in their 
scheduling, minute-taking 

etc. Standard templates to 
be applied for cover 
sheets, minutes, action 
logs etc.  
 

Subject to 
approval of CG 
business case 
and appointment 
of new 
governance 

leads to support 
Company 
Secretary. 
 

 

Q1 12 New IPR in place to 
strengthen discussion 
and decision-making at 
all levels and to 
highlight the true 
number of incidents 
reported and 
benchmarked.  
 

 

Following Board session 
in October 2022 which 
was delivered by NHSE/I 
on ‘Making Data Count’.  

  

Q2 

-Q3 

13 Board and Council of 

Governor self-
assessments: to 
consider frequency and 
length of meetings, 
format of agendas and 
workplans, flow of 
information from point 
of care to Board.  
 

Annual Board self-

assessment process will 
commence in Q2 following 
new appointment of CEO, 
two / three new NEDs.  
 
 
Council of Governor self-
assessment will be slightly 
delayed in 23/24 due to 
newly elected Governors 
joining the Council of 
Governors in January 

2023- to commence in 
Q3. 
 

  

Q3 14 Review the purpose of 
operational groups and 
task and finish groups 
across the Trust to 
ensure the meetings 
are not duplicating this 
work 
 

Company Secretary’s 
Office to lead a review of 
this work and report to 
Executive Committee.  

Executive’s to 
nominate leads 
in their 
directorate to 
work with the 
Company 
Secretary’s 
Office.  
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Q4 15 Executive Committee 
self-assessment  
 

Following a review and 
change to the Executive 
Committee structures, this 
assessment will take 
place towards the end of 
the year to give the 
Committees time to 
function effectively.  
 

Revised 
Governance 
Structures put in 
place with 
updated Terms 
of Reference 
and use of 
standardised 
templates.  

 

 2024/25 
Q3 16 An external 

governance review is 
commissioned in line 
with the Well Led 

Framework to 
independently assess 
the Trust’s position 
against this Strategic 
Plan and compliance 
against CQC 
Regulation 17.  
 

   

 

7. Tracking our progress – Key Performance Indicators  
 

Given its significance, the Executive Committee and Board of Directors will be asked to 

review and approve this Strategic Plan. Once approved, it is important to report on progress 

to the Executive while providing assurance to the Board.  

The Company Secretary is responsible for the delivery of the Plan and will provide quarterly 

progress reports to the Executive Committee. In-between this reporting, the Chair and Chief 

Executive will be an important sounding board to the Company Secretary in delivering this 

Plan and shall advise the Company Secretary accordingly for example, implementation of 

the Board development plan.  

Twice a year the Company Secretary will provide an assurance report to the Audit 

Committee which will highlight any risks and / or issues in delivering this Plan. The Audit 

Committee may then provide assurance to the Board of Directors via its Upward reporting.  

For management reporting purposes to the Executive Committee, the Company Secretary 

will consider qualitative and quantitative measures in their progress reports.  

The KPIs will consider: 

• Outputs from annual self-assessment reviews  

• Output from external reviews every 3 years in line with the Well Led Framework 

• Appraisals: NEDs – attendance at Board meetings, site visits (6 per year) Execs (1 a 

month) 

• Training and development: number of training / development sessions in the year to 

support Board members and Governors  
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• Stakeholder engagement: Internal stakeholders – Council of Governors, People Voice, staff 

engagement, FTSU and external stakeholders: NHSP networking events  

• Number of Audit recommendations that remain outstanding  

• Number of policies out-of-date  

• Trust membership numbers: consider trends over time and diversity of membership.  

 

8. Key dependencies  
 
The success of this Strategic Plan will depend on the following:  

• Dedicated resource allocated to the Company Secretary’s office: a business case 

will need to be developed to set out the resource requirements to deliver this 

Strategic Plan within the timescales set out. The business case will consider short 

term interim support at appropriate times as well as substantive appointments for 

longer term arrangements for example, managing the Board Committees and 

Executive Committee meeting. A benchmarking exercise will need to be completed 

to consider structures in other Trusts as part of the business case development.  

 

• Board, Governor and Executive support to deliver the plan for example, completing 

self-assessments on time and participating in training and development sessions.  

 

• External expertise commissioned when needed for example, advising the Board on 

how to set its risk appetite and embed the Board Assurance Framework into its 

governance systems and processes. This requirement is recognised in CQC 

Regulation 17.  

 

 

9. Recommendations 

The Executive Management Committee and Board of Directors is asked to review and 

approve this Corporate Governance Strategic Plan.   
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING IN PUBLIC 24 NOVEMBER 2022 

FINANCE REPORT 

 
 
 
1 The purpose of the paper is to: 

 
• Present an update on the Trust’s latest financial position, covering income and 

expenditure; cash, capital, and liquidity; NHS Improvement financial Use of 
Resource rating; and cost savings. 

• Provide assurance to the Board that actions are in place to address any areas 
where the Trust’s financial performance is adversely behind plan at this stage of 
the financial year. 

 

 
 
2 Income and expenditure – The reported financial position for the month of October was 

a break-even position. The year-to-date position is £62k adverse to plan. 
 
3 Cash and capital - The Trust’s cash balance at the end of October stood at £53,557k. 

Receipts were £30,197k, capital spend was £176k and payments were £31,299k. 
Capital cash spend stood at £1,675k at October set against the capital cash budget of 
£2,094k. Capital spend on the sale and leaseback ambulances stood at £1,526k up to 
October. 90-day debtor total stood at £478k at the end of October (up from £247k in 
September) representing 11.27% of total sales debt (up from 6.49% in September). 

 
4 NHS Improvement Use of Resource – the NHS Improvement Use of Resource rating 

overall is 2. The budgeted rating is 1. This comprises a capital service cover (debt 
interest cover) rating which is a 1, a liquidity rating which is a 1, I&E Margin rating is a 
2 and I&E Margin variance from plan rating, which is a 1 for October 2022. The Agency 
Rating is 3. 

 
5 Cost savings – plans to deliver savings of £10,788k have been incorporated into the 

financial plan for the year. Overall, the savings were £987k in the month, £62k below 
plan in the month. Details of the scheme’s performance can be found in the integrated 
performance report. The table below provides a trend line for actual and planned 
savings. 
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PURPOSE 



INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 

 
 

 

6 As can be seen from the table below, the Trust reported a break-even position for the 
month. 

 
Income was £982k higher than budget. For emergency services, income was above 
budget by £276k. Income from National Covid Services was £116k above planned 
budget. The covid recharge was £33k less than plan. Corporate income was higher 
than budget by £335k. Non-emergency services income was £288k higher than 
budget. 

 
Overall costs were £982k higher than budget. Spend on Emergency services was 
£568k higher than plan. Spend for the National Covid Services was above plan by 
£44k. The covid recharge was less than planned by £33k. There was an overspend 
of £274k on non-emergency services. Corporate costs were £129k higher than 
budgeted. 

 

 
7 The spend includes agency costs to support the Covid related workstreams. For the 

month, agency costs of £492k were incurred of which £161k relates to Covid 
workstreams. 
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CASH AND CAPITAL 

NHS Improvement sets expenditure ceilings on the total amount individual trusts can 
spend on agency staff across all staff groups, for SCAS this is £3,595k for the year, 
£300k per month. The Trust performance against its agency ceiling is being monitored 
monthly. 

 
8 Further information can be seen in the following appendices: 

• Appendix A1 – income and expenditure monthly position 
• Appendix C – key operational ratios for income and expenditure 

 
 

 

9 A capital plan of £6,405k has been agreed for the financial year. Detail of the plan is 
included as Appendix B. 

 
10 Capital spend to date stood at £1,675k against a capital budget of £2,094k. 

 
11 The Trust’s cash balance at the end of October stood at £53,557k. Receipts were 

£30,197k, capital spend was £176k and payments were £31,299k. Capital cash spend 
stood at £1,675k at October set against the capital cash budget of £2,094k. Capital 
spend on the sale and leaseback ambulances stood at £1,526k up to October. The 
year-to-date variance of £7,396k on working capital reflects revised profiling on 
changes to provisions, payables, and receivables. 

 
 

 
12 The 90-day debtor total stood at £478k at the end of October (up from £247k in 

September) representing 11.27% of total sales debt (up from 6.49% in September). 
The residual debt at risk of falling into the 90-day category is £198k. 

 
13 Further information can be seen in the following appendices: 

• Appendix D – key financial ratios, including liquidity. 
• Appendix F – capital expenditure 2022/23 
• Appendix G – balance sheet and budget to 31 March 2023 
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RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 
 

14 The forecast for the year remains at the budgeted, break-even, level. 
 
15 The Executive Team will monitor the position closely and take mitigating actions when 

risk start to manifest. 
 
 

 
 
16 The Board is asked to note the current financial position of the Trust. 

 
 
 
 
 
Aneel Pattni 
Chief Finance Officer 
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FUTURE PERFORMANCE 



 
Financial results for Month 7 ended 31st October 2022 

 

 Month   Year to date   
Forecast 

Full Year 
Budget 

 
Prior Year 

 
Variance to Variance to 

budget Prior Year 
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

 

 
TOTAL SCAS INCOME 

Emergency Services (inc. 111) 

Income 

Direct costs 

Gross contribution 
 

Covid-19 
Income 
Direct costs 

Gross contribution 
 

Non-Emergency Services 
Income 

Direct costs 
Gross contribution 

 

Contribution Operational Activities 

Central Costs 
Clinical Services 
Finance 
Estates 
IM&T 
Human Resources 
Education Services 
Service Development 
Communications & Public Engag't 
Corporate 
Other 
Loss/(Profit) on disposal 
Depreciation 
Financing Costs 
Total overhead costs 

Net surplus/(deficit) 

NHSD 
 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's 
 

27,842 26,860 982 189,276 185,889 3,387 323,404 319,994 331,507 3,410 (8,102) 
 
 

21,209 20,817 392 144,719 143,577 1,143 249,064 247,468 241,976 1,596 7,088 

17,825 17,213 (612) 121,319 118,384 (2,936) 208,483 204,398 195,580 (4,085) (12,903) 

3,384 3,604 (220) 23,400 25,193 (1,793) 40,580 43,070 46,395 (2,490) (5,816) 
16% 17% -1% 16% 18% -1% 16% 17% 19%   

 
754 787 (34) 5,672 5,507 165 9,440 9,440 17,118 0 (7,678) 

754 787 33 5,672 5,507 (165) 9,440 9,440 17,119 0 (7,679) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0) 0 0 
0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%   

 
5,306 5,017 288 36,369 35,121 1,248 62,022 60,207 56,917 1,814 5,104 

4,692 4,418 (274) 31,919 30,685 (1,234) 54,715 52,900 49,935 (1,815) (4,780) 

614 599 15 4,450 4,436 14 7,307 7,307 6,983 (0) 324 
12% 12% 0% 12% 13% 0% 12% 12% 12%   

 

 
3,998 

 
4,203 

 
(205) 

 
27,851 

 
29,629 

 
(1,779) 

 
47,887 

 
50,377 

 
53,378 

 
(2,490) 

 
(5,491) 

 
 

469 499 30 3,123 3,300 176 6,041 5,779 5,158 (262) (883) 
307 310 3 1,928 2,187 259 3,396 3,736 3,991 340 595 
800 791 (9) 5,406 5,540 135 9,552 9,498 9,340 (55) (212) 
793 843 50 5,829 5,903 74 10,366 10,119 9,303 (247) (1,064) 
374 363 (11) 2,451 2,492 41 4,214 4,306 3,990 92 (224) 
473 473 (0) 3,349 3,240 (109) 5,643 5,603 5,409 (40) (234) 
289 167 (122) 1,497 1,119 (378) 3,003 1,954 1,792 (1,049) (1,211) 
52 56 4 347 394 46 595 675 521 80 (74) 
77 72 (4) 417 506 89 790 867 988 77 198 

(280) (150) 130 (900) (500) 400 (3,700) (1,500) 1,342 2,200 5,042 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

639 678 39 4,475 4,749 275 8,016 8,140 10,608 124 2,468 
5 100 95 221 700 479 (29) 1,200 911 1,229 940 

3,997 4,203 205 28,142 29,629 1,486 47,887 50,377 53,354 (2,490) 5,342 
 

0 (0) 0 (291) 0 (292) (0) (0) 23 0 (24) 
 

0 0 0 (229) 0 (229) (229) 0 (272) (229) 44 
 

0 (0) 0 (62) 0 (62) 230 (0) 295 229 (66) 
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South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (Appendix A1) 



 
 
 

 
Financial results for Month 7 ended 31st October 2022 

 
 
 
 

Income analysis 
 

Emergency Services 
E&U Contract 
HART income 
111 Service 
National Covid Services 
Public Events 
CBRN/Flu funding 
RTA Recoveries 
Training funding from Health Education England 
Workshop Income 
Other Income 
AfC Transfer 
Total Emergency Services 

 

£000's £000's £000's 

 

£000's £000's £000's 

 

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's 

 
Covid Recharge 754 787 (33) 5,672 5,507 165 9,440 9,440 17,118 0 (7,678) 

 
Corporate Income 574 239 335 2,516 1,685 831 2,879 2,879 15,495 0 (12,616) 

 

Total Non-Emergency Services 5,306 5,017 288 36,369 35,121 1,248 62,022 60,207 56,917 1,814 5,104 
 

Total income 27,842 26,860 982 189,276 185,889 3,387 323,404 319,994 331,507 3,410 (8,102) 
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South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (Appendix B) 

Appendix B 

 Month  Year to date   Full Year   

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance Forecast Budget Prior Year Variance 
to budget 

Variance 
to Prior 

Year 
 

16,186 16,084 102 109,941 108,242 1,698 191,359 188,662 176,021 2,697 15,338 
312 312 0 2,228 2,186 42 3,747 3,747 3,708 0 39 

3,385 3,234 151 22,692 22,640 52 39,264 38,811 37,658 453 1,606 
666 550 116 5,802 6,131 (329) 7,704 8,689 18,098 (985) (10,394) 
57 8 49 267 59 208 398 101 251 297 147 
96 177 (81) 732 1,237 (506) 1,254 2,121 897 (867) 357 
21 27 (6) 158 187 (28) 320 320 250 0 70 
35 44 (10) 317 310 7 532 532 727 0 (195) 
53 44 9 234 232 3 452 452 273 0 178 
398 336 61 2,348 2,353 (5) 4,033 4,033 4,092 0 (58) 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

21,209 20,817 392 144,719 143,577 1,143 249,064 247,468 241,976 1,596 7,088 
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Appendix C 

  

 

South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

Key Operational Spend (£k) 

Fuel 
- A&E 
- Commercial Services 
- Fleet central 
- Other 
Total fuel 

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance Forecast Budget Variance Prior year 
Oct-22 Oct-22 Oct-22 YTD YTD YTD Full Yr Full Yr 

  +/(-)   +/(-) +/(-)  

 
342 

 
162 

 
-180 

 
2,143 

 
897 

 
-1,246 

 
3,102 

 
1,131 

 
-1,971 

 
3,384 

286 214 -72 1,813 821 -992 3,405 1,508 -1,897 2,463 
87 21 -66 719 224 -495 1,200 243 -957 682 
116 35 -81 645 248 -397 938 425 -513 634 
128 107 -22 628 747 119 1,081 1,280 199 1,354 
3 3 -1 18 19 1 30 33 2 34 

138 70 -69 975 567 -408 1,340 932 -408 2,913 
1,101 612 -489 6,941 3,523 -3,418 11,097 5,552 -5,545 11,464 

 
1,253 

 
1,564 

 
312 

 
8,400 

 
9,801 

 
1,401 

 
15,044 

 
17,287 

 
2,243 

 
12,823 

417 346 -71 2,247 1,903 -344 3,894 3,568 -326 4,125 
2,016 1,670 -346 13,673 11,861 -1,812 22,926 20,213 -2,713 15,476 
3,686 3,580 -106 24,320 23,565 -756 41,864 41,068 -796 32,424 

 
354 

 
357 

 
3 

 
2,677 

 
2,608 

 
-68 

 
4,666 

 
4,396 

 
-270 

 
2,636 

160 147 -13 1,202 1,031 -171 2,070 1,767 -303 1,301 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
58 36 -23 356 254 -102 202 433 231 428 
573 540 -32 4,235 3,893 -342 6,937 6,595 -342 4,365 

 

Overtime 
- A&E - North 
- A&E - South 
- A&E - Control 
- A&E - Comm Resp/Emer Plan/Fleet 
- Commercial Division - PTS 
- Commercial Division - non-PTS 
- Other 

Total Overtime 
 
Private Providers 

- A&E - North 
- A&E - South 
- PTS 

Total private providers 
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Appendix D South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 

NHS Improvement Use of Resource Rating 
 Oct-22   YTD   Full Year  

Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance Forecast Budget Variance 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

1 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 
2 2 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 
1 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 
3 1 2 3 1 2 1 1 0 
2 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 0 

Oct-22 Sep-22 Aug-22 Last Year  Comments    
YTD YTD YTD Full year      

 
95% 

 
95% 

 
95% 

 
95% 

     

98% 97% 97% 97%      
94% 96% 96% 94%      
100% 100% 100% 99%      

478 247 348 220 
     

11.3% 6.5% 8.9% 4.9%      

49.8% 40.7% 32.7% 100.2% 
     

38.4% 28.6% 21.9% 100.0%      

 

Capital Service Cover 
Liquidity 
I&E Margin 
I&E Margin Variance From Plan 
Agency 
Overall (Financial Sustainability Risk Rating) 
 

Better payment practice target 
- Non-NHS by number 
- Non-NHS by £ value 
- NHS by number 
- NHS by £ value 

 
Debtors > 90 days (£k) 
As % of total debts 
 
% cost improvements secured (actual) 
% cost improvements secured (plan) 
 



 
08/11/2022 20:04 

 
CASHFLOW Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Q1 Q1 Q1  Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22  Q2 Q2 Q2 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22  Q3 Q3 Q3 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23  Q4 Q4 Q4 
2022-23 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
 Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Variance Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Variance Actual Forecast Forecast Actual Budget Variance Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Budget Variance 
Income  

30,843 
0 
0 
0 

1,227 
0 

 
25,356 

0 
0 
0 

998 
0 

 
25,247 

0 
128 
0 

533 
0 

 
81,446 

0 
128 
0 

2,758 
0 

 
78,645 

0 
0 
0 

1,941 
0 

 
2,801 

0 
128 
0 

817 
0 

  
27,505 

0 
53 
0 

1,309 
0 

 
28,244 

0 
88 
0 

741 
0 

 
27,718 

0 
88 
0 

986 
0 

 
164,913 

0 
357 
0 

5,794 
0 

 
155,188 

0 
0 
0 

3,894 
0 

 
9,725 

0 
357 
0 

1,900 
0 

 
29,086 

0 
91 
0 

1,020 
0 

 
27,550 

0 
42 
0 

424 
0 

 
27,575 

0 
42 
0 

425 
0 

  
249,124 

0 
532 
0 

7,663 
0 

 
234,076 

0 
0 
0 

5,594 
0 

 
15,048 

0 
532 
0 

2,069 
0 

 
26,535 

0 
42 

6,000 
467 
0 

 
26,536 

0 
42 
0 

567 
0 

 
26,735 

0 
42 
0 

569 
0 

  
328,930 

0 
658 

6,000 
9,266 

0 

 
312,807 

0 
0 
0 

7,297 
0 

 
16,123 

0 
658 

6,000 
1,969 

0 

SL Receipts 
Fixed Asset Receipts 
Interest 
Capital Lease and Saleback 
Other Income/PDC/VAT/RTA 
Other (PDC) 
Total Cash In 32,070 

 
 

15,977 
14,931 

232 
0 
0 
0 

537 
0 

26,354 
 
 

16,394 
9,831 
176 
0 
0 
0 

537 
0 

25,908 
 
 

15,959 
14,278 

81 
0 
0 
35 
537 
0 

84,332 
 
 

48,330 
39,040 

489 
0 
0 
35 

1,611 
0 

80,586 
 
 

48,171 
28,450 

458 
0 
0 
0 

1,611 
0 

3,746 
 
 

(159) 
(10,590) 

(31) 
0 
0 

(35) 
0 
0 

 28,867 
 
 

15,716 
9,684 
302 
0 
0 
0 

537 
0 

29,073 
 
 

15,642 
11,764 

403 
0 
0 
0 

537 
0 

28,792 
 
 

17,930 
12,426 

305 
360 
0 

1,491 
537 
0 

 171,064 
 
 

97,618 
72,914 
1,499 
360 
0 

1,526 
3,222 

0 

159,082 
 
 

97,089 
54,461 
1,814 
600 
0 
0 

3,222 
0 

11,982 
 
 

(529) 
(18,453) 

315 
240 
0 

(1,526) 
0 
0 

30,197 
 
 

18,493 
12,177 

176 
0 
0 
0 

629 
0 

28,016 
 
 

16,605 
8,254 
1,592 

0 
0 

1,250 
915 
0 

28,042 
 
 

16,533 
8,839 
560 
0 
0 

1,063 
915 
0 

 257,319 
 
 

149,249 
102,184 

3,827 
360 
0 

3,839 
5,681 

0 

239,670 
 
 

146,947 
80,014 
4,246 
600 
0 
0 

5,967 
0 

17,649 
 
 

(2,302) 
(22,170) 

419 
240 
0 

(3,839) 
286 
0 

33,044 
 
 

16,460 
8,232 
695 
0 
0 

1,161 
915 
0 

27,145 
 
 

16,372 
8,468 
548 
0 
0 
0 

915 
0 

27,346 
 
 

16,473 
8,711 
977 
600 
0 
0 

915 
0 

 344,854 
 
 

198,554 
127,595 

6,047 
960 
0 

5,000 
8,426 

0 

320,104 
 
 

196,252 
107,386 

6,405 
1,200 

0 
0 

8,712 
0 

24,750 
 
 

2,302 
20,209 
(358) 
(240) 

0 
5,000 
(286) 

0 

Expenditure 
Pay expenditure 
Non Pay expenditure 
Capital expenditure 
Dividends on PDC 
Loan Repayment 
Capital Lease and Saleback 
IFRS 16 Leases 
Year End Capital Creditors 
Total Cash Out 31,677 26,938 30,890 89,505 78,690 (10,815)  26,239 28,346 33,049  177,139 157,186 (19,953) 31,475 28,616 27,910  265,140 237,774 (27,366) 27,463 26,303 27,676  346,582 319,955 26,627 

Net Cash In/(Out) 393 (584) (4,982) (5,173) 1,896 (7,069) 2,628 727 (4,257) (6,075) 1,896 (7,971) (1,278) (600) 132 (7,821) 1,896 (9,717) 5,581 842 (330) (1,728) 149 (1,877) 

Balance B/fwd 60,910 61,303 60,719 60,910 59,033 1,877 55,737 58,365 59,092 60,910 59,033 1,877 54,835 53,557 52,957 60,910 59,033 1,877 53,089 58,670 59,512 60,910 59,033 1,877 

Balance C/fwd 61,303 60,719 55,737 55,737 60,929 (5,192) 58,365 59,092 54,835 54,835 60,929 (6,094) 53,557 52,957 53,089 53,089 60,929 (7,840) 58,670 59,512 59,182 59,182 59,182 0 
 

CASHFLOW 
RECONCILIATION 

Apr-22 
£000 

May-22 
£000 

Jun-22 
£000 

Q1 
Actl 

Q1 
Budget 

Q1 
Variance 

 Jul-22 
£000 

Aug-22 
£000 

Sep-22 
£000 

 Q2 
Actl 

Q2 
Budget 

Q2 
Variance 

Oct-22 
£000 

Nov-22 
£000 

Dec-22 
£000 

 Q3 
Actl 

Q3 
Budget 

Q3 
Variance 

Jan-23 
£000 

Feb-23 
£000 

Mar-23 
£000 

 Q4 
Actl 

Budget 
£000 

Q4 
Variance 

EBIT 
Depreciation & Amortisation 
IFRS 16 Depreciation & Interest 
EBITDA 

(857) 
639 
537 

(1,700) 
1,278 
1,074 

(22) 
1,918 
1,463 

(22) 
1,918 
1,463 

448 
1,980 
1,463 

(470) 
(62) 

0 

 (74) 
2,557 
1,951 

(80) 
3,196 
2,369 

(84) 
3,835 
2,855 

 (84) 
3,835 
2,855 

896 
3,960 
2,926 

(980) 
(125) 
(71) 

(79) 
4,475 
3,341 

1,236 
5,280 
4,186 

1,407 
5,940 
5,030 

 1,407 
5,940 
5,030 

1,407 
5,940 
5,460 

0 
0 

(430) 

1,577 
6,600 
5,875 

1,747 
7,260 
6,720 

1,918 
7,920 
7,634 

 1,918 
7,920 
7,634 

1,918 
7,920 
7,994 

0 
0 

(360) 
319 652 3,359 3,359 3,891 (532)  4,434 5,485 6,606 6,606 7,782 (1,176) 7,737 10,702 12,377  12,377 12,807 (430) 14,052 15,727 17,472  17,472 17,832 0 

 
0 

3,787 
(2,987) 

43 
(232) 
(537) 

0 
0 

 
0 

4,541 
(4,027) 

125 
(408) 

(1,074) 
0 
0 

 
0 

2,232 
(8,540) 
(217) 
(489) 

(1,611) 
(35) 

0 

 
0 

2,232 
(8,540) 
(217) 
(489) 

(1,611) 
(35) 

0 

 
0 
0 

(1,803) 
0 

(458) 
(1,611) 

0 
0 

 
0 

2,232 
(6,737) 
(217) 
(31) 

0 
(35) 

0 

  
0 

606 
(4,402) 
(390) 
(791) 

(2,148) 
(35) 

0 

 
0 

2,113 
(5,270) 
(501) 

(1,194) 
(2,685) 

(35) 
0 

 
0 

1,007 
(6,819) 
(619) 

(1,499) 
(3,222) 
(1,526) 

0 

 
0 

1,007 
(6,819) 
(619) 

(1,499) 
(3,222) 
(1,526) 

0 

 
0 
0 

(2,127) 
0 

(1,814) 
(3,222) 

0 
0 

 
0 

1,007 
(4,692) 
(619) 
315 
0 

(1,526) 
0 

 
0 

322 
(7,665) 
(783) 

(1,675) 
(3,851) 
(1,526) 

0 

 
0 

322 
(6,810) 
(783) 

(3,686) 
(5,052) 
(2,776) 

0 

 
0 

322 
(5,857) 
(783) 

(4,246) 
(5,967) 
(3,839) 

0 

  
0 

322 
(5,857) 
(783) 

(4,246) 
(5,967) 
(3,839) 

0 

 
0 
0 

(1,975) 
0 

(4,246) 
(5,967) 

0 
0 

 
0 

322 
(3,882) 
(783) 

0 
0 

(3,839) 
0 

 
0 

322 
(5,222) 
(783) 

(4,941) 
(6,882) 
1,000 

0 

 
0 

322 
(3,634) 
(783) 

(5,489) 
(7,797) 

0 
0 

 
0 

322 
(2,103) 
(2,000) 
(6,405) 
(8,712) 

0 
0 

  
0 

322 
(2,103) 
(2,000) 
(6,405) 
(8,712) 

0 
0 

 
0 
0 

(1,243) 
(2,000) 
(6,405) 
(8,712) 

0 
0 

 
0 

322 
(860) 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

Stock (Inc)/dec 
Debtors (Inc)/dec 
Creditors Inc/(dec) 
Provisions Inc/(dec) 
Capital expenditure 
IFRS 16 Leases 
Capital expenditure - Sale and Leaseb 
Capital disposals 
Free Cashflow pre finance 
 
Interest 
Dividends on PDC 
Free Cashflow 
PDC Payment/(Repayment) 
Loan repayments 
Lease Borrowings 
Capital Loan from DH 

393 (191) (5,301) (5,301) 19 (5,320)  (2,726) (2,087) (6,072) (6,072) 619 (6,691) (7,441) (8,083) (7,993)  (7,993) 619 (8,612) (2,454) (1,654) (1,426)  (1,426) (528) (538) 
 

0 
0 

 
0 
0 

 
128 
0 

 
128 
0 

 
0 
0 

 
128 
0 

  
181 
0 

 
269 
0 

 
357 

(360) 

 
357 

(360) 

 
0 

(600) 

 
357 
240 

 
448 

(360) 

 
490 

(360) 

 
532 

(360) 

  
532 

(360) 

 
0 

(600) 

 
532 
240 

 
574 

(360) 

 
616 

(360) 

 
658 

(960) 

  
658 

(960) 

 
0 

(1,200) 

 
658 
240 

393 (191) (5,173) (5,173) 19 (5,192)  (2,545) (1,818) (6,075) (6,075) 19 (6,094) (7,353) (7,953) (7,821)  (7,821) 19 (7,840) (2,240) (1,398) (1,728)  (1,728) (1,728) 360 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

 0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

 0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

 0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

Net Cash In/(Out) 393 (191) (5,173) (5,173) 19 (5,192) (2,545) (1,818) (6,075) (6,075) 19 (6,094) (7,353) (7,953) (7,821) (7,821) 19 (7,840) (2,240) (1,398) (1,728) (1,728) (1,728) 360 
 

Opening Bal 60,910 60,910 60,910 60,910 60,910 0 60,910 60,910 60,910 60,910 60,910 0 60,910 60,910 60,910 60,910 60,910 0 60,910 60,910 60,910 60,910 60,910 0 
Closing Bal 61,303 60,719 55,737 55,737 60,929 -5,192 58,365 59,092 54,835 54,835 60,929 -6,094 53,557 52,957 53,089 53,089 60,929 -7,840 58,670 59,512 59,182 59,182 59,182 0 
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SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST Appendix F 
 
 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2022/23 
 

For the period to 
31 March 2023 

 
 
 
 
 

Actual Spend Profile 
Scheme Description Company Project 

Code 
Budget 

2022/23 
April 

Actual 
May 

Actual 
June 

Actual 
July 

Actual 
August 
Actual 

September 
Actual 

October 
Actual 

November 
Forecast 

December 
Forecast 

January 
Forecast 

February 
Forecast 

March 
Forecast 

Total 

   £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
ESTATES                 

New Build                 

High Wycombe SCAS 908 78        1     1 
High Wycombe SCAS 986     3 6 5 6 54     74 

Mtc                 

Workforce, Workplace Futures SCAS TBC 376        100 101 100   301 
Oxford Remedial SCAS 853 110   5 25 20 12 10 9  45   126 
Temperature Control SCAS TBC 100        100     100 
Cosham Garage Door SCAS 966         6     6 
Ringwood Boiler SCAS 974         18     18 
PTS East Surrey SCAS 981     2 1        3 
Wexham RC Boiler System Upgrade SCAS 996      17  1 3     21 
Data Centre SCAS 997               

Wexham Lighting SCAS 998  7            7 
Stoke Mandeville Hot Water Plant Upgrade SCAS 999         19     19 
Medicines Improvement SCAS TBC 160            160 160 
MK CCC Fit Out SCAS 859 1150      16 1 143 389 175 229 195 1,148 
Medicines Didcot SCAS TBC 163          163   163 
Electriv Charging Points SCAS TBC 469        100 75 154 75 19 423 
Desks Replacement Programme Southern House SCAS TBC 123         100   23 123 
Estates Maintenance SCAS TBC 469        209     209 
Nursling Refurbishment SCAS 901 228 74 81 66 4  0  3     228 
Stoke Mandeville Refurbishment SCAS 894 378 102  -44 24  10 82 38 120 18 45 128 523 
Reading Refurbishment SCAS 893       20 8      28 
High Wycombe RC Feasibility SCAS 856             6 6 
Southern Training Building SCAS 950  8   -4    13     17 
MK Training Room SCAS 943         37     37 
SH Mezzanine Flooring SCAS 976               

Unit 6 WWF Fit Out SCAS TBC 149         149    149 
Hightown RC Soak Away SCAS 812         43     43 
Andover RC New Boiler SCAS 814         23     23 
Sluices SCAS TBC 587        87 150 150 100 78 565 
PTS Basingstoke Lighting SCAS 818         11     11 
Basingstoke RC Lighting SCAS 825         8     8 
Hightown Garage Lighting SCAS 829         8     8 
Bone Lane Garage Lighting SCAS 830         10     10 
Ringwood Garage Lighting SCAS 832         7     7 
Wexham Garage Lighting SCAS 833         7     7 
Whitchurch RC Lighting SCAS 834         12     12 
Didcit RC Garage Doors SCAS 840   26      3     29 
Bracknell RC Garage Doors SCAS 839      26   5     31 
Adderbury Garage Lights SCAS 841      6   3     9 
Didcot RC Garage Lights SCAS 842      9   3     12 
Nursling Garage Lights SCAS 843         22     22 
WERC Garage Lights SCAS 844      8   3     11 
SH Mezzanine Lighting SCAS 845      1        1 
Bracknell RC Refurbishment SCAS 846 456    246 71  31 108     456 
NH Training Rooms SCAS 835    41 26 150        217 
NH Welfare & Wellbeing Facilities SCAS 860         165     165 
EV Charger Installation SCAS 861       33  13     46 
Oxford RC Concrete Columns Refurbishment SCAS 862         35     35 
SH East Wing 1st Floor Reconfiguration SCAS 858      10   100 100    210 
Sluice Replacement Bracknell SCAS 865       18  4     22 
Portsmouth PTS Electrical SCAS 870         60     60 
CCC Training Room SCAS TBC 262          262   262 

OPERATIONS 
                

EQUIPMENT 
                

Zolls SCAS 992              0 
AED's SCAS 866         393     393 
DCA Radio's SCAS 804   8 -8          0 
Bodycams SCAS 770  0            0 
Morphine Safes SCAS 983    21          21 
Education Zolls SCAS 836          36    36 
PTS Equipment SCAS 817              0 
SH Desk Replacements CCC SCAS 847     4    2     6 
SH Desk Replacements 111 & PTS SCAS 848       5 4      9 

FLEET 
Roller Brake Tester 

 
SCFS 

 
805 

     
6 

    
10 

     
16 

Ambulance Radio's etc SCAS 803   14    -2       12 
DMA 19/20 Radio's SCAS 816             32 32 
Land Rover Discovery - Sale/leaseback SCAS 849              0 
Kia eNIRO - Sale/Leaseback SCAS 852              0 
Skoda & Ssangyong SCAS 921               

Skoda Superb's Sale/Leaseback SCAS 850              0 
20 Winter vehicles SCAS 979  14   -15    4     3 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY                 

WIFI Enhancements SCAS 993   4   4 3 2 38     51 
Microwave Link Replacement - Bucks SCAS 995  10      4      14 
Proactis Upgrade 21 SCAS 809              0 
Microwave Link Replacement - Bicester SCAS 811  2   14         16 
Microwave Link Replacement - Adderbury SCAS 837         5     5 
Digital Network - North Node SCAS 838              0 
CAD Developer Days SCAS 959  9 7  13  23 5  15    72 
GRS Development 21 SCAS 962               

Hexagon CAD Developer SCAS 868 190      18 22 219     259 
Home Working Clinicians SCAS 982         129     129 
Stock Control System SCAS          67 22  12  101 
Workforce Management System SCAS TBC 60          60   60 
Radio Site Cabin Maintenance SCAS TBC 40           40  40 
Homeworking Enhancements SCAS TBC 50            50 50 
PAT Testing/Electrical Installation Recertifications SCAS TBC 25            25 25 
ESMCP (ARP) - CRS SCAS 855 250     31   219     250 
Virtual Server Network Upgrade SCAS 854 442      167  257    18 442 
ADASTRA SCAS TBC 50         50    50 
WIFI Enhancements SCAS TBC 220        120 50 50   220 
ESMCP (ARP) - Assure SCAS TBC 45        45     45 
GP Upgrade 2022 SCAS 869         13     13 
Workforce Management SCAS 813     -12         -12 
EPR SCAS 918              0 
Conduit MK 111 SCAS 922       -8       -8 
Zebra's SCAS 967       -12       -12 
PTS Sussex ICT SCAS 978       -3       -3 
Integrated Urgent Care (111) and Health System In SCAS 828              0 
Telephony upgrade SCAS 823 50 3 3   45        51 

 
Contingency 

                

Contingency IT SCAS TBC -275            -779 -779 
Contingency Estates SCAS TBC             -846 -846 
Contingency Equipment SCAS TBC             -429 -429 
Contingency Training SCAS TBC             -36 -36 
Contingency Fleet SCAS TBC             -63 -63 

PDC 
               0 

TOTAL NON IFRS 16 PROGRAMME   6,405 229 143 81 336 405 305 176 3,114 1,357 1,177 501 -1,419 6,405 
 
IFRS 16 

                

 
DCA 22/23 SCAS 805   35   1,437 54  2,161 1,216    4,903 
PTS WAV x 10 SCAS LEA250937   537    537 
PTS WAV x 13 SCAS LEA253735   584    584 
PTS WAV x 20 SCAS LEA249939   912    912 
PTS WAV x 39 SCAS LEA256013    2,776   2,776 
PTS Vehicles 2 SCAS TBC     1,293  1,293 
Ford Tourneo SCAS TBC  725     725 
Skoda Superb RRV SCAS TBC     348  348 
Medicines/Logistics SCAS TBC     400  400 
MK Call Centre SCAS TBC     4,769  4,769 
PTS South Oxon building SCAS TBC     631  631 
Skoda Superb RRV SCAS TBC     596  596 
Kia EV6 SCAS TBC     1,023  1,023 
LEVC TX Shuttle SCAS TBC     1,231  1,231 
Education Vehicles SCAS TBC     304  304 
RRV Replacements SCAS TBC     629  629 
PTS Vehicles - E-Ducato SCAS TBC     4,620  4,620 
Continigency      -   0 
TOTAL IFRS 16 PROGRAMME    - 35 - - 2,162 2,087 2,776 18,005 1,216 - - - 26,281 

 
Total 
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21,119 2,573 1,177 501 - 1,419 32,686 2,392 2,952 2,567 336 81 178 229 

Capital    

resources   Original 
available  Forecast Budget 
Core Depreciation  15,914 15,914 
Disposal Receipts  0 0 
Cash Reserves  (1,679) (1,679) 
IFRS16 Leases  (7,830) (7,830) 
Total capital resources used 6,405 6,405 

Total disposal Income 
 

0 0 
Net CDEL 6,405 6,405 

 

Expenditur   

e  Revised 
summary Forecast Budget 
Training 36 0 
Estates 6,172 5,258 
Operations 429 0 
Fleet 63 0 
IT 1,858 1,422 
PDC 0 0 
Contingency (2,153) (275) 
Total 6,405 6,405 

 



Property, Plan & Equipment 
Intangible assets 
IFRS 16 RoU Assets 
Pension Allowance Charge Compensation Scheme 
 

 
 

 

CREDITORS 
Purchase Ledger Creditors 
Accruals & deferred income 
Other Creditors Incl Pensions, PAYE & NI 
Capital Accruals 
Borrowings (IFRS 16) < 1 year 
Provisions < 1 year 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

FINANCED BY: 
TAXPAYER'S EQUITY 
Public Dividend Capital 
Revaluation Reserve 
Other Reserve 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

Appendix G 
 
 
 
 

BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 Oct 22 

 
 

FIXED ASSETS 
 
 

 
 

CURRENT ASSETS 
 

Stocks & Work In Progress 

Assets held for resale 

    
 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 
 

 
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Borrowings (IFRS 16) 
Provisions 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 

 
 

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED 
 

 
Retained Earnings 
I & E YTD 
IFRS 16 I&E 

TOTAL TAXPAYERS EQUITY 
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Sales Ledger Debtors 
Prepayments & Accrued Income 
Other Debtors 
Trade & Other Receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Actual 
As at 31 Oct 22 

(£k) 
 
 
 
 

65,648 
1,755 

49,779 
20 

117,202 
 
 
 

1,220 
 

0 
 

4,178 
10,493 
2,727 

17,398 
53,557 

72,175 
 
 

(4,866) 
(23,148) 
(7,197) 

(95) 
(7,493) 
(6,587) 
(49,387) 

 
22,788 

139,990 
 

(32,769) 
(6,646) 

0 
(39,415) 

100,575 
 
 
 

(64,758) 
(18,448) 

350 
 

(8,272) 
71 

(9,518) 
 

(100,575) 
 

Actual Audited 
As at 31 Mch 22 

(£k) 
 
 
 
 

68,092 
2,110 

 
20 

70,222 
 
 
 

1,220 
 

0 
 

9,219 
6,351 
736 

16,306 
60,910 

78,436 
 
 

(6,123) 
(32,564) 
(4,051) 
(775) 

0 
(9,414) 
(52,927) 

 
25,509 

95,731 
 

0 
(4,603) 

0 
(4,603) 

91,128 
 
 
 

(64,758) 
(18,448) 

350 
 

(8,272) 

 
(91,128) 

 

Forecast 
As at 31 Mch 23 

(£k) 
 
 
 
 

67,187 
1,440 

65,916 
20 

134,563 
 
 
 

1,220 
 

0 
 

4,750 
11,286 

250 
16,286 
59,182 

76,688 
 
 

(2,750) 
(29,513) 
(6,750) 
(191) 

(11,684) 
(7,414) 
(58,302) 

 
18,386 

152,949 
 

(44,618) 
(4,603) 

0 
(49,221) 

103,728 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

Annual Report and Accounts 2021-2022 for the SCAS Charity 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

52 

Executive Summary: 
 

This paper reports on the annual report and accounts for the last 

financial year. 

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to approve and sign off the annual report and 
accounts for 2021-2022 

Executive lead: 
 

Mike Murphy 

Report author: 
 

Vanessa Casey 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

Charitable Funds Committee 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☐ 

Approve 
☒ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☒ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
The annual accounts have been reviewed by the Independent Examiner as required.  The 
Independent Examiner has stated that there were no matters that had come to his attention and 
he has therefore approved the accounts.  There were two points of interest raised.  Firstly 
around Charity funds being held in a single bank account.  A cash flow is now being developed 
and a proposed investment strategy will be discussed at a future CFC meeting.  The second was 
around fund management and how central costs are allocated.  These will be taken forward at 
the January CFC meeting. 
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

Not applicable 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Not applicable 
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Quality Domain(s): 
 

Not applicable 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 
Signed accounts will be submitted to the Charity Commission 
List of Appendices: 
Independent Examiners Report 
Charity Accounts 2021-2022 
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SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY (Registered No 

1049778)

Introduction

Trustee

The Directors of the Charity were as follows:

Chairman and Non Executive Directors

Lena Samuels (Resigned 31/3/22)

Professor Sir Keith Willett CBE (Appointed 1/4/22)

Mike Hawker

Les Broude

Nigel Chapman

Sumit Biswas

Dr Priya Singh (Resigned 31/12/21)

Dr Anne Stebbing

Ian Green

Dr Henrietta Hughes OBE (Appointed 1/2/22)

Executive Directors

William Hancock Chief Executive SCAS FT

Charles Porter (Resigned 31/8/22) Director of Finance 

Aneel Pattni (Appointed 1/10/22) Director of Finance 

Paul Kempster Chief Operating Officer

Professor Helen Young Director of Patient Care

Mike Murphy Director of Strategy and Business Development

John Black Medical Director

Melanie Saunders Director of Human Resources  

Jane Campbell (Resigned 1/4/22) Acting Director of Patient Care

Key Management Personnel

Vanessa Casey Chief Executive Officer

Independent Examiners

MG Group

Funds Held

Statement of Financial Activites

These arise primarily as a result of donations from members of the public, from those who have used the ambulance service, companies and other organisations. The main purpose 

for the use of these donations is for any charitable purposes relating to the general or any specific purposes of the South Central Ambulance Service NHS Trust (including for the 

benefit of both patients and staff) or to purposes relating to the health service.

During the year, income of £989k (2020/21 £559k) was received and £888k (2020/21 £589k) was expended.  The balance carried forward for all funds totalled £517k (2020/21 

£416k).

In administering the funds of the Charity, the Trustees aim to provide public benefit in buying essential equipment, supporting the Community Responder Schemes and improving 

staff facilities and welfare.

166 College Road, Harrow, Middlesex, HA1 1BH

Trustee's Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2022

Lloyds Bank PLC High Street, Winchester, Hants 

Bankers to the Charity

The principal address of the Charity is Units 7 - 8, Talisman Business Centre, Talisman Road, Bicester, Oxfordshire, OX26 6HR 

The Trustee of the Charity is the South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust.  The Directors of the Foundation Trust are also charged with the management of the 

Charity.

This annual report has been prepared in accordance with the following directions:

                Charity Sorp (Statement of Recommended Practice) 2015 (FRS102) effective 2019.
                Charities Acts 1993, 2006 and 2011

Registered Address
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SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY (Registered No 

1049778)

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the accounts are shown on pages 10 to 12 of the financial statements.

Objectives

·         To train and equip our volunteers

·         Train and equip communities to save lives

·         To support South Central Ambulance Service (SCAS) staff

Summary of Main achievements

Support and Training for Residential Home Teams

Out of Hospital Cardiac Arrest

Trustee's Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2022

By further developing the role of our Community First Responders (CFRs) and equipping them with additional equipment, we can deploy our volunteers to even more 

calls, recruit additional CFRs and respond to even more patients.  This also enables ambulance resources to be directed elsewhere with patients safely supported in their 

home after a non-injury fall without the need for additional frontline resource or conveyance to the Emergency Department.  Non-injury falls and concern for welfare calls 

can be attended by a trained CFR.  Following assessment and a video link to our Urgent Care Desk, the CFR is then safely able to mobilise the patient off of the floor and 

back to the chair or bed.  Enhanced CFRs will also be trained and equipped to take further diagnostic tests such as Electrocardiogram (ECG) to determine whether there 

could be an underlying reason for the fall that may require further investigation in hospital or whether the patient is safe to be left at home and the ambulance redeployed 

to other patients.  This funding will support the training and equipment needed to develop this project.

The overall mission and purpose of South Central Ambulance Charity is:

We have almost 800 Community First Responders (CFRs), medical students, military, police and fire Co-Responders trained to respond to life-threatening emergencies.  

Our volunteers respond calmly and professionally, providing life-saving first aid to a patient in the crucial minutes before extra medical support arrives.  Each year our 

volunteer CFRs respond to around 33,000 life saving incidents.  They receive no statutory funding from the NHS and are funded entirely through donations to our Charity.

We work within our communities to promote the benefit of early cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR)19, the use of defibrillators and to give better understanding of basic 

life-saving skills.  Defibrillators save lives and be used without any specialist training.  In patients with a shockable heart rhythm, there is approximately a 10% reduction in 

survival for every minute’s delay.  The chance of survival can be increased two to threefold by the immediate provision of CPR.

The demand for our services increases every year and the Charity seeks to support all areas of SCAS where there is no available NHS funding.  We are able to support 

our staff with equipment, projects and services that are over and above NHS funding that enhance patient care; support the health and wellbeing of staff and create better 

working environments for our teams.

This was the second year of the Covid pandemic and again our fundraising and ability to operate as previously was significantly impacted.  The Charity was however, 

able to continue maximising the opportunities to ensure funds were still available for our increasingly important and diverse range of volunteer roles within SCAS.  As 

earlier in the pandemic a key objective this year was also to support the health and welfare of our staff and volunteers.

Enhanced Community First Responder

We were enormously grateful this year to have been supported by NHS Charities Together who awarded several significant grants to the Charity.  This funding was made 

possible by  the national Covid Appeal led by NHS Charities Together, our membership organisation, who represent 250 NHS charities across the UK. The Ambulance 

Trust award of £410,000 was supported by a further £261,000 from the Community Partnership Grants in our area.  This funding made the introduction of three key 

projects a reality.  

There are an estimated 11.8 million people over the age of 65 in the UK who account for around 16.6 million hospital admissions each year.  There is currently a large 

cohort of over 65s in the UK care system with a high admission rate into hospital following illness or injury. It is estimated that 1000 care home residents fall every day in 

the UK and 45% of these are uninjured, with the average UK ambulance response time to uninjured fallers being 3 hours.  Prolonged response times to uninjured falls 

has an impact on the faller’s health with risk of serious injuries and admission to hospital due to a long lie of over an hour or more.  
This project will enable us to provide training and equipment that will better enable care givers who are responding to the care needs of their residents.  They will gain a 

better understanding of when to call 999, 111 or direct their call to primary care.  As part of the training programme a decision-making tool will be created by our Urgent 

Care Team and reviewed by the Clinical Review Group.  This will be supported by a package of learning, demonstrating how to take a set of clinical observations, 

knowledge and understanding of how to assess and then safely lift a patient who has fallen and how to identify deterioration and improvement outcomes in acutely unwell 

patients. 

These grants from NHS Charities Together will enable us to develop our volunteer programme and the support we are able to give patients across our community by 

providing equipment, training and support that is over and above what the NHS is able to fund.

Increasing the survival rates for patients suffering an out of hospital cardiac arrest is a key aim for all ambulance trusts.  By increasing the levels of bystander CPR and 

further equipping our ambulance crews with mechanical CPR devices we aim to ensure all patients in cardiac arrest get the best possible chance at life.  Out of hospital 

cardiac arrest survival rates in the UK are lower than in many other countries.  Currently across the UK there are around 30,000 out of hospital cardiac arrests each year 

and the current survival rate is 7%. Whilst SCAS has one of the highest survival rates at 13% we are still determined to do better.  By strengthening bystander responses 

prior to emergency ambulance arrival and through the integration of new software with our computer aided dispatch (CAD) system, we will be able to automate processes, 

minimise delay, facilitate better reporting, audit and improve the outcome for patients.

GoodSAM is an advanced alerting, dispatching and tasking platform.  The GoodSAM cardiac system integrates with the ambulance services CAD (computer aided 

despatch) to trigger bystander responder to a cardiac arrest.  CPR and defibrillation can therefore begin while the ambulance is on route.  The introduction of the 

GoodSAM application at SCAS will provide a quicker response to the patient via any clinical support whether that be off duty clinicians, ambulance staff, volunteers or 

other trained first aiders.  The use of GoodSAM ensures SCAS can benefit from a larger pool of transitory ‘responders’ from other health settings.

This project will also see a total of seventeen LUCAS 3 mechanical CPR devices purchased for our frontline paramedic Team Leaders.  LUCAS devices are able to 

deliver safe and effective chest compressions with a consistent depth of 5.3cm and a continual rate of 102 beats per minute.  

“These devices provide high quality chest compressions to patients in need of prolonged resuscitation attempts and help to optimise blood flow to the heart and to the 

brain during CPR.  Vital treatment can continue while a patient is being moved on ambulance trolleys and during transfer to hospital.  This maximises the chances of 

survival for patients.”  Dr John Black, Medical Director, South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust
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During the year we received the following legacy gifts:

Mrs Jean Spence £1,000
Mr Mark Stephen Hook £4,070
Mr Reginald James Proud £52,080
Ms Sally Ann Beck £26,920
Ms Barbara Susan Yeomans £2,000
Mrs Dorothy Lawrence £10,000

Income Generation

•     Long Covid Rehabilitation Programme
•     Sustaining Resilience at Work (StRaW)
•     Bereavement Support
•     Mental Health First Aid

How We Spent Our Funds

SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY (Registered No 1049778)

Trustee's Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2022

The key priority for the Charity continues to be funding the Community First Responder volunteer programme.  During the year we upgraded some of our old uniform 

introducing new, more comfortable and durable polo shirts for our volunteers.  With funding received from NHSE/I for our volunteering programme we were also able to 

introduce new polo shirts and jackets for our welfare van volunteers. The introduction of our new volunteer strategy and a new overall direction for volunteering enabled us 

to begin supporting a wider range of volunteer activity.  Recruitment of new community first responders continues and ensures we have sufficient coverage across the 

SCAS area.

Central Charity Costs

A year on from the introduction of our new Dacia Dynamic Response Vehicles, our Community First Responders arrived ‘first on scene’ to 12,784 medical incidents 

throughout Berkshire, Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Hampshire.  The fleet of 40 vehicles were on the road for over 120,000 hours, attending 1,130 category 1 and 

5,218 category 2 calls.

This year saw the introduction of a new volunteer strategy for SCAS.  Learning from the Covid pandemic and broadening the scope of our volunteering, the Charity led on 

developing a clear way forward for volunteering across SCAS.  Using our existing developed programmes for Community First Responders and Volunteer Car Drivers, new 

roles will be created, clear, unified systems and processes put in place along with better communication.  The SCAS Board approved the new strategy in December 2021 

and the new role of Volunteer Manager will be recruited next year.  

Income this year has been significantly boosted by the grants received from NHS Charities Together National Covid Appeal.  This was especially welcome in the continued 

pandemic climate and the inability to return to community and events fundraising.

This year we were again generously supported by many individuals, companies and local community groups.  We received employee match funding from Cisco Systems, 

Exxon Mobile, BP and IBM who generously support employees who regularly volunteer.  Other corporate support was received from Arnold Clark Foundation, Hendy 

Foundation, CAE (UK) Plc, Newbury Building Society, Nominet, Tracelink, Bell Hotel, Wilmslow, Coopervision and TK Maxx and Homesense Foundation.

We were not notified of any further legacies during the year.  We are enormously grateful to those that choose to support us in this way.

Central costs continue to be managed in line with budget whilst ensuring that we are able to grow income.  Our Senior Fundraising Officer completed her first year in post 

having successfully begun developing corporate opportunities for the Charity.  This year our salary and overhead costs represented 20% of our overall expenditure.  The 

Charity has no directly employed staff but three members of the staff were employed by SCAS to work for the Charity.  These costs are recharged to the Charity.  Staff are 

paid on the same terms and conditions as other NHS employees.  Remuneration of these employees is reviewed annually and increased in line with nationally agreed 

increases in pay scales.

Our Community First Responders continued to find opportunities to fundraise in their local communities where possible.  Bishops Waltham CFRs were actively involved in 

their local NHS Big Tea street party to raise funds and our Lyndhurst CFRs were able to support the New Forest Golf Club who chose us as their Charity of the Year.  Other 

community groups responded to the call to support their local community first responders and we are grateful for all their support.

Funding was received during the year, from NHSE/I to support volunteering across the Trust.  These funds will in particular support the introduction and development of our 

welfare ‘teapot’ vans; patient transport hospital meet and greet service as well as the introduction of a new member of staff to support our volunteer development.  Our 

welfare vans have been providing refreshments and support to frontline crews who are waiting with patients at Emergency Departments.  These have proved popular with 

our staff and are an important part of our role to provide health and wellbeing support for staff.

In November we submitted a funding application to NHS Charities Together for £99,000 to fund four areas that will support the mental health and wellbeing of our staff and 

volunteers.  We learnt we had been successful in March 2022 with the grant being awarded in April 2022.  The funding will support four key areas:

We continue to receive vital support from parish and town councils who are keen to recognise the huge value Community First Responders bring to their local communities.  

Whilst part of a large ambulance trust covering four counties, our CFRs have a very local remit.   Support this year from Parish Councils in Padworth, Hanslope, 

Shellingford, Corhampton and Meonstoke, Olney, Edlesborough, North Leigh, Rotherfield Greys and Chandlers Ford helped to ensure CFRs in those areas remain fully 

equipped and on the road.

Internal grants supported new airway mannikins for ambulance staff at various stations across the area.  This will enable staff and volunteers to have better access to 

training equipment to ensure skills and competencies are maintained.

The grants from NHS Charities Together enabled us to purchase seventeen new LUCAS 3 mechanical CPR devices for our ambulance crews.  These devices are able to 

offer patients suffering cardiac arrest a far better chance of survival.  Funds were also used to increase the number of lifting cushions and Raiser Chairs available for our 

CFRs to support non-injury falls.  Along with the purchase of Zoll X Series devices and Electronic patient record forms, the Community Engagement Team, began the work 

to develop a cohort of CFRs to become Enhanced responders.  This equipment and the associated training, will enable more patients to stay at home if conveyance to 

hospital is not required.  Following further diagnostic tests and support from a clinical in the Urgent Care Team, patients can receive the most appropriate care.

Restricted grants funds for the Residential Care Homes project also funded the seconded Assistant Community Engagement and Training Officer role for 12 months.  

Paramedic Dan Hiscock worked with staff in residential homes across our area to train and equip staff to better support their residents.  In particular, he focused on enabling 

staff to take basic observations of the patient and when necessary to assess and then safely lift patients who may have fallen.  Staff were also equipped with better 

knowledge and understanding of the various care pathways available to them to reduce the automatic calls to 999 when residents are unwell.  Since the training and 

introduction of the new equipment, there has been a reduction in the number of 999 calls with staff using the 111 service, community care or GP services when more 

appropriate.

Staff and volunteers were again thanked for their considerable efforts with seasonal hampers.  The Charity was able to contribute to the overall funding of these.

Our first Outrun An Ambulance virtual challenge which began at the end of 2021 completed during the year.  With a total of 22 participants the event raised £11,500.  We 

are looking to repeat the event next year and to extending the collaboration to work with other ambulance trusts across the country.  Supporters also took part in the 

Spinnaker Abseil in Portsmouth which this year raised £5,600.

As always there have been a larger number of individuals and organisations who have supported us during the year.  We are grateful for their support.
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SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY (Registered No 

1049778)

Awards

Charity Reserves Policy

Risk Management

Nigel Chapman

Chair, Charitable Funds Committee

Declaration

I, declare in my capacity as a member of the South Central Ambulance Corporate Trustee, that:

the trustees have approved the report above and have authorised me to sign it on their behalf.

Chairman

Date: 18/11/22

The Trustees have reviewed the major risks to which the Charity is exposed and processes and systems have been established to mitigate those risks.  An organisational 

risk register is regularly reviewed at Committee level.

Finally, I would like to thank our small Charity team for all their hard work and dedication in what was another difficult year for all of us.  Despite the restrictions placed 

upon all of us by the pandemic, the team put in place valuable groundwork in many areas which will enable the SCAS Charity to increase funding to ensure the Charity is 

able to provide support SCAS staff and volunteers.

The Charity continues to maintain an appropriate level of reserves which the Corporate Trustee considers to be reasonable.  Designated funds have been identified to 

ensure the Charity can maintain the level of support required for our Community First Responder and Co-Responder activity.

Trustee's Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2022

There were no complaints received relating to the Charity during the year.

In October our volunteer responders were named  Volunteer Team of the Year in the Helpforce Champions Awards.   The team were recognised for the contribution to 

healthcare amid the challenges of Covid 19.  Helpforce, set up by former Marie Curie CEO Sir Thomas Hughes-Hallett, seeks to accelerate the growth and impact of 

volunteering in the NHS by collaborating with organisations and rapidly sharing insights and best practise.  The awards celebrate the invaluable contribution made by 

volunteers in the NHS.

Governance

SCAS Charity is a member of the Fundraising Regulator, the Chartered Institute of Fundraising and NHS Charities Together.  As such it conforms to the code of conduct 

set out by these organisations.  The Charity is overseen by the Charitable Funds Committee of SCAS who meet on a quarterly basis.  Chaired by a Non-Executive 

Director of SCAS, the Committee is made up of other Non-Executive and Executive Directors.  The Charity CEO, Deputy Director of Finance, Head of Community 

Engagement and Training and the CFR Governor also attend these meeting.  Other SCAS Governors are invited to attend meetings as observers.

During the year the Committee reviewed and revised the Charity’s risk register and reserves policy.  The Committee also reviewed spending priorities, income generation 

and applications for internal grants within SCAS.
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SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST
SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY

FUNDS HELD ON TRUST
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

CHARITY NUMBER 1049778

FOREWORD TO ACCOUNTS 2021/22

PREPARATION

These accounts have been prepared by the Trustees in accordance with:

          Accounting and Reporting by Charities-Statement of Recommended Practice(Sorp 2015) (FRS102)  effective 2019.

          Accounting Standards
          Charity Acts 1993, 2006 and 2011

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

The South Central Ambulance NHS Trust was established under SI 2006 No 1924, effective from 1st July 2006 and became the 

South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust on 1st March 2012. This change does not affect the operation of South 

Central Ambulance Charitable Trust.

The South Central Ambulance Charitable Trust with a registration number of 1049778 was established by supplemental deed, 

dated 4th October 2007

These Accounts represent the twelfth year of the South Central Ambulance Charitable Trust

MAIN PURPOSE OF THE FUNDS HELD ON TRUST

The main purpose of the charitable funds held on trust is to apply income for any charitable purposes relating to the general or any 

specific purposes of the South Central Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (including for the benefit of both patients and 

staff) or to purposes relating to the health service.
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Statement of trustees' responsibilities

The trustees are responsible for:

        keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
        position of the funds held on trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with
        requirements in the Charities Acts 1993, 2006 and 2011 the Charities SORP 2015(FRS102) effective 2019.
        Accounting Standards
         
       establishing and monitoring a system of internal control;  and 

       establishing arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption.
     
The trustees are required under the above provisions to prepare accounts for each financial year. These accounts 

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the funds held on trust.  In preparing those accounts, the trustees 

are required to:

       apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Charity Commission

       make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent; 
   
       state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
       disclosed and explained in the accounts. 

The trustees confirm that they have met the responsibilities set out above and complied with the requirements for 

preparing the accounts. The financial statements set out on pages 7 to 16 attached have been compiled from and are 

in accordance with the financial records maintained by the trustees. 

By Order of the South Central Ambulance Foundation NHS Trust Board and Corporate Trustee
Signed:

 
Chairman...................................................................    Date: 18/11/22
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2022

Note 2021-22 2020-21

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds Funds Funds

Incoming resources £000 £000 £000 £000

Donations and Legacies 2 327 581 908 148

Other 2 81 0 81 411

Total incoming resources 2 408 581 989 559

Resources expended
Charitable expenditure

Activities in furtherance of charity's objectives 3 (368) (436) (804) (544)

Costs of generating funds 4 (81) 0 (81) (45)

Total resources expended (449) (436) (885) (589)

Net incoming/(outgoing) resources before Transfers (41) 145 104 (30)

Re-classification of Restricted Funds

Net incoming/(outgoing) resources (41) 145 104 (30)

Net movement in funds (41) 145 104 (30)

Fund balances brought forward at 1st April 2021 303 113 416 446

Fund Balances carried forward at 31 March 2022 262 258 520 416

The notes at pages 10 to 16 form part of these financial statements
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

Notes Unrestricted Restricted Total at 31 Total at 31

Funds Funds March 2022 March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000

Total Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0

Current Assets
Stock 6 32 0 32 20

Debtors 7 46 0 46 49

Investments and deposits 0 0 0 0

Cash at bank and in hand 363 258 621 424

Total Current Assets 441 258 699 493

Current Liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due

within one year 8 (179) 0 (179) (77)

Net Current Assets 262 258 520 416

Total Net Assets 262 258 520 416

Funds of the Charity
Income Funds:

Restricted 9 0 258 258 113

Unrestricted 262 0 262 303

Total Funds 262 258 520 416

The notes at pages 10 to 16 form part of this account.

Signed:

Date: 18/11/22
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

Total at 31 Total at 31

March 2022 March 2021

£000 £000

Net Incoming (outgoing) resources 104 (30)

Increase (decrease) in creditors 102 (49)

(Increase) decrease in debtors 3 (35)

(Increase) decrease in stock (12) 36

Cash Flows from investing activities

Interest income 0 0

Increase / (decrease)  in cash and cash equivalents in the year 197 (78)

Total cash and cash eqivalents at start of the year 424 502

Total cash and cash eqivalents at the end of the year 621 424
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Notes to the Accounts

1. Accounting Policies

1.1 Accounting Convention

1.2 Incoming Resources

a) All incoming resources are included in full in the Statement of

Financial Activities as soon as the following three factors can be

met:

i)

ii)

iii)

b) Legacies

Legacies are accounted for as incoming resources once the receipt of

the legacy becomes reasonably certain. This will be once confirmation 

has been received from the representatives of the estates that payment

of the legacy will be made or property transferred and once all 

conditions attached to the legacy have been fulfilled.

1.3 Resources expended 

The funds held on trust accounts are prepared in accordance with 

the accruals concept. All expenditure is recognised once there is

a legal or constructive obligation to make a payment to a third party.

a) Cost of generating funds

The cost of generating funds are the costs associated with 

generating income for the funds held on trust. 

b) Grants payable

Grants payable are payments, made to third parties (including NHS 

bodies) in the furtherance of the funds held on trust's charitable 

objectives.

c) Irrecoverable VAT

Irrecoverable VAT is charged against the category of resources expended

for which it was incurred.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost 

convention, as modified for the revaluation of certain investments, and in 

accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and 

policies for the NHS approved by the Secretary of State and the Statement 

of Recommended Practice "Accounting and Reporting by Charities" 2019.

entitlement - arises when a particular resource is receivable or the charity's 

right becomes legally enforceable;

certainty - when there is reasonable certainty that the incoming resource will 

be received;

measurement - when the monetary value of the incoming resources can be 

measured with sufficient reliability.
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

1.4 Structure of funds

Endowment:

Restricted:

Unrestricted:

1.5 Fixed Assets

The Charity has no Fixed Assets

1.6 Investment Fixed Assets

 The Charity has no Investment Fixed Assets

1.7 Short Term Investments

The Charity has no short term investments

1.8 Change in the Basis of Accounting

There has been no change in the basis of accounting during the year

1.9 Prior Year Adjustments

1.10 Related Party Transactions

There are no prior year adjustments

During the year none of the Trustees or members of key management or parties 

related to them have undertaken any transactions with the South Central Ambulance 

Charitable Trust.  No expenses or remunerations have been paid to the Trustees

In practice most donations received by the Charity are from donors 

expressing a desire, wish or recommendation that the Charity will use it in a 

certain way. Such donations are normally allocated to designated funds 

within the Charity's Accounts for that purpose, but if the purpose cannot be 

fulfilled the Trustee's can apply the donations for a further purpose in 

furtherance of the Charity's objects, after taking all factors into consideration.

These are funds, which cannot themselves be spent, but are held as capital 

to generate income for charitable purposes

These are funds that have a legal restriction (subject to a Trust) and must be 

spent for a specific purpose-details shown at notes 9.1 and 9.2.

Unless there is clear evidence of a Trust being created at the point of receipt, 

then the Charity Commission takes the view that donations should be 

classified as "unrestricted"
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

1.11 Post Balance Sheet Events

The charity does not have any Post Balance Sheet Events

1.12 IFRS Implications

With the introduction of IFRS in the NHS, these accounts will still continue to 

be submitted to the Charity Commission. However, under IFRS, as these 

charitable funds are under the control of the South Central Ambulance 

Service Foundation NHS Trust Board as Corporate Trustee, they may have 

to be consolidated within the Statutory reporting of the Trust subject to 

materiality considerations.
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

2. Details of Material Incoming Resources

2.1 Incoming Resources Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2021-22 2020-21

Funds Funds

£000 £000 £000 £000

Donations and Legacies

 

Donations received 127 6 133 147

Legacies received 96 0 96 1

Grants received 2.2 104 575 679 0

Sub-total 327 581 908 148

Other

Sale of old CFR vehicles 0 0 0 115

Reimbursement of outgoing funds 0 0 0 49

Other 81 0 81 31

Material Grants 2.2 0 0 0 216

81 0 81 411

Total other incoming resources 408 581 989 559

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

2.2 Grants Received and Material Grants Funds Funds 2021-22 2020-21

Funds Funds

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS Charities Together 42 477 519 163

Other 62 98 160 53

Total grants received 104 575 679 216

In the 2020/2021 accounts £216k was recorded within "Material Grants" in "Other", to aid comparison the above table 

has been created. The grants received in 2021/2022 is shown side by side with the Material Grants from 2020/2021.

3. Details of Resources Expended - Activities in furtherance of charity's objectives

3.1 Other

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2021-22 2020-21

Funds Funds

Other: £000 £000 £000 £000

Equipment and vehicles 172 9 181 249

Grants and Projects 3.2 80 427 507 162

Miscellaneous 18 0 18 41

270 436 706 452

3.2 Grants

3.3 Management and Administration Costs

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2021-22 2020-21

Funds Funds

£000 £000 £000 £000

Management Recharge Costs 96 0 96 90

Governance Costs 2 0 2 2

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0

98 0 98 92

368 436 804 544

Included within Equipment and vehicles are vehicle running costs, uniform costs, equipment purchases and 

telecommunications costs for the CFR's.

Previously in the SoFA, donations, legacies and grants were disclosed on separate lines but in 2021/22 an accounts 

presentational change was made to disclose these figures under one heading 'Donations and Legacies', this change was 

due to improving comparability with how other charities disclose incoming resources. The comparatives have not been re-

stated, grants of £216k were included within "Other" in 2020/2021 and in 2021/2022 grants of £679k were included within 

"Donations and Legacies".

During the year £507k was spent on grants and projects (2020/21: £162k). Included within this spend are three projects; 

Enhanced CFR to train and equip our Community First Responders to carry out further diagnostic tests with patients 

(£179k); Out of Hospital Cardiac Arrest to increase the possible survival rates of patients in cardiac arrest through the 

introduction of the GoodSAM application and the purchase of LUCAS 3 mechanical CPR devices (£145k) and our 

Residential Homes training project to support staff in homes in supporting their resident (£58k).  Volunteer development 

projects included £17k for welfare vehicles; £11k for welfare volunteer expenses and uniform.

Sub-total Activities in furtherance of charity's objectives
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

4. Costs of Generating Funds

Sub-total b/f Note 3 (page 9) 368 436 804 544

4 Costs of Generating Funds Unrestricted Restricted Total costs Total costs

Funds Funds 2021-22 2020-21

£000 £000 £000 £000

Promotional Goods & Event Costs 7 0 7 4

Leaflets & Promotion 2 0 2 3

Management Recharge 67 0 67 38

Website 5 0 5 0

81 0 81 45

Total Costs 449 436 885 589

5. Analysis of Cash

5.1 Market value at 31 March : Held Held 2021-22 2020-21

in UK outside UK Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Other investments - cash at bank 621 0 621 424

621 0 621 424

Included within Fund Raising Costs in 21/22 is an amount of £67k relating to the costs of the fund raisers 

(2020/2021: £38k).
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

6. Inventories 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

£000 £000

Uniforms 25 12

Clinical Equipment 7 8

Total Inventories 32 20

7. Analysis of Receivables 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

7.1 Amounts falling due within one year: £000 £000

Prepayments 38 37

Accrued income 2 1

Total receivables falling due within one year 6 11

Total receivables 46 48

8. Analysis of Payables 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

8.1 Amounts falling due within one year: £000 £000

Amounts due to subsidiary and

associated undertakings 127 62

Other payables 4 15

Deferred income 48 0

Total payables falling due within one year 179 77

The Amount due to subsidiary and associated undertaking is owed to South 

Central Ambulance Trust (SCAS). The Trust re-charges staff time spent on 

Charity business. Purchases are paid through the SCAS procurement system 

and re-charged. The above amount represents the monies due to SCAS for 

quarter 4 of 2021/22.

Deferred income relates to monies received specifically for a restricted fund 

project in 2022/2023.
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITY - 2021-2022

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

9. Analysis of Funds

9.1 Restricted Funds Balance Incoming Resources Transfers Gains and Balance

31 March Resources Expended Losses 31 March

2021 2022

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Funds

Central 41 579 (427) 0 0 193

Berkshire CFR 21 0 (6) 0 0 15

Buckinghamshire CFR 21 0 (3) 0 0 18

Oxfordshire CFR 1 0 0 0 0 1

East Hampshire CFR 9 0 0 0 0 9

West Hampshire CFR 3 1 0 0 0 4

LGBT 0 1 0 0 0 1

Q Volunteering 17 0 0 0 0 17

Total 113 581 (436) 0 0 258

9.2 Endowment Funds

The Charity does not hold any endowment funds
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INDEPENDENT EXAMINER'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES OF 

SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE CHARITABLE TRUST 

 

I report on the accounts for the period ended 31st March 2022 set out on pages 1 to 16. 

 

Respective responsibilities of trustees and examiner 

The charity's trustees are responsible for the preparation of the accounts. The charity's trustees consider 

that an audit is not required for this year under section 144(2) of the Charities Act 2011 (the Charities 

Act) and that an independent examination is required. 

 

It is my responsibility to: 

 

-  examine the accounts under Section 145 of the Charities Act, 

-  to follow the procedures laid down in the General Directions given by the Charity  

Commission (under Section 145(5)(b) of the Charities Act); and 

-  to state whether particular matters have come to my attention. 

 

Basis of the independent examiner's report 

My examination was carried out in accordance with the General Directions given by the Charity 

Commission. An examination includes a review of the accounting records kept by the charity and a 

comparison of the accounts presented with those records. It also includes consideration of any unusual 

items or disclosures in the accounts, and seeking explanations from you as trustees concerning any such 

matters. The procedures undertaken do not provide all the evidence that would be required in an audit, 

and consequently no opinion is given as to whether the accounts present a 'true and fair view ' and the 

report is limited to those matters set out in the statements below. 

 

Independent examiner's statement 

In connection with my examination, no matter has come to my attention: 

 

(1)  which gives me reasonable cause to believe that, in any material respect, the requirements  

 

-  to keep accounting records in accordance with Section 130 of the Charities Act; and 

-  to prepare accounts which accord with the accounting records and to comply with  the accounting 

requirements of the Charities Act 

 

have not been met; or 

 

(2)  to which, in my opinion, attention should be drawn in order to enable a proper understanding of the 

accounts to be reached. 

 

 

 

 

Gavin Fernandes FCA 

MG Group (Professional Services) Ltd  

Chartered Accountants 

166 College Road 

Harrow 

Middlesex 

HA1 1BH  

 

Date:  18/11/22 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

Board Committee Upward Reports 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

53 

Executive Summary: 
 

The purpose of the paper is to present the upward reports from 
meetings of the Trust’s Board committees held since the last Board 
meeting in public on 29 September 2022. These committees have 
delegated authority from the Board to seek more detailed assurance 
over areas of the Trust’s business. 

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the upward reports from the four 
committees (above) and ask any questions where further assurance 
might be required.  

Executive lead: 
 

Ian Green, Chair of People and Culture Committee  
Anne Stebbing, Chair of Quality and Safety Committee 
Mike Hawker, Chair of Audit Committee (verbal) 

Report author: 
 

Ian Green, Chair of People and Culture Committee  
Anne Stebbing, Chair of Quality and Safety Committee 
Mike Hawker, Chair of Audit Committee (verbal) 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

N/A 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☒ 

Approve 
☐ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of 
confidence in delivery 
of existing 
mechanisms / 
objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / 
objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / 
objectives 

No confidence in 
delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
N/A 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

Finance & Sustainability 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Not applicable 

Quality Domain(s): Not applicable 
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Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 
 
List of Appendices: 

• People and Culture Committee 
• Quality and Safety Committee 
• Audit Committee 
• Charitable Funds Committee 
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Summary of Upward Reporting: Issues identified. 
 
Upward reporting from the: People & Culture Committee to: SCAS Trust Board November 2022 

Date of meeting: 03 November 2022 

 
 

Items with issues not 
achieved/compliant  Issue Action Taken 

Appraisal & Statutory and 
Mandatory training compliance 
 

The committee noted an improvement to appraisals and Stat/Man 
Training numbers and continue to ensure they remain on an 
upward trajectory. 
 

Committee to continue to monitor 
improvements.   

Areas of Concern/Risk Issue Action Taken 

Recruitment & Retention  Committee noted the continued challenge with recruitment and 
retention across the Trust.  A range of initiatives to improve 
recruitment and retention were noted and discussed 

At the next meeting a more details 
update on Recruitment and 
Retention will be receive.  
Committee will be seeking 
assurance on work programme 
supporting further steps to improve 
recruitment, supporting staff given 
the current challenges with living 
costs, remote working and flexible 
working etc. 

Risk Register 
 

Real focus on risk, based upon risk register and shaping the 
agenda on any key risks identified. 
 
 

Further work continues the refresh 
and design of the risk register in 
conjunction with the Trusts Risk 
Manager.  This will continue to be a 
key focus at the next meeting.   
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Items for 
awareness/assurance Item Action Taken 

PACC ToR Review Review of ToR, making no significant changes, but we are looking 
at how the committee functions taking into account any feedback 
from the wider governance review. 

 
 

Committee to review ToR once wider 
governance review is completed. 

Best Practice/excellence Item Action Taken 

FTSU Speak up Month was a success and staff were fully engaged with 
the activities and interacting and open about the campaign. 
 
Most staff are quite buoyant in comparison to last year, they are 
forward looking and remain professional and caring.   
 
Sexual Safety Campaign was well received and staff happy to see 
that it is being talked about and actioned. Great improvements 
around the EDI strategy, communicating and updating to allow 
staff to be their true selves. 
 
Developments nationally in respect of Trans and non-binary 
people discussed identifying any specific support within SCAS. 

FTSU has a new starter joining to 
help with capacity.  Operational 
budget agreed to maintain the FTSU 
vehicle used for engagements. 
 
Sexual Safety Campaign well 
received by all staff.   
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Summary of Upward Reporting: Issues identified. 
 
Upward reporting from the: Quality and Safety Committee (Q&S) to: SCAS Trust Board November 2022  

Date of meeting: 3rd November 2022 
 

Items with issues not 
achieved/compliant  Issue Action Taken 

CQC report following 
inspection in May 2022 
published August 2022 

SCAS rated as inadequate.  
Are services safe? 

Good progress with improvement plan actions noted, (Must 
do and Should do’s), and substantial assurance provided 
on the completed actions. Q+S encouraged workstream 
leads to start to identify the next steps, including training 
requirements, delivery of changes across the organisation, 
and how assurance will be provided going forward. More 
specific detail under individual concerns / risks below. 

Areas of Concern/Risk Issue Action Taken 

1. Medical Equipment  Medical devices and equipment safety concerns 
continue to be addressed.  
Stock-take nearing completion. Medical Devices review 
Group re-started, TOR agreed by CRG. Processes and 
SOP improved. 
 
Additional AED’s and accessories now received and 
being rolled out 

Q+S note significant progress and much greater mitigation 
of risks associated with use of medical devices. Continued 
focus on training requirements for new devices. 
 
Q+S asked for consideration of reporting of KPI’s for safe 
deployment and maintenance of equipment going forward. 
Q+S noted need for this to include better information on 
fleet issues as a whole, in terms of the deployment of 
vehicles. 

2. Safeguarding 
 
Safeguarding policies 
inadequate or absent 

Progress to date includes:  
New policies amended following consultation with staff 
and ICS colleagues. Due approval at safeguarding 
committee in 2 weeks time. 

Q+S asked that meeting sequence be reviewed in order to 
provide better flow of information to the committee in 
future. Q+S asked to see the final copies of the reviews 
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Safeguarding governance  
 
Safeguarding team 
insufficiently resourced 
 
Poor compliance with level 3 
safeguarding training, adult and 
children 
 
 
Concerns about IT systems in 
use to support safeguarding 

 

Safeguarding committee TOR approved, and reporting 
directly to Q+S, (no meeting since last Q+S).  
Safeguarding team recruitment continues, AD for 
safeguarding, and Learning Disability lead now in post / 
appointed.  
Level 3 training trajectory received by Q+S. 
 
 
 
 
Issues identified by BDO review have been escalated to 
executive and IT colleagues. 

undertaken as part of the initial safeguarding improvement 
work, to be better sighted on the lessons learned. 
Q+S asked for further assurance to be provided about the 
training of the safeguarding team members, both on 
process and knowledge. 
Training needs have identified a slightly wider pool of staff 
that require Level 3 training. Therefore Q+S noted that it is 
likely to be June 2023 all will have had the opportunity to 
attend. Return to REAP4 noted, but safeguarding training 
continues to be prioritized. 
Q+S requested plan timescales for resolution of issues in 
order to help prevent outages, and reduce risk of backlog 
of referrals in future. 

3. Patient Safety 
 

 

The committee noted: 
Good progress against the improvement actions 
required. 2 overdue actions are related to the roll out of  
Health Education England training packages on patient 
safety. 
Q+S heard about the identification and sharing of 
immediate learning from the newly established Incident 
Review Panels 
Q+S remains concerned that details of serious incidents, 
and the learning from them, are not yet being provided 
to Q+S (and then the board), in adequate detail. 

Q+S chair to discuss with relevant members of patient 
safety team on how to provide better assurance on the 
learning from incidents.  
Q+S noted that future reports will need to include 
assurance that the renewed policies and process are being 
followed. 
Q+S asked for greater assurance around sharing of SI 
details with providers, where handover delays had a 
significant impact on the SI. This should be for all our SI’s 
where handover delay plays a part, not just the “system 
SIs”.  
However Q+S noted that ICS representation at Q+S helped 
to ensure that such issues are shared. 

4. Infection Prevention and 
Control (IPC) Concerns  

 
 

 

Good progress made against the actions required. 
 
Increased IPC resource being appointed. Need to 
develop assurance reports being received by the re-
vamped IPCC, so that this can be onward reported to 
Q+S. Also aiming to benchmark our IPC against other 
NHS providers.  
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5. Medicines Management  Q+S received assurance on progress against the 
improvement plan. Q+S also received a more detailed 
update on medicines management including: the 
planned improvements to the estate provision for 
medicines team; overhaul of all policies; 
communications across the organization; team 
structure; training and recording improvements; plans 
for improved medicines tracking. 
 

 Q+S welcomed the update and agreed it provided 
significant assurance. 
 

Items for 
awareness/assurance 

Item Action taken 

6. BAF / Risk Register 
 
 

 

Q+S discussed the current BAF. It was noted that BAF 
risk 1 was still reported as very high (25), and NEDs 
challenged whether this was still accurate, given the 
progress being made.  
 

Q+S noted that RACC is again following Q+S and asked 
that the governance review includes the sequencing of 
these meetings. 
Q+S asked that RACC review Risk 1, and a verbal report 
be provided bat Board by the Chief Nurse 
 

7. Review of governance Q+S noted this report, and that the draft has been 
shared with all the AD’s in then clinical directorate. 
The implications for Q+S were discussed. Noted the 
need for Q+S to be as effective as possible, rather than 
just increasing frequency. 
 
Clinical Directorate have offered to be early up-takers 
making data count training. 

No immediate changes to meeting frequency, agenda, 
terms of reference, but Q+S agreed that these would all 
need review as part of the implementation of 
recommendations from the review. 
Noted that the Board needs to finalise its subcommittee 
structure and remit prior to such changes. 
 
Q+S are keen to see better presentation of data (as per 
making data count) 

8. Mental Health Update Q+S welcomed the Mental Health annual report and an 
update on development of the team and noted the 
several new roles in place.  

 

9. Patient Safety Learning 
from Experience report  

Insight, Involvement and Improvement. As noted under 
(3)  above this report is still evolving  and suggestions 

Q+S welcomed this new style report and provided some 
comments for further development. 
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for further improvements were discussed in order to 
provide better assurance. 

Q+S asked for evidence in future of how successfully 
learning had embedded.  

10. Upward reports from 
other committees 

Noted CRG had approved two new trials and approved 
new TOR for the Medical Devices Review Group. 
Also noted that mandatory recording of 2 pains scores 
on EPR was now live. 
 
 
PERG highlighted the importance service users put on 
communication and caring behaviours, as identified in 
recent research by a PhD student 

Q+S noted that compliance in pain scores for STEMI and 
limb fractures is reported several months in arrears. Q+S 
asked that the clinical team consider how they might 
provide earlier assurance that the mandatory recording 
was demonstrating better compliance with ACQI. 
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The Audit Committee met on 22 September 2022  

 

Internal audit 

The internal auditors  presented their report. They confirmed that; 

• The 21/22 audit plan had been fully delivered 
• The 22/23 audit plan was progressing 

The internal auditors confirmed changes to the 22/23 audit plan. Three new reviews included 
are; 

• The Safeguarding referrals system to replace the Data Quality reviews 
• The SCFS improvement plan follow up  
• Overtime 

Additionally a HFMA Financial Sustainability audit mandated by NHS England to replace the 
key Financial Systems audit. 

The committee approved these changes and confirmed that they did not displace any critical 
areas of concern 

The outcome of recently completed  internal audits is set out below. 

 

Audit area 
 

Design Effectiveness 

Data Security and Protection Toolkit 
 

Substantial Substantial 

Charitable Funds 
 

Moderate Moderate 

 

The Data Security and Protection toolkit audit was a review of the SCAS self-assessment. 
The self-assessment is part of a framework for assuring that Trusts are implementing the ten 
data security standards recommended by the National Data Guardian and that they are 
meeting their statutory obligations on data protection and data security. The committee 
noted the very positive outcome from this audit. However the committee did express concern 
at wider IT issues and particularly the recent 111 outages as a result of a weakness in a 
suppliers security ( e.g. Adastra). 

The Charitable Funds audit noted strengths in respect of the strategic financial management 
process. The auditors concerns related to the day to day management of the finances and 
related processes; they noted the limited administrative support available from the Charity 
and the Trust. The Charity CEO accepted the recommendations and planned to implement 
them. 

 

Implementation of audit recommendations 

The internal auditors  expressed disappointment at the delay in the implementation of some 
of their recommendations. The audit committee expressed their frustration at a recent but 
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consistent issue. The committee will ask the CEO to attend the next meeting if this is not 
resolved. 

 

External Audit 

There is no requirement to report at this stage of the financial cycle.  

 

Assurance and Risk  

The committee received a report on the Board Assurance Framework (BAF) and the 
Corporate Risk Register.   

The committee received  the minutes of the Risk, Assurance and Compliance Committee 
held on 18 July 2022 and 23 September 2022. 

The committee recognised that the BAF and the Risk Register are being reviewed. The 
committee reserved their detailed comments until this process is complete, 

The committee recommend a more structured approach to the determination of the Trust’s 
risk appetite and understand that this will be part of an upcoming seminar. 

 

Counter Fraud 

RSM  presented their usual  comprehensive report. 

The work of RSM is important to demonstrate the Trusts commitment to the elimination of 
fraud. The typical frauds are not material and only involve a very small minority of staff.  

The committee noted that some cases ( working while sick) were referred to HR; the 
committee would like to know the outcome of that referral. 

 

Quality and Safety Committee (Q&S) 

The committee received a summary report from Q&S. There were no matters requiring 
additional support from the Audit Committee or a new allocation of Internal Audit resource. 

 

Losses register 

The committee noted the report 

 

Policies 

The committee reviewed the Policy Tracker and was assured by the commitment of the 
executive team to keep on top of the review process . 

The committee noted that previous concerns about the process of approving policies were 
now being addressed. 
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Mike Hawker 9 November 2022 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

Charitable Funds Committee – Upward Report 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

54 

Executive Summary: 
 

This paper reports on the recent Charitable Funds Committee and 

operation of the Charity.  The annual report and accounts for the last 

financial year are also included for final Board sign off prior to filing with 

the Charity Commission. 

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to: note the report and to approve the 2021-
2022 annual report and accounts for the Charity. 
 

 
 

Executive lead: 
 

Mike Murphy 

Report author: 
 

Nigel Chapman 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☒ 

Approve 
☐ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☒ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
Quarterly meetings of the CFC cover all aspects of the Charity’s operation and review up to date 
financial position of the Charity.  The annual report and accounts have been agreed by the CFC 
and approved by the Independent Examiner. 
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

Not applicable 
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Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Not applicable 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

Not applicable 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
Annual report and accounts to be submitted to the Charity Commission. 
 
List of Appendices: 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING IN PUBLIC 24 November 2022 

Charitable Funds Committee – Upward Report 

PURPOSE 
 
1 This paper seeks to update the Board on the key issues for the Charity as recently 
discussed at the CFC meeting on 6 October 2022, and progress with the 2020/21 Accounts which 
we hope to table for approval at this meeting. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY / TOP THREE ISSUES FOR BOARD ATTENTION 

 
2 Fundraising Issues 
3 Volunteer to Career Grant 
4 Restricted Grants 
5 2021-22 Annual Report and Accounts Charity  
6 BDO Internal Audit Recommendations 
7 Pain Legacy 
8 Communications Support plan 
  
 
KEY ISSUES  

 
Fundraising update and grants spend 
 
 
9.  Fundraising is a mix of some real highs and some lows currently.  The wider PR around the 
Charity and the impact both internally and externally is creating increased opportunities to raise 
money through events, corporate channels and community engagement.  The Business Life 
Saving Awareness Training sessions for companies has begun to grow as well as the new 
relationship with London Irish Rugby Foundation and Pump Technology.  Summer events attended 
by CFRs and others have been very successful.  However, the cost-of- living crisis is having a 
significant impact on our individual giving which is substantially down against budget and where we 
were this time last year.   
 
10 We have been successful in our application for a Volunteer to Career Grant from NHS 
England.  We are the only ambulance trust to have secured this funding.  The £25,000 grant is to 
fund a one-year seconded post of Volunteer Coordinator to create and implement a programme 
across SCAS that will support volunteers who wish to explore a career at SCAS or in the wider 
NHS. The remaining cost will be funded by the NHSE volunteering grant previously received. The 
project will involve a team from across SCAS such as Recruitment, Education, EDI, PTS, 
Community Engagement and Comms to support a cohort of volunteers.  These volunteer roles can 
be in any department but will be recruited specifically as development opportunities with volunteers 
then supported to find out more about the various opportunities and a chance to explore roles in 
different areas that they may be interested in.  
 
11 The Charity received significant funding from NHS Charities Together to support three 
projects.   We still have high levels of unspent funds for two of these projects – Enhanced CFRs 
and Out of hospital Cardiac Arrest.  Both projects have been impacted by demand and REAP 
levels.  The Enhanced CFR project relies on having a clinician in the CCC to support CFRs taking 
on further diagnostic testing with the patient.  The OHCA project is now moving forward with the 
integration of GoodSAM into the CAD.  These issues have seriously impacted the timing and 
implementation of these projects.  These funds will likely be spent by the end of the financial year. 
 
Accounts for 20/22 and BDO Audit 
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12 The annual report and accounts for 2021-2022 are now completed in draft form.  The 
Independent Examiner will begin working on these around 10 November with their final report 
going to the CFC on 18 November.  Any final changes and sign off by the CFC will then be 
complete and hopefully the accounts will be ready for this Board to sign off today. They will need to 
be submitted to the Charity Commission by the 31 January 2023 deadline. 
  
 
13 BDO completed their internal audit of the Charity.  The final report recognised the Charity 
has good overall controls embedded around the reporting and governance structure which is 
monitored at the CFC.  They did however identify five areas where we could improve.  The Charity 
will implement these recommendations, which are around processes and policy for recording 
income transactions and in particular those received and banked by our volunteers.  
 
Other matters   
 
14 The Charity has been notified of a significant legacy from the late Mrs Patricia Pain.  There 
are no restrictions on the use of these funds which will likely be received in Spring/Summer 2023.  
We have engaged Wilsons Solicitors to support us in the management of this process and to 
ensure the Charity’s best interests are represented. 
 
15.  Charity communications has been discussed as part of the ongoing need to increase 
awareness, build a bigger supporter base and further champion the work of the Charity in 
supporting SCAS both with internal and external audiences.  The CFC formally agreed the 
inclusion of Matt Watts, Deputy Director of Communications as a dedicated comms link for the 
Charity on a one day a week basis.  This will ensure the profile of the Charity is maintained, its link 
and support for SCAS can be developed and there can be more joined up comms across the two 
areas of work.  This will be mutually beneficial to the Charity and to SCAS. 
 
 
 
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 
16 The financial position of the Charity continues to be carefully managed in these challenging 
times for fundraising.  The Volunteer Conference was held on 23 October and was our first since 
2019.  This year it was open to all volunteers from across SCAS.  The conference was well 
attended and feedback from volunteers has been extremely positive.  I was pleased to attend and 
to join the Q&A panel and to give my thanks to our volunteers for their valued contributions.  The 
conference needs to be prioritised in future years as an important opportunity for senior SCAS staff 
and Execs to update our volunteers on overall SCAS strategy and to engage and thank this 
important group of individuals. 
 
 
 
Nigel Chapman 
Non-Executive Director 
28 October 2022 
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1. Purpose  
 

The purpose of the paper is to provide the SCAS Board with an update on the 
activities of the National Covid Response Services including the National Covid-19 
Vaccination Booking Service (NVBS), NHS Covid Pass Service (NCPS) and 
Vaccine Data Resolution Service (VDRS). Services are all managed by SCAS on 
behalf of NHS England (NHSE) and NHSX. 

 
2. Executive Summary 
 
1 National Covid-19 Vaccination Programme – SCAS provides support to a range 

of COVID-19 vaccination programme related services from making and updating 
vaccination appointment bookings, answering questions about vaccines and covid 
passes, ordering covid pass letters, taking referrals to the Vaccination Data 
Resolution Service.   
 

2 The National Covid-19 Vaccination Booking service (NVBS) The service has 
reduced its headcount from 1000 FTE to 500 FTE w/c the 31st of October with 
further reductions planned in November. The start-up of the Autumn 2022 Covid19 
booster has witnessed its peak and is in the mop up phase of first invites and 
sending out invite reminders to those already invited. This service has now 
answered 17.1million calls since the start and made 6.1million vaccination 
appointment bookings on behalf of citizens. In addition, numerous citizens have 
been supported to locate walk-in Covid-19 vaccination centres. 

 
3 The Vaccination Data Resolution Service (VDRS) During August VDRS was 

affected by the national Adastra Issue, this was resolved on 31-08-22 and all 
records we received during this period have now been input into the live system 
and all reporting from the 31-10-22, is a true reflection of the volumes and 
outcomes.  Since the service went live it has handled 331,554 referrals.      

 
4 The NHS Covid Pass Service (NCPS) has now answered 3.7 million calls to date 

and requested 1.7 million letters on behalf of citizens.   
 
Operational Highlights: 
 
National COVID-19 Vaccination Booking Service  
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5 Service performance for the service since opening1:  
• 17.8 million offered calls   
• 17.1 million answered of which 87.4% were within 60 seconds.  
• 3.9% of offered calls were abandoned after 30 seconds 
• average speed to answer 48.5 seconds  
• average handling time 387 Seconds 
• bookings made 6.1 million 
• staff utilisation within the last two months has decreased as demand has 

decreased and the headcount has been reduced incrementally in line with 
demand predictions to maintain of service performance.   

 
6  Staffing has been reduced from 3500 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) to 300 FTE.  
 
7 The service continues to support the Covid-19 vaccination of all citizens who 

turned five by 31 August 2022. In addition to activity related to COVID-19 
Vaccination bookings, this service also continues to support citizens needing 
support for registering their COVID-19 vaccination invite preferences, making 
appointments to validate COVID-19 vaccinations given abroad and making 
referrals to the Vaccine Data Resolution Service (VDRS) Team.   
 

8 The service also provides support to vulnerable citizens who cannot access covid 
19 vaccination for the housebound via their own GP surgery. The agents can take 
details that are then passed onto the regional coordination points for housebound 
vaccination services 

 
Covid Pass Service (CPS) 
9 NHS Covid Pass service performance for the service since opening2:  
 

• 4. million offered calls  
• 3.7 million answered of which 89.5% were within 60 seconds3 
• 3% of offered calls were abandoned after 30 seconds. 
• average speed to answer 53.9 seconds 
• average handling time 356 seconds 
• staff utilisation was within commissioner agreed parameters   
• letters requested 1.7 million 

 
10 The reduced national and international covid related restrictions is reflected in the 

downsizing of the service to 70 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) resources week 31st 
October 2022.  
 

11 The Service opening hours were further reduced to reflect demand in October to 
9am-6pm on Weekdays and 8am – 1pm on Saturdays and remain closed on 
Sunday.  
 

12 Change to our reporting agreed with commissioner in October to report on calls 
answered in 120 Seconds 
 

13 In addition to requesting a printed covid pass letter parents of children aged 
between 5-11 years old can also request a copy of the record via email.  
 

 
1 Until 31-10-2022 
2 Data until 31-10-2022 
3 Change to reporting KPI in October future reports will benchmark against calls answered in 120 Seconds 
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14 Adults with no NHS Covid Pass log in but who have a valid NHS number with a 
current mobile number or email address held against may also request an email 
copy of their covid records. 
 

15 The plan to merge National Vaccination Booking Service (NVBS) and NHS Covid 
Pass Service (NCPS) has been reviewed and programmes decided not to 
progress this model and the services will continue to run as separate services.   

 
Vaccination Data Resolution Service (VDRS) 
16 To date, the Vaccination Data Resolution Service (VDRS) had 331.544 calls 

referred from the 119 call agents. 
 
17 The service has made 931,018 calls to citizens who have issues with their 

vaccination data (some of these will be call backs as we ring a citizen three times 
in total) which may prevent them from having a complete and accurate record to 
allow them to obtain their COVID-19 pass.  

 
18 Referrals to the service have reduced in number week on week, and average 

around 260 during each weekday to around 70 over the weekend. The reduction of 
referrals over the weekend is due to the reduced hours of the COVID pass service 
on these days. 

 
19 There are currently 25.8 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) personnel working on the 

service, at present we are working to reduce the number of call agents on the 
service due to reduction in call demand, this is happening by natural attrition at the 
moment. 

 
20 The service creates synthetic records. This allows the agent to add data to the 

citizens vaccination record to reflect the correct vaccine, dose, date, and location; 
this is all verified with the citizen at the time. The agents can now edit or delete any 
erroneous data to allow the citizen to continue to receive their full COVID-19 
vaccination course or to be able to download or request their Covid certification, 
again, this is after full verification from the citizen at the time. To date we have 
created 27,509 synthetic records and amended 11,124 records to reflect a true 
representation of the citizens actual vaccination history.  

 
21 During August the Vaccination Data resolution service was affected by the national 

Adastra outage, as the Adastra system is used to collate citizen information and 
manage their issues. During this period from the 04-08-22 up to the 30-08-22 we 
managed the service in a contingency process where all records were handled 
using a resilience electronic record.  Citizens continued to be referred to the 
service by 119 and our agents continued to manage any data issues referred to 
us. All data we received during this period of time has now been added back into 
the Adastra system and Management information is now a true reflection of the 
service demand and outcomes. 

 
Clinical Governance 
22 The Serious Incident Assurance review findings have been shared with the Board.  

 
23 A Safeguarding Assurance review is complete. The findings have been shared 

with the Board. 
 

24 As part of the lessons learned from ramp down the Clinical Governance team have 
commenced the roll out of incident identification, escalation, and management 
training modules.  
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Patient Experience (PE) – Feedback from Patients 
25 For Covid-19 Response Service 1 and 2, (CRS 1 and 2), and the Covid Clinical 

Assessment Service 1 (CCAS 1) we have no open Patient Experience cases.  
 
26 No complaints have been received from Covid-19 Response Service 3 (CRS3.  
 
27 We are working collaboratively with the Service Centre Rotherham with their 

Vaccine Data Resolution Service (VDRS & VBS & CPS) workload into the relevant 
email boxes. 
 

28 Patient Experience rolled out and revised Complaint management Escalation 
training for all call handlers within our 3rd party providers (HGS & Serco) for quality 
assurance, complaint workshops and levelling sessions to maintain and improve 
quality and performance. The Patient Experience team engaged in regular quality 
assurance meetings. 
 

29 The role out of the complaints training for the Vaccine Booking Service has now 
been completed.  This training was applied to the train the trainer model which was 
then briefed out to our service providers (HGS & SERCO). 
 

30 Currently have two cases open with Parliamentary Health Ombudsman (PHSO), 
related to historical cases that we investigated and responded to 

 
Finance Update 
31 SCAS continue to provide business and operational support for all of the Covid 

Response Services (CRS) in dormancy and the Covid Vaccination Helpline (CVH), 
the Covid Pass Service (CPS) and the Vaccination Data Resolution Service 
(VDRS) for which all costs incurred are fully recovered. 
 

32 Invoicing for the recovery of costs has been agreed with all Commissioners – for 
both SCAS governance wrap and direct Operational costs. 
 

33 Revised forecasts for services for the financial year 2022-23 are being regularly 
reviewed and shared with Commissioners, to ensure resource changes are in line 
with the agreed financial envelope. 
 

34 SCAS have submitted a tender proposal to NHSE for the provision of a 119 
Business Management Service. This is to support NHSE to move from pandemic 
response mode into the implementation stage of COVID response being delivered 
as business-as-usual activity. The outcome will determine the service and financial 
outlook for the financial year 2023-2024 

 
3. Areas of Risk 

To deliver clinical /operational excellence and the delivery of leadership and staff 
engagement. All risks are detailed in the Trust Risk Register and Board Assurance 
Framework. 

 
4. Recommendations 
 

The Board is invited to note the report.  
 

Name and Title of Author: Professor Helen Young 
Date: 09 November 2022 
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Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 
 
List of Appendices: 
 
Autumn Apprenticeship Update 
 

 
 
 
Just Learning Culture Update 

A Just and Learning culture communications campaign has been launched to the wider 
workforce starting with a video from the Chief People Officer, this will be followed by articles 
and pod-casts from union colleagues, leaders and staff from across the Trust.  HR advisors 
are co-delivering (with managers) a Just and Learning culture presentation to staff across 
the Trust and feedback from early delivery has been positive.  The Just and Learning Culture 
website is established and can be found under the Trust’s Supporting Our People website.  
SCAS charity has kindly agreed to support the campaign by funding some Just and Learning 
culture posters for distribution across SCAS. 

The focus over the last quarter has included: 
 
People Policy Refresh 
As part of the process of introducing a Just and Learning Culture within the Trust, we have 
been refreshing the majority of our people policies. 
 
The purpose of this refresh is to update the tone and language within the policies to ensure 
that they mirror our culture and provide a structure and framework to enable managers follow 
processes with a restorative, fair and learning approach whilst avoiding unnecessary harm, 
steps and bureaucracy.  We are ensuring that the policy documents are streamlined so that 
they are easier to follow with a focus on additional guidance and procedures for both 
employees and managers.  Policies which we have prioritised include: 

• Discipline and Conduct 
• Resolution (formerly Grievance) 
• Dignity at Work 
• Flexible Working 

 
We are also working on developing drafts for a number of other policies including Additional 
Employment, Probationary, Capability and Attendance. 

In order to ensure full engagement a Policy Refresh Working Group has been formed, 
consisting of managers from all directorates, union colleagues and HR.  Refreshed policies 
once agreed by the group will be circulated for consultation and a communication on the 
new approach and progress is being drafted for circulation. 

Once all policies have been refreshed a People Handbook will be developed which will be 
on the Hub, this will provide a single point of access to all people policies.  

 

https://southcentralambulance.sharepoint.com/sites/Supporting-Our-People/SitePages/A-Just-and-Learning-Culture.aspx
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Essential Skills for People Managers (ESPM) 

To date 302 SCAS leaders have attended with a further 152 booked to attend.  Leaders who 
have not attended are now being contacted directly to explain what the programme is about 
and to encourage attendance.  Feedback remains positive with leaders generally embracing 
the concept and principles of a Just and Learning Culture. 

ESPM is the initial programme designed to introduce JLC, it was always intended to develop 
supporting leaders embed JLC.  We are pleased to advise that we have now developed 
further programmes as follows: 

Collation of Facts (COF) 

A one-day Collation of Facts (COF) development program, which is intended to replace the 
investigation skills training, has been designed for managers to equip participants with the 
skills and knowledge to impartially review incidents when things go wrong with compassion, 
professionalism and within legal guidelines.  The program is being piloted on 17th November. 

Civility Workshops 

Conflict Masters are running 4 work-shops between 6 – 31 October for senior leaders who 
have not attended ESPM or SCAS Leader about civility in the workplace.  All 30 senior 
leaders eligible to attend have booked. 

Health and Well-Being conversations 

The health and well-being conversations module has been finalised and will be piloted on 
22 November. 

 
Health and Wellbeing Update 

The HWB team continue to offer support under the umbrella of the six pillars of wellbeing.  
This includes business as usual support covering temporary alternative duties, menopause 
support by way of menopause cafes, onsite physio access and SCAS specific mental health 
practitioner via our occupational health provider.  Alongside this we continue to offer support 
in conjunction with any national campaigns in line with the NHSe calendar of National 
support and providing staff with platforms of knowledge via our health and wellbeing portal 
and we have been heavily involved in the wellbeing response to CQC.   

The health and wellbeing portal continues to be improved based on staff feedback and now 
hosts a specific page from the weekly staff matters article. 

Since spring of this year the team have managed to host two very successful events, firstly 
a face to face induction of the HWB champions and secondly a virtual menopause day.  The 
menopause day in particular was extremely well attended for a virtual event, taking into 
account the current pressures the Trust faces.   

The day was offered with 5 separate sessions which attendees could chose from.  All 
sessions (with exception of the Café due to confidentiality) were recorded and these are 
available via the HWB portal.   

Whilst the SCAS six pillars of wellbeing are all equally important SCAS has been involved 
in some particularly large mental health projects in the last year in order to ensure that we 
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have support staff to maintain their mental health, which in turn has a positive impact to the 
Trust to maintain excellent patient care. 

Suicide Prevention Update 

AACE in partnership with TASC, PHE, HEE and others have been working on a large scale 
project “working together to prevent suicide in the Ambulance Service”.  The TASC 24 hour 
helpline is due for a hard launch at the end of November though the line is manned from the 
1st November 2022.  As soon as the hard launch is made the team will ensure this is 
communicated widely across the Trust.  Through this launch it is also our intention to work 
closer with TASC and promote their invaluable support across the Trust. 

Occupational Health and Employee Assistance Programme Contracts 

Both occupational health contracts and EAP contracts have now been secured with TP 
Health and Health Assured respectively.  We have agreed contracts until 2025 in to give the 
Trust some consistency during times of high pressure.   

Sexual Safety Campaign 

Following concerns raised regarding sexual harassment/sexual safety in the workplace at SCAS 
which is being experienced by colleagues, not purely limited to women, the Trust is developing a 
Sexual Safety Campaign.  This was also picked up as part of the Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
inspection into the services at SCAS and SCAS as a well-led service and was subsequently 
released as part of their inspection report. 
 
As a result of the feedback received by staff, the case studies both experienced and heard and the 
seriousness of this issue, a sexual safety campaign is being put together. 
 
Many other ambulance trusts have also started their own sexual safety campaigns, both South 
East Coast Ambulance Service and London Ambulance Service have both launched their own 
campaign following similar feedback.  We are undertaking some conversations with SECAMB to 
understand what they did, the wording used and what the feedback from colleagues was, and in 
addition looking at content which was released to staff by both trusts so that we can learn from 
their experience as we put together our own campaign. 
 
Campaign overview 
 
The campaign objectives are: 
 

• Educate and inform staff about sexual safety 
• Educate and inform staff about acceptable behaviour 
• Educate and inform staff about unacceptable behaviour 
• Educate and inform staff about how they can safely challenge unacceptable behaviour 
• Educate and inform staff about how they can report unacceptable behaviour 
• Educate and inform staff about how they can celebrate acceptable behaviour 
• Support managers in communicating and supporting the subject of sexual safety 
• Instil a culture of learning from both acceptable and unacceptable behaviour, especially in 

cases where feedback has led to a greater awareness and behaviour change. 
 

The campaign will highlight the issues related to sexual safety and through co-production 
define expected behaviours and cultural change.  We will also be exploring the 
development of a sexual safety charter.  The intended outcome of this programme is to 
empower any vulnerable person at risk of abuse and enable allies and upstanders to 
reduce the escalation of any harm, seek appropriate resolution and action.  
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Apprenticeship Update 

SCAS has many years of experience providing contemporary, innovative, flexible and high-
quality education and training across the whole workforce, aiming to be the employer of 
choice in our sector.  As such we continue to develop pre-hospital apprenticeship 
programmes, equipping our learners and team members with lifelong learning and career 
development; in particular our own unique Apprentice Emergency Care Assistant 
programme (AECA).  Developments over the last few months include: 

• Introduction of Apprenticeship Governance Group 

• Commencement of Apprenticeship Progression Board 

• Development of departmental SEN expertise 

• Functional skills tutor for learners 

• Working with scheduling to improve the work-life balance or learners in relation to 
working on relief 

Attached as Appendix 1 is our Autumn 2022 Apprenticeship Update, this is our first formal 
leadership update designed to keep our leadership teams updated on Apprenticeships in 
SCAS.  
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APPENDIX ONE - AUTUMN APPRENTICESHIP UPDATE 
 

 
 
History Behind Apprenticeships in SCAS 
 
SCAS joined the Register of Apprenticeship Training Providers (RoATP) in summer 2019. 
This is a record of organisations that are eligible to receive government funding to train 
apprentices. We then delivered our first Emergency Care Assistant Apprenticeship in 
November 2019 as an employer provider. Up until this point, we had a few members of staff 
undertaking apprenticeships with external providers in subjects such as Business 
Administration.  
 
What we currently deliver as an Employer Provider 
 
We continue to deliver our ECA apprenticeship. This has seen some change since it was 
first delivered. Apprentices now spend their first 9-months working with PTS where they 
learn all the key fundamentals required when working in the ambulance service such as 
care, compassion, communication, manual handling, driving ambulances etc. Following this 
time with PTS, apprentices return to Education to complete their ECA training before 
commencing with frontline Ops. In total the programme is 16-months long.  
 
In 2022, we started our first ever AAP apprenticeship. In the last few years, we have been 
used to our trainee AAPs already having a grounding in frontline ambulance work as ECAs. 
These new apprentice AAPs have never worked on a frontline ambulance and come from a 
wide range of backgrounds, some from PTS, some from CCC, some from the military, some 
college leavers amongst others. They will undertake the AAP programme on a modular 
basis. Initially they spend 12-weeks in education, undertaking induction, their emergency 
driving programme and then module 1 of the AAP programme. Following this, they spend 
16-weeks in practice before returning to Education for a further 3-weeks then 10-weeks in 
practice, a further 3-weeks in education and their final practice placement period of 10-
weeks. Following an assessment week, they have 16-weeks of AAP consolidation before 
completing their Apprenticeship End Point Assessment.  
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Our Apprenticeships in Numbers 
 
Apprentice AAP 
 

 
Apprentice ECA 
 

 
 
Other Apprentices in SCAS 
 
As well as our apprentice ECAs and AAPs, SCAS has a number of other apprentices but 
their education is provided by another organisation. There are several Business Admin 
apprentices as well as a few people undertaking more technical qualifications. 
 
Our Paramedic Apprentices undertake their programme with the university of Cumbria 
however we are instrumental in this as we provide the placement time.  
 
Some Key Apprenticeship Facts 
 
How are Apprenticeships funded?  

Current number of ACTIVE cohorts 1 (divided into North and South groups) 
Current number of ACTIVE students 23 (11 North, 12 South) 
Current number of students on PAUSE 0 
Current number of “achievers”  First Cohort due to complete mid-

November 2023 
Current number of “leavers” 0 
Next End Point Assessment planned  Estimated mid-November 2023 
Next cohort start date TBD 
Current number of AAAP Mentors 
(Education)  

2 

Current number of ACTIVE cohorts 9 
Current number of ACTIVE students 38 
Current number of students on PAUSE 1  
Current number of “achievers”  34 learners completed on time, 37 in total. 
Current number of “leavers” 11 withdrawals 
Current total number of students in PTS 19 
Current total number of students in 999 
Ops 

19 

Next End Point Assessment planned  05/10/22 
Next cohort start date December 2022 – Cohort 11 
Next planned PTS -> ECA transition  January 2023 – Cohort 9 
Current number of PTS Mentors 
(Education)  

3 
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SCAS pays into a government led funding pot every month (apprenticeship levy), along with 
all other organisations with a wage bill of over £3 million p.a. We then draw money out of 
this funding to pay for apprenticeships.   
 
Who controls the apprenticeship levy?  
 The Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) controls the apprenticeship levy. This is a 
government agency that is responsible for ensuring we use our apprenticeship funding 
appropriately, aligning with funding rules.    
 
Is there an age limit for apprentices? 
No, there is no age limit. Historically, apprenticeships were associated with young people 
but this is no longer the case.  
 
What if I would like to hire an apprentice for my team? 
We are keen to expand our number of apprentices within the organisation. If you are looking 
to employ an apprentice, please get in touch with the apprenticeship team to discuss.  
 
What role do Ofsted play? 
 
Who are Ofsted?  
Ofsted is the Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills. They inspect 
services providing education and skills for learners of all ages.   
 
Have we had an Ofsted Inspection? 
We have not yet had a full inspection however in 2021, we had a monitoring visit. This is an 
initial visit for new providers to monitor how they are progressing in their implementation of 
apprenticeships. We received a judgement of Significant Progress across all domains that 
are judged.  
 
What do Ofsted look at in a full inspection?  
 
When Ofsted come to inspect us, they will look at and judge us on the following key areas. 
It is important to note that they will look at the whole organisation and not just at Education.  

• Quality of Education 
 
• Behaviours & Attitudes: Personal & organisational 
• Leadership & Management: How well are our leaders embedded in the delivery, 
leadership, and management of our apprenticeship 
• Professional Development 

 
They will also look at Safeguarding particularly the safeguarding of the learners whilst in 
practice and whilst in the education department. But it is not only the safeguarding of the 
individuals, it is safeguarding their learning.  
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Table 1. Breakdown of Ofsted Key Judgement Areas 
 
How much notice we will be given before the inspection?  
We will receive up to 2-days notice.  
 
What will happen at the inspection? 
 
Ofsted will want to look at Policies, Procedures, Education Documentation. They will want 
to observe teaching sessions but most importantly, they will want to speak to people; 
learners, educators, managers, leaders…… possibly you. This may be done in person, 
remotely or through surveys to capture opinion.  
 
How will we be judged? 
 
After the visit, SCAS will be rated as one of the following by Ofsted: 

Grade 1: Outstanding  

- The quality of education is outstanding. 
- All other key judgements are likely to be outstanding. In exceptional 

circumstances, one of the key judgements may be good, as long as there is 
convincing evidence that the organisation is improving this area sustainably 
and securely towards outstanding. 

- Safeguarding is effective. 

Grade 2: Good 

- The quality of education is at least good. 
- All other key judgements are likely to be good or outstanding. In exceptional 

circumstances, one of the key judgement areas may require improvement, 
as long as there is convincing evidence that the organisation is improving 
this area sustainably and securely towards good. 

- Safeguarding is effective. 
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Grade 3: Requires improvement 

- Other than in exceptional circumstances, it is likely that, when the 
organisation is judged as requires improvement in any of the key 
judgements, the school’s overall effectiveness will also be requires 
improvement. 

- Safeguarding is effective. If there are any weaknesses in safeguarding, they 
are easily rectified and there are no serious failings that leave pupils either 
being harmed or at risk of harm. 

Grade 4: Inadequate 

- The judgement on the overall effectiveness will be inadequate when any one 
of the key judgements is inadequate and/or safeguarding is ineffective. 

 
 
For more information of Ofsted Inspections, visit;  Further education and skills handbook - 
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 
 
 
How can I find out more? 
 
We are keen that individuals from across the organisation are fully briefed on our 
apprenticeship provision. If you are keen to understand more, please get in touch with one 
of the team. 
 
Caroline Robertson – Senior Education Manager – caroline.robertson@scas.nhs.uk 
Nick Foster – Education Manager – nick.foster@scas.nhs.uk 
Amy Shute – Education Facilitator – amy.shute@scas.nhs.uk 
Toni White – Education Coordinator – toni.white@scas.nhs.uk  
 
 
 

 

mailto:caroline.robertson@scas.nhs.uk
mailto:nick.foster@scas.nhs.uk
mailto:amy.shute@scas.nhs.uk
mailto:toni.white@scas.nhs.uk
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

FTSU Update 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

56 

Executive Summary: 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide update on the transition of 

FTSU from the Clinical Directorate to the People Directorate; update on 

FTSU month; learning from recent speak-up cases. 

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to Review feedback from Speak Up Month 

Executive lead: 
 

Melanie Saunders, Chief People Officer 

Report author: 
 

Simon Holbrook, FTSU Guardian 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

People & Culture Committee 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☒ 

Approve 
☐ 

Assure 
☐ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
FTSU is a core element of the Trust Culture and Wellbeing improvement plan.  As the Trusts 
moves into stage 2 of those plans it is expected that assurance and confidence in the delivery of 
FTSU mechanisms and objectives will increase.  
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

All strategic objectives 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

All BAF risks 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

All Quality Domains 
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Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
 
A revised reporting template will be developed and provided to the People and Culture committee, 
FTSU will be included within the upward report to the Trust Board.  In addition, the FTSU Guardian 
will provide the Trust Board with twice yearly reports in public. 
 
Draft updated baseline assessment of FTSU arrangement within SCAS will be reviewed by the 
Culture and Wellbeing workstream and submitted to the People and Culture Committee for 
approval. 
List of Appendices: 
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PUBLIC TRUST BOARD PAPER  

 
Title FTSU Guardian Update 
Author Simon Holbrook, FTSU Guardian 
Responsible 
Director 

Melanie Saunders, Chief People Officer 

Date 1st November 2022 
 
 
1. Purpose  
 
The purpose of this report is to provide update on the transition of FTSU from the Clinical Directorate 
to the People Directorate; update on FTSU month; learning from recent speak-up cases.  The report 
provides high-level update from the more detailed report presented to the People and Culture 
Committee 3rd November 2022.   
 
2. Background and Links to Previous Papers 
 
NHS Trusts are required to have a local Freedom to Speak Up Guardian (FTSU) appointed by the 
Chief Executive. The SCAS FTSU Guardian is Simon Holbrook. Trusts are also required to appoint 
a lead Non-Executive Director with the responsibility for providing oversight and guidance. Following 
the departure of Henrietta Hughes in September 2022, this role is currently being undertaken by 
Trust Chair, Sir Professor Keith Willett. Governance is provided by the People and Culture 
Committee and on-going guidance and support is provided via the Organisational Development 
team, including the Trust Head of ED&I.  Issues and/or concerns are highlighted to other Trust 
Committees to be considered, as and when appropriate. The Guardian regular formal meeting with 
the Lead Executive Director (Chief People Officer) and Chief Executive.   
 
Following the development of the Trusts improvement programmes, in particular the culture and 
wellbeing programme, FTSU also features as a regular update through the Trust Improvement 
Programme  Oversight Board. 
 
3. FTSU Team 
 
During September/October 2022, the FTSU portfolio transitioned to the People Directorate.  The 
decision to realign FTSU with the Organisational Development team, was taken following due 
consideration of the Executive team and in consultation with the former NED FTSU Guardian.  
Working alongside the Assistant Director of Organisation Development will place FTSU central to 
the development of our ‘People Voice’ work, whilst ensuring FTSU also continues to have direct 
access to the Chief Executive as required. 
 
The team will be increase over the coming weeks to include the role of Deputy FTSU Guardian; one 
substantial full-time position and one full-time six-month secondment.  The introduction of FTSU 
Champions is also being explored as part of the Trusts culture and wellbeing improvement 
programme, of which FTSU is a core element.  
 
 
Speak Up Month – October 2022 
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October once again saw the deployment of our Speakupulance, during the month our FTSU 
Guardian undertook: 
 

• 21 visits across all SCAS services and geographical footprint; 
 

• 10 in collaboration with partners and 2 in shared locations 
 

• 1732 miles covered  
 

• Over 750 conversations and over 850 ‘packs’ distributed (a pack can include; H&WB door 
opener, FTSU sticker and Z card, sweets or box of raisins and latterly pocket pack of Clinell 
wipes). 
 

On occasion Simon was accompanied by other SCAS representatives (including Chief Executive, 
Chief People Officer, Head of ED&I, Patient Safety leads). 
 
The takeaway themes from the brief but many conversations of ‘what do you think gets in the way 
of Speaking and Listening up for you?’ included: 
 

• Time pressures and lack of capacity within teams  
• Apathy 
• Fear of repercussions (from the organisation or crew room / peers)  
• Physical barriers, eg estate 

 
In addition to site visits, our FTSU Guardian supported FTSU themed online events, including:   
 

• SCAS Leadership webinar 
• All staff webinar 
• SCAS Civility training 

 
The feedback received during the visits will be incorporated (where appropriate) with feedback being 
received through other activities, such as people pulse and listening events.  From this themes and 
actions/improvements will be developed under the ‘People Voice’ programme (further updates on 
this will be provided in future People and Culture Committees and to Trust Board in due course). 
 
Future Changes to FTSU Reports  
 
Following the latest updated NHSE / National Guardian Officer Board reporting guidance, future 
FTSU reports will be presented via the People and Culture Committee, covering three key elements: 
 
Part 1 Assessment of cases: Provision of assurance that matters being spoken up about are 
quickly evaluated, escalated and responded to. It should  also observe whether change has occurred 
as a result and what assurance  the Guardian has received from the relevant manager that any 
change will  address the issues highlighted and prevent them from arising again.  
 
Part 2 Action taken: Provision of assurance that FTSU arrangements are continually evaluated and 
improvements identified, including : 
 

• illustrating the barriers that exist in your organisation and what the plan is to remove them 
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• providing information on the level of detriment for speaking up and any issues underlying 
this 
• offering assurance that there are good processes for dealing with this, that the processes 
are used and there is an action plan for improvement (no matter how good or bad things are) 
• assurance that the speaking-up arrangements are continually improving as a result of user 
feedback, audit and gap analysis against good practice. 

 
Part 3 Recommendations:  Recommendations for any required action, with data and other 
intelligence presented in a way that maintains confidentiality. 
 
A revised reporting template will be developed and provided to the People and Culture committee, 
FTSU will be included within the upward report to the Trust Board.  In addition, the FTSU Guardian 
will provide the Trust Board with twice yearly reports in public. 
 
 
The Board is invited to note and agree. 

 
 
Simon Holbrook, FTSU Guardian  
Melanie Saunders, Chief People Officer 
 
1st November 2022 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
Report title: 
 

Medical Director’s Report 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

57 

Executive Summary: 
 

This report covers the following issues: 

• Clinical Performance Exception Report 

• Clinical Research Trials Recruitment Update 

• Spinal Immobilisation Trial  

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the report 
 

Executive lead: 
 

John Black, Medical Director 

Report author: 
 

Vicky Holliday, Martina Brown and John Black 

Previously 
considered by: 
 

Clinical updates are received at each Public Board Meeting 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note x 
☒ 

Approve 
☐ 

Assure x 
☒ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

All strategic objectives 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Risk 1 Clinically led / Clinical Governance 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

All Quality Domains 
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Next Steps  
Clinical performance will continue to be closely monitored and actions undertaken as recorded in 
IPR.  
Research Steering Group will secure workforce funding required to deliver the National Spinal 
Immobilisation Trial 
 
List of Appendices: SCAS ACQI and NCPI performance 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 

PUBLIC TRUST BOARD PAPER  
 

Title Medical Director’s Report 
Authors Martina Brown 

Research & Clinical Audit Manager 
 
Vicky Holliday 
Assistant Director of Quality 
 
John Black 
Medical Director 

Responsible Director John Black 
Date 24th November 2022 
 
1. Purpose  
 
The purpose of the paper is to update the Board on key Clinical Issues relating to:  

• SCAS Clinical Research Trial Recruitment 
• Ambulance Clinical Quality Indicators (ACQI).   

 
 
2. Executive Summary 
 
SCAS Clinical Research Trials update:  

 
• Ongoing clinical trials: 

o CRASH4. This randomised, double-blind, placebo-controlled trial is 
investigating an intramuscular tranexamic acid for the treatment of 
symptomatic mild traumatic brain injury in older adults in the UK. 
 

o PARAMEDIC 3. This randomised trial is designed for an adult out-of-
hospital cardiac arrest patients and compares the clinical and cost-
effectiveness of intraosseous and intravenous access first strategy. 

 
o POSED. This trial is a single site three-armed parallel-group feasibility 

randomised controlled trial aiming to identify the optimal energy for 
defibrillation for adult patients sustaining out-of-hospital cardiac arrest 
attended by a crew from the participating ambulance service in whom 
resuscitation is attempted and a shock indicated. 

 
• Trial that the trust is about to open to patients' recruitment:  

o HARMONIE. The purpose of this study is to determine the efficacy and 
safety of a single intramuscular (IM) dose of nirsevimab, compared to no 
intervention, for the prevention of hospitalisations due to lower respiratory 
tract infection (LRTI) caused by Respiratory Syncytial Virus (RSV) infection 
in infants 
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Patient recruitment into current clinical trials: 
 
SCAS recruitment into NIHR research studies continues well.  
 

• The appendix below shows two tables relating to CRASH4 and PARAMEDIC3 
trials, demonstrating the SCAS recruitment performance in comparison to other 
NHS Trusts. 
 

• POSED study enrolled 31 SCAS patients (90 targets) in SCAS (recruitment not 
tabled).    

 
 

CRASH4 Clinical Trials 
 

 
 
 

PARAMEDIC3 
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Ambulance Clinical Quality Indicator (ACQI) Exception Report 
 

1. Ambulance Clinical Quality Indicators (ACQI) Exception Report:  
 

2. Appendix 1 details average SCAS ACQI performance when compared with the 
eleven English Ambulance Trusts (including the Isle of Wight) for the period April 
2022 - May 2022. 

 
3. Nine indicators are performing above the national average, the same position 

since the last report to Board. 
 

4. SCAS is in the upper quartile rating when benchmarked nationally for 7 out of 13 
ACQI indicators.  The same position as the last report to Board, with both cardiac 
arrest survival and both STEMI time-based indicators currently performing above 
all English ambulance services. 
 

5. All cardiac arrest outcome indicators have seen an improved performance since 
the last report to Board, as has the time-based STEMI indicators.   

 
6. This year’s face to face clinical update training is in progress, which contains an 

ACQI update to ensure that operational clinicians with our Emergency and Urgent 
Care service are aware of the elements of care required. Mandated pain scoring is 
now live in the SCAS electronic patient record system. 
 

7. The sepsis care indicator has not been subject to publication in this current 
financial year and the November 2022 publication will be the last for sepsis, which 
is being withdrawn as an ACQI and will be replaced with a sepsis national 
indicator.  A new ACQI focussed on falls in older people is under development. 

 
 
Internal Care Bundle Audits (ICBA) 
 

8. The indicators are currently performing below the year end position 2021/22, with 
the exception of Febrile Convulsion.  Compliance remains largely unchanged since 
the last report to board, with very marginal fluctuation. 

 
9. Lower limb fracture remains the lowest performing indicator. Audit fails are most 

commonly due to non-recording of two pain scores and limb immobilisation. Two 
pain scores are now mandated within the SCAS ePR system which went live on 
8.10.22 and ACQI/ICBA awareness are included in this year’s face to face training 
for SCAS Clinicians. 

 
10. A piece of work to review all the compliance tools in the SCAS Ortivus ePR system 

and ensure they are mirrored in the Scribe 2 clinical records system used by our 
Private Ambulance providers remains in progress.  
 

Prospective future trials   
 
Spinal Immobilisation Study (SIS).  
 
This study will be a multi-centre, open-label, pragmatic, pre-hospital, non-inferiority 
randomised controlled trial with health economic evaluation to determine the 
effectiveness of immobilisation regimes involving neck movement minimisation and 
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standard triple immobilisation (current NHS practice) in patients with potential or 
suspected cervical spine injury following blunt trauma recruited in a pre-hospital 
(ambulance) setting.  
 
Currently, the national trial team is seeking regulatory approvals for the trial protocol with 
the following randomisation groups: 
 

• Intervention: Movement minimisation [no spinal collar] (head blocks or rolled 
blankets to minimise movement in the coronal plane, with the option to sit up, if 
desired and not contraindicated due to other reasons, on ambulance stretcher and 
“c-spine not cleared” sticker.  
 

• Control: Standard Triple immobilisation (spinal collar, head blocks and 
tape/straps) as per current NICE and JRCALC ambulance clinical practice 
guidelines. 

 
The trial has been approved ‘in principle' by the SCAS CRG group in November following 
strong support from NASMeD and National Ambulance Research Network.  
 
The SCAS Research Steering Group will assess the SCAS capacity and capability when 
an ethics committee-approved protocol is available, particularly whether the trial is 
feasible to be deployed trust-wide or only in particular SCAS region.  
 
Further information about this trial, which has NIHR approval and HTA funding, can be 
found at https://fundingawards.nihr.ac.uk/award/NIHR131430 
 
 
7. Recommendations 
 
The Board is asked to note this report. 
 
 
John JM Black 
Medical Director / CMO 
 
Date: 09 November 2022 
 



 
 

Appendix 1:  
 
This table details the SCAS YTD ACQI compliance, benchmarked against English Ambulance Services for the period April 2022 – May 2022. 
 

Clinical Quality Indicator Lower Upper Difference
National 
Average

South Central Difference
Greater or 
lower than 

Average
 %CardiacArrestROSCAtHosp 22.82% 30.00% 7.18% 26.64% 25.89% -0.75% ↓
 %CardiacArrestUsteinROSC 43.24% 58.49% 15.25% 48.97% 54.55% 5.58% 
 %CardiacArrestSTD30Days 6.67% 12.53% 5.86% 8.52% 12.53% 4.01% 
 %CardiacArrestUtsteinSurvive30Days 19.09% 44.44% 25.35% 27.61% 44.44% 16.83% 
 %CardiacArrestResusCareBundleAchieved 66.15% 98.11% 31.96% 78.12% 66.15% -11.97% ↓
 %STEMICareBundle 57.45% 96.15% 38.70% 74.30% 60.00% -14.30% ↓
 %StrokeCareBundleAchieved 92.21% 99.19% 6.98% 96.88% 97.46% 0.58% 
 STEMIPPCIMeanTimeCTN 134          185            50               157             134                 22-               ↓
 STEMIPPCI90CentileCTN 183          256            74               215             183                 32-               ↓
 StrokeMeanTimeCTD 01:25:39 02:17:36 00:51:57 01:43:23 01:34:21 -00:09:02 ↓
 Stroke50CentileCTD 01:13:45 01:44:00 00:30:15 01:24:55 01:18:00 -00:06:55 ↓
 Stroke90CentileCTD 02:25:30 04:04:30 01:39:00 02:49:29 02:35:00 -00:14:29 ↓
 %SepsisCareBundleReceived

% of patients that received the care bundle

Data not yet published

CTD = Call to door (time).  Lower is better 

Comments

% of patients that received the care bundle
CTN= call to needle (minutes). Lower is better

% of Cardiac Arrest patients who ROSC'd at hospital hando
% ofUtstein patients who ROSC'd at hospital handover

% of Cardiac Arrest patients that received the care bundle

% of Cardiac Arrest patients who survive to 30 days
% of Utstein patients who survive to 30 days

ACQIs YTD Apr to May 2022/23 Against Average

 
 

This table details the care bundle 50 YTD compliance for the current financial year. 
 

NCPI Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 YTD 2021/22
Asthma Num N/A 33 N/A N/A 32 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 65 188

Denom N/A 50 N/A N/A 50 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 100 250
N/A 66.00% N/A N/A 64.00% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 65.00% 75.20%

Limb Num 14 20 15 19 14 14 14 110 208
Fracture Denom 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 350 518

28.00% 40.00% 30.00% 38.00% 28.00% 28.00% 28.00% 31.43% 40.15%
Febrile Num 43 N/A N/A 43 N/A N/A 41 N/A N/A N/A N/A 127 119
Conv Denom 50 N/A N/A 50 N/A N/A 50 N/A N/A N/A N/A 150 153

86.00% N/A N/A 86.00% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 84.67% 77.77%
Elderly Num 28 24 30 30 29 26 31 198 385
Falls Denom 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 350 600

56.00% 48.00% 60.00% 60.00% 58.00% 52.00% 62.00% 56.57% 64.16%  
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Report title: 
 

Operations Report – 999, 111 and Other 

Report to: 
 

Trust Board (Part 1) 

Date of Meeting: 
 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 Agenda  
Item: 

58 

Executive Summary: 
 

The performance of our 999 and 111 services continue to be impacted 
by the impact of handover delays and staff shortages. 

Recommendations: 
 

The Trust Board is asked to note the issues in the 999 and 111 areas 
of SCAS and the operational support work to help with those 
challenges. 

Executive lead: 
 

Paul Kempster 

Report author: 
 

Steve West, Luci Papworth, Mark Ainsworth 

Previously 
considered by: 

An Operations Report is presented at every Board meeting in pubic. 

Purpose of report: 
 

Note 
☒ 

Approve 
☐ 

Assure 
☒ 

Paper Status:  
 

Public 
☒ 
 

Private 
☐ 
 

Internal 
☐ 
 

Assurance level: 
 

Significant 
☐ 

Acceptable 
☒ 

Partial 
☐ 

No Assurance 
☐ 

High level of confidence 
in delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 
 

General confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

Some confidence in 
delivery of existing 
mechanisms / objectives 

No confidence in delivery 

Justification for the above assurance rating.  Where ‘Partial’ or ‘No’ assurance has been 
indicated above, please indicate steps to achieve ‘Acceptable’ assurance or above, and 
the timeframe for achieving this: 
 
N/A 
 
Strategic Objective(s): 
 

All strategic objectives 

Links to BAF risks: 
(or links to the Significant Risk Register) 
 

Risk 1 - Achieving standards and targets 

Quality Domain(s): 
 

Patient Safety 

Next Steps (what actions will be taken following agreement of the recommendations): 
List of Appendices: 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING IN PUBLIC 24TH NOVEMBER 2022 

OPERATIONS REPORT – 999, 111 AND OTHER – KEY ISSUES 

PURPOSE 
 
1 The purpose of the paper is to provide the Board with an update on current 

performance in 999 & 111 and the delivery of projects to improve operations. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
2 Hospital handover delays at QA increased in September, with the second worst 

week in 3 years being recorded.  Another Critical Incident was called at QA on 11th 
October and this has led to some improvements in performance. 

 
3 We moved to REAP 4 on 11th October.  This has had limited impact on capacity as 

we are trying to maintain agreed levels of training. 
 
4 Contact centre performance is still being impacted by vacancies and the duplicate 

calls in 999 which occur when we have handover delays and long waits. 
 
EOC 
 
5 Call answer performance improved in September until significant hospital handover 

delays impacted increasing the duplicate calls. 
 
6 Capacity for call takers has improved as new staff become work effective but we 

remain below budgeted levels required to deliver consistent performance.  
 
7 The net position between actual required resource hours and actual hours is now in 

line when duplicate calls reduce, however there remains challenges with evening and 
weekend resourcing. 
 

8 The new coaching process with 1 mentor and a small group of ECTs on a 
“graduation pod” has been reviewed as a pilot in EOC South.  This demonstrated that 
new staff were having more consistent suport and were getting signed off more 
quickly. This will now be implementd in EOC North and the CCC education team are 
working with SCAS estates to set this “pod” up.  A full review of the training package 
for ECTs has also taken place.  New staff were actively involved in this review that 
encompassed the training syllabus and the amount of time spent in the classroom. 

 
9 The classroom training has been increased by a week and has more scenario based 

learning. The aim is to ensure our new staff are adequately equipped and supported 
with the skills they need when working in the EOC and also to have a positive impact 
on attrition.   

 
10 The national Intelligent Routing Platform went live on 3rd November 2022.   
 
11 The EOC manager information literacy course with Qliksence has commenced and 

has been well received by managers.  
 
12 BT 999 Emergency call handler strike action took place over 4 dates in October. 

There was no negatve impact on SCAS performance. 
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111  
 
13  Calls offered into 111 have are close to budget levels. 
 
14 Capacity for call takers is below budgeted levels with high vacancy rates and high 

sickness at 11%.  We are seeing an improvement in sickness across all areas of 111.  
We continue to support staff with increased HR and health and wellbeing capacity.  We 
are currently in discussions with other providers to provide call handling capacity for 
our 111 service.       

 
15 We had the additional Bank Holiday in September for the State Funeral which added 

pressure on demand, capacity and our overall performance for September.  Although 
the Adastra platform is operational there is still some functionality we do not have. 
Advanced are working to provide this over the next two months but we remain without 
any reporting capability as we move into November.  We are hopeful that the reporting 
will be up and running by the end of November.   

  
16  The 111 to 999 transfer rates for September and October are not available due to the 

Adastra outage.  We still have the ED and ambulance clinical validation processes in 
place and have extended the two GP CAS contracts until 23rd March to support winter 
pressures.      

  
17 We continue to work with the regional team and commissioners on the implementation 

of the Single Virtual Contact Centre (SVCC) but there is currently no confirmed date 
for implementation. 

 
URGENT & EMERGENCY CARE 

 
999  
 
18 Response time performance across all metrics have been above improvement plan 

trajectories until the last two weeks with increasing hospital delays once again 
impacting.  

 
19 Response demand continued below forecasted levels during September returning to 

budgeted levels in October. The increase in demand has mainly been seen in the 
higher acuity groups. 

 
20 The net position between actual required resource hours and actual hours has 

worsened with a gap of 1,300 hours per week or 4.7%.   
 
Hospital Handover Delays 
 
21 Handover delays have remained a significant challenge in October with us losing 

5,497 hours across all sites, with 1,692 over 1 hour delays.  QAH remains the most 
challenged hospital with us losing 2,764 hours at this hospital.  Our revised hospital 
handover plan has now been shared with all system partners and we will be 
implementing our 30 minute handover process if we are under pressure to release 
ambulances from the hospital queue. We recognise that this will not be possible at 
the QA. 
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Non-Conveyance and Urgent Care Pathways 
 
22 The Clinical Pathway Team have been focussing on supporting the operational work 

streams of the CQC action plan. 
 
23 Terrafix MDT - The team have been engaging with staff at all Emergency 

Departments and Resource Centres across our footprint to support and encourage 
the accurate use of the Terrafix MDT.  Information from this engagement work will 
provide opportunities for shared learning across operations teams.  Incident details 
have been shared with the SCAS Business Information (BI) teams to improve the 
data quality surrounding patient outcome reporting. 

 
24 Data Quality - Work is continuing with the BI teams to develop data sets to better 

understand how the increased use of urgent care pathways improves patient care as 
well as conveyance, task time and hospital handover performance.  It is intended for 
there to be greater insight to where patients have been referred and/or conveyed, 
both in the community and to acute hospitals.  This information and data will be 
shared widely across SCAS and linked directly to operational teams and personal 
performance scorecards. 
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25 Clinical Care Pathways - Aligning the delivery standards across both 999 and 111 
services for Urgent Community Response (UCR) Virtual Wards (Hospital at Home) 
and Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC) to address current operational challenges 
continue to be a key focus.  Alongside the compliance with national guidelines, we 
have been extending the acceptance guidelines to increase the number of patients 
that are likely to be referred to these services.  This will ensure the service provision 
will be consistent and equitable to all patients in all regions of SCAS to improve their 
outcomes.  

 
Resilience & Specialist Operations 
 
26 October has continued to be extremely busy for the department with this year’s 

round of EPRR Assurance meetings.  Following on from our peer review meeting 
with IOW Ambulance Service and the ICS the Trust has come out at substantially 
compliant.  We are fully compliant for the 62 Core Standards and partially compliant 
in 1. For the 164 Interoperability Core Standards we are fully compliant in 159 and 
partially compliant in 5. All 5 are national issues around release of staff and national 
funding.  

 
27 Work is ongoing with winter planning and the plans for industrial cction both 

internally and externally within the NHS and other agencies such as the Fire and 
Rescue Service.  Business Continuity plans are being updated along with new and 
emerging risks of widespread electricity loss and planned power cuts through the 
winter should they be required.  Our updated winter plans will be ready for 
submission in November.  

 
28 Command and SORT Training continues to ensure we are meeting our Core 

Standards with a review of the tactical rota to ensure it is fit for purpose.   
 
29 On 3rd November Part 2 of the Manchester Arena inquiry report is due to be 

published. This covers the response to the incident and is likely to have a major 
impact on the way that we respond to these types of incidents in the future.  We 
have a plan in place to ensure that all of the findings of the report that relate to the 
Ambulance Service and our response partners are collated and follow a programme 
of work to ensure we are compliant with any recommendations. These are likely to 
be far and wide from command, training, sharing of information, staff welfare and a 
change of response model.  

 
30 As part of the trust winter preparations the AD Operations along with the RSO team 

are working on the internal review of our preparedness for winter 2022 to include: - 
 
• A review of our August 2022 NHSE submission 
• A review of the risks that can be addressed via the LRF such as 4x4 

capability, the impact of industrial action. 
• Support with ambulance driving (Fire) if staff absence spikes. 

 
31 We have also issued our winter plans and planning assumptions to the local HOO’s 

to allow them to share them with ICB and A&E delivery boards. The review of winter 
will continue as and when pressures or events change to keep us agile in our 
approach. 
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Long Waits 
 

 
 
32 LWs had been steadily improving from the very difficult month of June (10,509) by 

over 50% to 5,145 in August.  Numbers increased significantly through September 
to 8,366 and 10,240 in the first 29 days of October.  LWs are not directly linked to 
one single factor but to many that effect our ability to match our demand to 
resourcing.  This is clearly evident in the in the SE where we have the highest 
impact of hospital delays than any other dispatch area.  More than 25% of all Cat 2 
LWs in September and October were in the SE alone, 1,471(4,332) in Sept and 
1,253 (4,797) in Oct. 

 
Clinical Equipment 
 
33 The team have made good progress with the audit of clinical equipment with 443 of 

480 front line vehicles now checked. Out of the 10125 assets that have been 
captured, 3% of devices have been reported as being unserviceable; most of which 
are life jackets and these are being replaced. 

 
34 A new process has been introduced by the make ready teams to record Zoll 

devices on their daily checks. 
 
35 Zoll have confirmed that new batteries will start being distributed in November. Once 

we have sufficient quantities, we will issue a spare battery for each Zoll. 
 
Ambulance Make Ready (MR) Services    
 
36 The new tender specification is in the final stages of completion and will be based 

upon our current service of a vehicle being made ready every 24/7.   
 
37 The proposed timetable is to go live with the new service during summer 2023. 
 
Fleet  
 
38 The convertor is currently building the prototype FIAT DCU which we will then be able 

to assess, to see if there are improvements to legroom in the cab without impacting 
on space in the rear. 
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39 All of the new Land Rover Sports Discovery’s are now operational. A review of the 
equipment being carried in the TL cars is being conducted by the Ops team. 

 
Workforce Management (WFM) Project 
 
40 The development of the cloud system is complete with user acceptance and 

penetration testing successful.  Go live has been delayed due to IG sign off and 
data warehouse development issues with resource constraints within BI and IT. 

 
Private Provider Strategy Implementation Project 
 
41 The consultancy support has been approved by NHSE and the project has started 

with market engagement due to take place on 17th November 2022. 
 
999 EOC Roster Review and Realignment Project  

 
42 Following the last Project Board, the roster core principles were presented and 

agreed.  Further discussions are still required on the overall roster rotation lengths 
for all areas, which is now being confirmed with key parties to support this change 
proposal.  Staff communication has been circulated to all operational areas and 
preliminary work is ongoing on roster pattern options, as outlined by optima 
suggestions.  A proposal for updated staff establishment will also be prioritised for 
agreement by mid-November and staff launch engagement events are planned to 
take place during late November 2022.  

 
EOC Roster Review Project 
 
43 During October, the staff engagement sessions have been held and a supporting 

questionnaire published.  The questionnaire covered areas such as: shift patterns / 
lengths, teamworking, flexible working, relief, annual leave. Overall feedback has 
been positive and there are some concerns being raised by the staff through this 
process, which the project team and leads are reviewing.  Once all the feedback 
has been collated, it will be presented to the Project Board mid-November. Then 
subsequently shared to all EOC staff so that further clarification and feedback can 
be provided on key points raised.  The next stage of the project will be to engage 
with nominated EOC staff champions who will then start to work on helping to 
develop any new EOC roster design patterns for the future.   

 
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE BOARD 

 
44 The Board is asked to note the contents of the report. 
 
 
 
Name of author Paul Kempster 
Job title of author Chief Operating Officer 
Date paper written October 2022 
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OPERATIONS REPORT – 999, 111 AND OTHER 

 
 
APPENDICES   

 
Indirect Resources  
  
1 We have seen an improvement in September and October to over 2500 incidents. 

We are now on target to the deliverable within the recovery plan and we are 
monitoring this as a department.  
  

 
 
2. Our number of attendances to Cat 1 demand in October is comparable to September 

and we unfortunately continue to see the desk that dispatches the South un-manned 
and the north desk is only covered 80% of the time, but we are working on improving 
cover. We have trained 3 of the 6 volunteers to increase the coverage of the desk 
and the other 3 are planned in for training on 12th & 19th November so once they have 
completed 3 mentoring shifts, they will work alongside the paramedic to ensure both 
desks have some coverage at peak times  

  
3 However, we have managed to maintain the 30 seconds of contribution.  
  

  
  
4 We are still maintaining performance by getting to scene first to over 74% of the time 

but we are seeing an increase again in our time to back up our volunteers.      
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5. We have seen a slight increase in both CFW and NIF deployments and with effect 

from 1st December we will see one desk in the south being manned by a paramedic 
on alternative duties to increase the attendances at these calls as well as offering 
other clinical advice and utilising the GoodSam on scene live links.   

 

  
 
6 The project for GoodSam is tabled for the 10th November and once agreed the 

planned timeline will see this live in Feb/March 2023.      
  
7 The volunteer conference on the 23rd October was well attended and the overall 

feedback from the day was extremely positive. 
  
8 Restart A Heart week saw over 48,000 hits on varying social media platforms with 

the reels, interviews and posts and over 1,500 children were taught CPR on Friday 
14th October, so a positive week as we continue to improve out of hospital cardiac 
arrest.   
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Industrial Action Update 
 
1 Over the last few weeks a number of trade unions across the NHS have been 

considering strike action.  As such each of the recognised Unions within SCAS have 
now formally notified the Trust that they are balloting their members about taking 
industrial action, namely: 

 
• Unison (c1033 members) 
• GMB (c207 members) 
• Unite (c314 members) 

2 In addition formal notifications have also been received from the Royal College of 
Nursing (RCN) and Royal College of Midwifes (RCM).  Whilst not a formally 
recognised Union within SCAS both will no doubt have SCAS employees within their 
membership. 

 
3 The RCN ballot closed on 2nd November, the Trust has been advised that the vote by 

members employed within SCAS reached the threshold and therefore those 
members will be prepared to participate in strike action.  The Unison, GMB and Unite 
ballots remain open and are due to close towards the end of November.  

 
4 It is important to recognise the rights of all our staff to strike, and equally that there 

are no repercussions for anyone choosing to do so.  This needs to be balanced with 
our absolute responsibility to ensure delivery of safe patient care. 

 
Legal Requirements 
 
5 Following closure of the ballot, at least 50% of those eligible to vote must have done 

so, for it to be lawful to proceed with any form of industrial action.  
 
6 There is a legal requirement for employers to be provided with 14 days’ notice of any 

form of industrial action, including action short of a strike (work to rule).  
 
7 Any action must be taken within six months of the close of the ballot.  
 
Strike Planning 
 
8 In the event of industrial action, our usual business continuity plans will be 

implemented.  
 
9 As a Trust we are working with our Senior team and Union Colleagues to understand 

and plan for the potential impact of the industrial action that may take place between 
December and May 2023.  

 
10 Currently the senior HR and Ops teams are engaging with NHSE and the Ambulance 

services in England, through national calls lead by Professor Marsh.  Our CPO will 
also be working closely with Ambulance CPOs and the National Ambulance 
Partnership Forum. 

 
11 Within the Trust we are engaging with all departments to include PPF, CCC, OPS, 

HR and PTS to understand the potential impact on patient care, safety and service 
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delivery.  Furthermore, we are developing the command structure that will need to be 
in place on any strike days to support our patients, staff and wider system colleagues. 
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